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S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited (the “Company” or “"We",
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)is a rapidly growing
provider of property management services in China. We have been
providing property management services in China for more than 26
years. According to China Index Academy (the “CIA") statistics, for
years in a row, we are among the top property services enterprises
of a growing nature in China. In addition, according to the list of top
100 Chinese property management services enterprises announced
by the CIA, our ranking moved up from the 34th in 2010 to 11th in
2022. As of 31 December 2022 , the property management services
agreements we signed covered 192 cities in 31 provinces, accounting
for a total contracted gross floor area ("GFA") of 312.7 million square
metres (“sg.m.”), and projects under management covered 156 cities
with GFA under management of 198.3 million sq.m. in total. We
provide extensive property management services and value-added
services for property developers as well as residents and tenants from
the communities managed by us. We have also developed a one-
stop information services platform called Orange APP. Our residents
and customers can enjoy the services we provide through their
mobile devices. Based on our excellent services and enhanced market
reputation, we have built a property services brand emphasizing quality
and customers.

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

For the year ended 31 December 2022, our revenue has been primarily
derived from two business lines — property management services
and value-added services. Our value-added services cover three
business categories comprising developer-related value-added services,
community-related value-added services and smart community services.
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

We provide an extensive range of property management services to
residents and tenants, including property and facilities maintenance,
security services, maintenance and cleaning services, gardening
services, public areas repair and maintenance and other property
management related services. We manage diverse property portfolios,
including residential and non-residential properties, from office
buildings, multi-purpose complexes and factories to parks and industrial
zones. The majority of our revenue for the year ended 31 December
2022 came from providing property management services.

VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

Our value-added services encompass three types of services: developer
related value-added services, community-related value-added services
and smart community services.

o Developer-related value-added services: We provide
related services to property developers during the property
development.

o Community-related value-added services: We provide value-
added services to residents and customers in the projects we
manage, including public resources management services,
community engineering services, extensive decoration services,
asset management services, catering services, facility and
equipment management and various other home living services.

° Smart community services: We provide one-stop smart solutions
for communities and various business projects.
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Executive Directors
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Ms. Wu Qiangian

Non-executive Directors
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhang Yan

Mr. Zhu Wei

Mr. Xu Xinmin

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. You Jianfeng

Ms. Ng Sau Mei
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Ms. Zhang Yan (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhongming
Mr. Zhu Wei
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Mr. Zhu Wei (Chairman)
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The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
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China Merchant Bank, Changzhou Branch
Changzhou Branch Tower 1
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No. 14, Renmin Road Central, Hutang

Wujin Changzhou
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PMBEE
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

me¥sE COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE

BENANALEE
For the year ended 31 December
AREFT RMB'000 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
KA Revenue 1,173,388 2,024,026 2,866,447 4,350,735 5,179,553
FEM% Annual growth % 35.4% 72.5% 41.6% 51.8% 19.1%
EX Gross profit 345,022 599,879 880,765 1,341,547 1,338,140
FEM% Annual growth % 42.4% 73.9% 46.8% 52.3% -0.3%
EF ik Gross margin 29.4% 29.6% 30.7% 30.8% 25.8%
EEM% Annual growth % 1.4% 0.2% 11% 0.1% -5.0%
FAARBERREEFANE  Net profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 152,154 282,01 452,387 525,455 423,476
EEM% Annual growth % 107.3% 85.3% 60.4% 16.2% -19.4%
FREE Net profit margin 14.1% 14.9% 17.1% 12.8% 9.2%
EEM% Annual growth % 3.5% 0.8% 2.2% -4.3% -3.6%
DEBRIRES PERFORMANCE BY SEGMENTS
BZNANALEE
For the year ended 31 December
ARETT RMB'000 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
NEEBRBUA Revenue from property management
services 732,025 848,955 1,255,136 2,100,212 3,024,934
EEM% Annual growth % 29.1% 16.0% 47.8% 67.3% 44.0%
BERBRA Revenue from value-added services 441,363 1,175,071 1,611,311 2,250,523 2,154,619
FEIN% Annual growth % 475% 166.2% 37.1% 39.7% -4.3%
Hh Including
HEEEEREUA Revenue from developer-related
value-added services 296,746 647,748 724,731 815,257 519,518
EEM% Annual growth % 69.1% 118.3% 11.9% 12.5% -36.3%
HEEERBRA Revenue from community-related
value-added services 47,890 227,701 497,660 915,603 1,284,549
EEM% Annual growth % 10.6% 375.5% 118.6% 84.0% 40.3%
BEEERBYNA Revenue from smart community services 96,727 299,622 388,920 519,663 350,552
FEIN% Annual growth % 20.3% 209.8% 29.8% 33.6% -32.5%
NEEERBEF Gross profit from property management
services 203,503 242,343 392,623 631,870 739,899
ERhL Percentage of gross profit 59.0% 40.4% 44.6% 47.1% 55.4%
BERBER Gross profit from value-added services 141,519 357,536 488,142 709,677 598,241
ERhL Percentage of gross profit 41.0% 59.6% 55.4% 52.9% 44.6%
Hh Including

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 9
2022 Annual Report



MBEE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BZNANALEE
For the year ended 31 December

ARETR RMB'000 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HEHEERKEN Gross profit from developer-related

value-added services 75,718 180,428 210,447 236,016 127,542
AL Percentage of gross profit 22.0% 30.1% 23.9% 17.6% 9.5%
HERERBER Gross profit from community-related

value-added services 39,118 128,935 214,014 387,805 414,120
AL Percentage of gross profit 11.3% 21.5% 24.3% 28.9% 30.9%
EEHERBER Gross profit from smart community

services 26,683 48,173 63,681 85,856 56,579
ERhL Percentage of gross profit 7.7% 8.0% 7.2% 6.4% 4.2%
NEERRBENE Gross margin of property management

services 27.8% 28.5% 31.3% 30.1% 24.5%
BERBERE Gross margin of value-added services 32.1% 30.4% 30.3% 31.5% 21.8%
A Including
HEBEERBERE Gross margin of developer-related

value-added services 25.5% 27.9% 29.0% 28.9% 24.6%
HERERBERNE Gross margin of community-related

value-added services 81.7% 56.6% 43.0% 42.4% 32.2%
EEREREENR Gross margin of smart community services 27.6% 16.1% 16.4% 16.5% 16.1%
EEEEREE SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET

M2A318
As at 31 December
ARETR RMB'000 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
ReRALLEN Cash and cash equivalents 1,281,269 1,339,092 1,882,136 2,504,102 1,973,696
gSERATE Trade receivables 129,118 262,767 356,568 622,758 1,292,257
RBEE Current assets 1,517,513 2,051,971 2,985,376 4,336,382 4,699,011
BEE Total assets 1,572,198 2,199,567 3,314,052 5,409,645 6,150,647
ANEE Contract liabilities 248,764 390,342 628,073 776,038 747,899
R EMEMRE Trade and other payables 416,746 773,760 1,134,655 1,822,217 2,148,681
Beg Total liabilities 694,307 1,232,697 1,904,463 2,885,013 3,242,124
BHAE Total equity 877,891 966,870 1,409,589 2,524,632 2,908,523
il A Liquidity ratios 220.4% 168.9% 160.8% 161.7% 156.1%
FHIRBEEEERA R
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BERERREE SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BENANBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
AREFT RMB'000 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
RETHELEMREFE  Net cash generated from
business operations 185,586 544,683 787,028 755,334 63,876
RETD(EM) /E%EM  Netcash (used in)/generated
ReRE from investments 9,261 (263,579) (95,324) (591,094) (467,068)
BETD(EM) /EEM  Netcash (used in)/generated
ReRE from financing 429,926 (224,867) (143,246) 468,217 (144,421)
REREREEEY Net (decrease)/increase of cash
(BD)/BNEE and cash equivalents 624,773 56,237 548,458 632,457 (547,613)
EBHBERE SUMMARY OF BUSINESS FIGURES
BENANBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
FERR 1,000 sg.m. 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
EEAR GFA under management
MEE Handover 7,530 18,524 44,303 56,593 46,875
A Including
MEE- MU Handover - Seazen Group 4,295 12,350 17,575 20,936 14,962
MBEE-2=74 Handover - Third parties 3,235 6,174 26,728 35,657 31,913
3l Terminations 920 1,259 3,040 4,477 2,138
HREERR GFA under management as at
the end of the period 42,887 60,152 101,415 153,531 198,268
EERE- FEM% GFA under management
- Net increase % 18.2% 40.3% 68.6% 51.4% 29.1%
A Including
EEmE-HHF GFA under management
- Seazen Group 30,473 42,797 60,152 80,604 95,403
EERE-£=4 GFA under management
- Third parties 12,414 17,355 41,263 12,927 102,865
HRENER Contracted GFA as at the end of
the period 112,199 152,777 203,138 278,846 312,741
ANERE- FEM% Contracted GFA - Net increase % 65.5% 36.2% 33.0% 37.3% 12.2%
A Including
BHEE- HH A Contracted GFA - Seazen Group 87,689 119,413 138,194 166,246 166,693
ANEE-%=5 Contracted GFA - Third parties 24,510 33,364 64,944 112,600 146,048

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual results of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The year 2022 witnessed the struggle of numerous companies around
the globe which were exposed to severe challenges, such as sharp rise
of inflation, the shift in monetary policy of developed countries, the
intensification of international geopolitical bargains, and the repeated
waves of the COVID-19 pandemic, which have significantly hindered the
overall growth of the global economy, and resulted in adjustments to
the business development of the major enterprises to various degrees.
China’s economy, as well as its enterprises, was also going through
hard times. As a pillar industry, China’s real estate industry was unable
to recover from the storm breaking out in 2021, which on the contrary,
spread even wider, with the number of companies being affected
continuously increasing, resulting in a large number of overdue debts.
In addition, the development of the COVID-19 pandemic remained
unpredictable during the year, and the control measures to deal with
it have resulted in disruption of the normal business activities of the
whole society, with the impact lasting for three to four months in
certain areas, dealing a heavy blow on numerous businesses that were
hard to recover from.

The property service industry in which the Company operates also
faced a very challenging market environment in 2022. Such challenges
include: (i) as certain sectors of the property service industry belong to
the same industry chain as the real estate development industry, when
the real estate development industry encountered unexpected industry-
specific difficulties, such difficulties would be inevitably transmitted
to the property service industry, and the current difficulties we were
facing were indeed beyond our expectation at the beginning of 2022;
(i) many areas and cities were stricken by the repeated waves of the
COVID-19 pandemic during the year, and the governments’ measures to
manage and control it during the period nearly stagnated the business
operation of the industry. Such measures have made it more difficult
for property service companies to maintain their normal operation
and generate income; and (iii) property service companies, which had
served as the logistics and community service providers and front-line
volunteers, had incurred additional service costs due to the pandemic
prevention and control measures in 2022, adding to their pressure on
maintaining due profits.

Amid the above-mentioned changes in the external environment, the
development of the property service industry has entered a new stage,
characterized by the adjustments to the pace of market integration and
scale growth of industry participants, as well as fluctuating valuation
of the capital market. Property service companies have taken active
steps to improve the community livelihood and fully guarantee the
production of the enterprises, bringing the development of the industry
back to service quality and professional capability.
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Thanks to the invaluable contribution of our employees, the Company
has achieved continuous growth in business scale despite the
challenging environment, with the GFA under management hitting
a new high, and the revenue topping RMB5 billion. In the face of
the repeated waves of the COVID-19 pandemic, our employees have
devoted themselves to their jobs, working day and night tirelessly
at the front line of community service and logistic support. They
have brilliantly fulfilled their mission of safeguarding the happiness
of the community and ensuring the uninterrupted production of our
customers, demonstrating the great value of the property management
enterprises in safeguarding people’s livelihood, security and social
stability. Our services have been well recognized by our customers and
industrial associations, as proven by the prestigious awards granted
to our projects in recognition of our outstanding service quality in
2022, such as the “China’s Property Service Benchmark Project in 2022
(20227 B W E R 7 H1ZME B EH)", “China’s Hospital Property Service
Benchmark Project in 2022 (20227 B & fx ¥ 2 R 148 B E)", and
“China’s School Property Services Benchmark Project in 2022 (2022
HERYWERKIZIEEE)", which enhanced the brand image of the
Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year 2022 also witnessed the initial deepening of our “great
community” + “great logistics” strategy, during which the Company
recorded an annual operating income of approximately RMB5,179.6
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
19.1%, which was mainly contributed by our property management
services and community-related value-added services. However, the
profit attributable to the equity owners of the Company decreased
by approximately 19.4% from the previous year to approximately
RMB423.5 million, which was primarily due to the sluggish business
climate of the real estate development industry, as well as the
significant year-on-year decrease in the demand for developer-related
value-added services and smart community services. In addition, the US
dollar bonds of the listed companies held by the Company caused us
further losses, which amounted to approximately RMB172.5 million.

In terms of property management business, the Company’s revenue
therefrom reached approximately RMB3,024.9 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 44.0%. As at 31 December
2022, our total GFA under management reached approximately 198.3
million sg.m., representing a net increase of approximately 44.7 million
sg.m. compared with the end of 2021, and the total contracted area
reached approximately 312.7 million sg.m., representing a net increase
of approximately 33.9 million sq.m. compared with the end of 2021.
With the implementation of non-residential service capacity training
and practice in the last two years, our service ability and business
development ability in various property types have been significantly
improved. During the year, the non-residential projects managed by
the Company increased rapidly. In terms of GFA under management,
the non-residential projects accounted for approximately 25.8% of the
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Group's project portfolio, with the number of non-residential projects
increasing by approximately 76.5% as compared to the end of 2021.
At present, the projects under our management cover various property
types such as hospitals, enterprises, colleges, offices, and shopping
malls. As the quality of our services has been well recognized by our
customers, we have been able to serve multiple project sites of certain
customers, with our service penetration rate further increasing.

In terms of community-related value-added services, the Company’s
revenue therefrom reached approximately RMB1,284.5 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 40.3%. The gross
profit of this business segment reached approximately RMB414.1
million, accounting for approximately 30.9% of the Company’'s total
gross profit, making it the second largest core business after the
property management business. Since we began to deepen our “great
community” + “great logistics” strategy, the income from our great
logistics-based community-related value-added services represented by
group catering has been growing gratifyingly, with the income from
such community-related value-added services almost equal to that from
traditional residence-based community-related value-added services. As
the Company’s contracts on “great logistics” continue to be executed,
there is no doubt that the proportion of our great logistics-based
community-related value-added services such as group catering will
further increase. During the year, the revenue of two catering service
companies, namely Shanghai Xuefu Catering Management Service Co.,
Ltd* (EB2RFEREE R AR AE]) and Suzhou Health Catering
Management Service Co., Ltd.* (BN /BRFEKRE R RB B R D A),
were consolidated into the Company. In addition, Tianjin Jinyu Property
Management Co., Ltd* (KEWE EWEEEBRAF]), which was
acquired by the Company in the first half of the year and with many
high-quality customers in the group catering business, contributed to a
strong growth in the revenue from our group catering business this
year. Of course, we will not solely rely on mergers and acquisitions for
the growth of the group catering business, but will also cooperate
closely with the above-mentioned new member companies in business
bidding. With the joint efforts of the various parties, we have
succeeded in bidding for the postgraduate restaurant in the Northern
Campus of Shanghai Fudan University, the Beiyuan Restaurant in Tongji
University, the restaurant in the Yanchang Campus of Shanghai
University, the Staff Restaurant of Morimatsu International Holdings in
Shanghai, and the R&D Center of ZTE Corporation in Shanghai. Some
of these projects have opened for business in the second half of 2022,
and some will open in 2023, ensuring better performance of the
Company in 2023. In addition to the group catering business, our
facilities management services were also steadily advancing. To date,
the number of elevators under our management has exceeded 33,000.
For the elevator installation business in old buildings which represents a
new growth opportunity, we have secured an increase of dozens of
units compared with the beginning of the year.

*  For identification purpose only
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For other businesses, the demand for services from the real estate
development industry dropped significantly, and our revenue from
developer-related value-added services and smart community services
both dropped by more than 30%. During the year, we carried out a
risk screening on the current real estate developer customers, aiming to
control the scale of account receivables, and avoid significant risks that
the funds could not be recovered.

PROSPECTS

While the downturn in the real estate industry has indeed dragged
down the Company’s performance, we believe that such impact is only
temporary. Though it is very difficult to accurately predict the future,
we have maintained an optimistic outlook, attributable to the recent
market developments and our own proactive improvements which
have given us good confidence: (i) as at the date of this statement,
the repeated waves of the COVID-19 pandemic has finally come to an
end, with work, production, consumption and entertainment all back
to normal, which of course is conducive to the development of our
business; (ii) since the end of 2022, the PRC government and relevant
authorities have been continuously issuing policies to open financing
channels to support the healthy and orderly development of the real
estate industry, which convinces us that the real estate industry is
about to pass the most difficult time; (iii) after a year of adjustments,
the direct connection of the Company’s business structure with the real
estate development industry has dropped to the minimum level. The
Company has been gradually growing into a comprehensive logistics
service provider. Our property management services are not only
provided to property owners, but also extended to various scenarios
such as production, study and work, serving the users in such scenarios
and safeguarding their work and production; and (iv) the Company has
increased its resources in the construction of information infrastructure
in 2022: the Group-level SAP system has brought the Company’s overall
internal management to a new level, speeding up the generation and
analysis of various types of data, and the operation management
system related to group catering also enabled us to check the operation
data in real time, which could keep abreast of the operation status
of each project site. All of the above make us believe that the overall
business operation of the Company will eventually return to the right
track in the future and create greater value for our shareholders.

Since our listing, we have been unremittingly studying the development
history of outstanding property service companies at home and
abroad, aiming to set a right direction of long-term development for
the Company and build up a reasonable business portfolio to achieve
sustainable growth, and do our best to create considerable returns
to our shareholders. | also hope that in the future, we can continue
to uphold our original aspiration of serving our customers heartily,
persist in practicing the camel spirit of Seazen Group, and withstand
the greatest pressure with utter endurance and motivation even in a
difficult environment!
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The Group is a national residential property management service
provider as well as a fast-growing comprehensive logistics service
provider. In 2022, the various impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on
the economy surfaced and China saw weak property market throughout
the year. Under such circumstances, the operations of some of the
Group's businesses were under challenge and the service demands of
our developer customers were also constrained.

Fortunately, the business performance of the Group exhibited stability.
The management scale and revenue of the Group maintained their
growth and property management services and community-related
value-added services, our two core segments, both performed well
under pressure.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

In 2022, the revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB5,179.6 million, representing an increase of 19.1% as compared
to approximately RMB4,350.7 million for the corresponding period in
2021.

The revenue of the Group is derived from four segments: (i) property
management services; (ii) community-related value-added services;
(iii) smart community services; and (iv) developer-related value-added
services.

BZ12A31BLEE

For the year ended 31 December
2022%F ERE 20214
2022 Growth rate 2021
AR¥Fr % AR F
RMB’000 % RMB’000
Y EE RS Property management services 3,024,934 44.0 2,100,212

#t = 3 (B AR 5 Community-related value-added
services 1,284,549 40.3 915,603
BEERRB Smart community services 350,552 (32.5) 519,663
7 2% 75 18 B AR 7% Developer-related value-added services 519,518 (36.3) 815,257
&5t Total 5,179,553 19.1 4,350,735
l 16 %ﬁiﬁi'fﬁﬁﬁifﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
2022 FHE
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Property management services

We provide residents and tenants with an extensive range
of property management services, including property and
facilities maintenance, security services, maintenance and
cleaning services, horticulture services, public areas repair and
maintenance and other property management related services.

In 2022, the revenue from property management services of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB3,024.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 44.0% as compared
to approximately RMB2,100.2 million for the corresponding
period in 2021, accounting for approximately 58.4% of the total
revenue. As at 31 December 2022, the GFA under management
of the Group was 198.3 million sq.m., representing a net
increase of approximately 44.7 million sq.m. or approximately
29.1% as compared to the end of 2021, of which the area
attributable to third parties accounted for approximately
51.9%. During the year, the construction cycle for new projects
were extended due to the pandemic management measures
implemented from time to time, resulting in delays in the
delivery of some residential projects which were originally
planned to be delivered during the year. Despite this, the Group
still recorded outstanding growth in its GFA under management.
This was, to a large extent, owed to our expansion capability
in non-residential sectors developed in the past two years,
which has enabled the Group to have a steady stream of
non-residential projects added to its management portfolio,
thus alleviating the difficulties in business expansion brought
about by the current downturn in the residential property
market. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s non-residential
projects accounted for approximately 25.8% of the GFA under
management, representing an increase of 6.9 percentage points
as compared to the end of 2021, which demonstrated that there
was a significant change in our segment structure.
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TRE DN E B G E EEEER The following table sets forth the changes in the GFA under
management of the Group:

R2025128318 REE2022512A31B L E RONF1ANBREZ01F12ANBILEE
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021
NEER nEER
R KA TR U
REER HRML fhtt FEM BRE EEER BT 34
Proportion Proportion
of revenue of revenue
from from
property property
GFA under Area management Net Growth GFA under Area  management
management  proportion services increase rate  management proportion services
FEEK % % FEEA % FEIA % %
thousand thousand thousand
sq.m. % % sq.m. % sq.m % %
CIEES Seazen Group 95,403 48.1 58.4 14,799 18.4 80,604 525 63.0
F=H Third parties 102,865 51.9 4.6 29,938 M1 72,927 475 37.0
CH Total 198,268 100.0 100.0 44,737 291 153,531 100.0 100.0
TXRES A ERE R EHEZ B - The following table sets forth the breakdown of changes in the GFA

under management of the Group:

BZE12A31MBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
FE5 K F 5K
thousand sq.m. thousand sq.m.
R E ) At the beginning of the year 153,531 101,415
mEE Handover 46,875 56,593
He Including
EE—HE Handover — Seazen Group 14,962 20,936
FEE—FE=7 Handover — Third parties 31,913 35,637
Ak Termination 2,138 4,477
R E R At the end of the year 198,268 153,531
FERRBEEERAF
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TR A EEEEEBAEAEEN

The following table sets forth the sectors in
management of the Group:

respect of the GFA under

®2022%12 4318 202112 A31R
As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
KEEE HEMGTL FHE BRE TERR HEMGT
GFA under Area Net Growth GFA under Area
management proportion increase rate management proportion
FERK % FELHK % FERR %
thousand thousand thousand
5q.m. % sq.m. % 5g.m. %
FENE Residential sector 147,048 74.2 22,538 18.1 124,510 81.1
FEEME Non-residential sector 51,220 25.8 22,199 76.5 29,021 18.9
At Total 198,268 100.0 44,737 29.1 153,531 100.0

REEHNAHNEREANINIEEFH K
E20214F KR OF 12 h0 4933.98 B F F K =
22%  AHEBEFREEFE=FHEEMGL
BHIA6.7% ° E20194 #£ - J AT £ ™ 15
EBEFTEETRANES  AEERSES
BHRMEKESMEREN - 202020 - RE
EHERECENRRERERETR 8
BIERAECENSHWBEBRE LA it
BT AR EMKE - B INEF P E 8
WMIFAECEERTAERR  URMEZE
It EEERFERAEMEMMNEL R
FTEREBEAE AR ZMAMAZTENED
RISEE NETRNEE  REZRSERFR
MBEMEEERBHE R E—FHETR
MOEBEERREE - BERMMESLAE
BENRTETILSE BRI EFMENMET
BANYP KRAREZFHIEE O TE R
BCABEMNEENEFREOBRBE -

The contracted GFA of the Group was approximately 312.7 million
sg.m., representing a net increase of approximately 33.9 million
sgq.m. or 12.2% as compared to the end of 2021, of which the area
attributable to third parties accounted for approximately 46.7%.
Since 2019, we have been investing and nurturing market-oriented
development to rapidly improve our ability to identify and capture
business opportunities in the market. In 2022, the development of
private property developers slowed down significantly, but there was
a significant increase in land acquisitions by urban construction and
investment companies. Under such circumstances, we quickly entered
into partnerships with urban construction and investment companies
in cities such as Tianjin, Changzhou and Jingmen to improve the values
of their new development projects with our standardized property
management service system. At the same time, we have leveraged our
diversified logistics capabilities to cross-sell and explore the potential
property management service needs of various customers, which
further expanded our business development channels. As our market-
oriented expansion capabilities continue to improve, the proportion of
new property management contracts from third parties is increasing
year by year, and we are able to cover a wider range of sectors and
business categories.
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TXREZ A E B E A EFEEIER

The following table sets forth the changes in the contracted GFA of the

Group:

BZE2021F12A31BLEFE

B Z2022F12831ALLFE For the year ended

For the year ended 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
BHEE [ER - gid =g BRE= EHHEE [ERE=pe
Contracted Area Net Growth  Contracted Area
GFA proportion increase rate GFA proportion
FFE5 K % FEIK % FFIK %

thousand thousand thousand

5q.m. % sq.m. % 5q.m. %
IR Seazen Group 166,693 53.3 447 0.3 166,246 59.6
F=F Third parties 146,048 46.7 33,448 29.7 112,600 40.4
CE Total 312,741 100.0 33,895 12.2 278,846 100.0

TRBIAEEE A E &R R EEL

The following table sets forth the sectors in respect of the contracted
GFA of the Group:

12022612A31H R2021%12A318
As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
EHNER HENL FEM BREX BHEE [kl
Contracted Area Net Growth Contracted Area
GFA proportion increase rate GFA proportion
FELK % FEEK % FEEK %
thousand thousand thousand
sq.m. % sq.m. % 5q.m. %
FEME Residential sector 256,197 81.9 10,745 4.4 245,452 88.0
FEEME Non-residential sector 56,544 18.1 23,150 69.3 33,394 12.0
CHI Total 312,741 100.0 33,895 12.2 278,846 100.0

. # 2 15 (8 HR 7

BMAXEIRTFEAAKERER
MRS - AR TR - BIZRERY
BEEERY  BEHRRE - RiEERE
AEEMEBREREERYE  ZFE
BEEZRBERNGH KW ARM
MEZTNEPRHEEFEEREN

HEEMIERIR -

Community-related value-added services

We render public resources management services, community
engineering services, extensive decoration services, asset
management services, catering services, facility management
services and various other convenience and living services,
which cover various sectors and places, to property owners
and customers, with a view to providing them with a more
comfortable and convenient living and working environment.
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During the year, the revenue from community-related value-
added services amounted to approximately RMB1,284.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 40.3% as compared
to approximately RMB915.6 million for the corresponding
period in 2021, accounting for approximately 24.8% of the total
revenue. During the year, the revenue from value-added services
related to the Group’s great logistics grew rapidly, accounting
for approximately 46.5% of the revenue from community-
related value-added services. In particular, the revenue from the
group catering services was approximately RMB355.4 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 334.2%;
and the revenue related to facility management services was
approximately RMB242.5 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 54.2%.

o Smart community services

Smart community services mainly provide one-stop smart
solutions for various projects, covering residential properties,
office buildings and complexes.

In 2022, the revenue from smart community services of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB350.6 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 32.5% as compared to
approximately RMB519.7 million for the corresponding period in
2021, accounting for approximately 6.8% of the total revenue.

. Developer-related value-added services

We mainly provide three types of services related to property
developers, namely on-site sale assistance services, consulting
services and house inspection services.

During the year, the revenue from developer-related value-
added services amounted to approximately RMB519.5 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 36.3% as compared to
approximately RMB815.3 million for the corresponding period in
2021, accounting for approximately 10.0% of the total revenue.

Cost of Sales and Services

During the year, the cost of sales and services of the Group was
approximately RMB3,841.4 million, representing an increase of
approximately 27.7% as compared to approximately RMB3,009.2 million
for the corresponding period in 2021. The increase in cost of sales and
services was mainly due to the continued stable growth of the overall
business scale of the Group.
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EMNRENR Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin
BZ202025128310LEE BR2021512A3MBLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 For the year ended 31 December 2021
ER ENE EANEE ENERED EH EME  EFER
Percentage  Change in Percentage
Gross profit of gross gross profit Gross profit of gross
Gross profit margin profit margin  Gross profit margin profit
ARETFT % % A8 AR¥TT % %
RMB’000 % % ppt RMB'000 % %
MmEER Property management
MR % services 739,899 24.5 55.4 (5.6) 631,870 301 471
HEEERSE  Community-related value-
added services 414,120 32.2 30.9 (10.2) 387,805 42.4 28.9
TEERRHB  Smart community services 56,579 16.1 4.2 (0.4) 85,856 16.5 6.4
HEHEE Developer-related value-
MR % added services 127,542 24.6 9.5 (4.3) 236,016 28.9 17.6
ch Total 1,338,140 25.8 100.0 (5.00 1,341,547 3038 100.0

AEBHE2002F12A3BLEFENETH A
HARM13381EE T  B221FMHAR
134 SEBTRLTEN03% - EFEXRA
#4925.8% - #2021 #930.8% #8 kb T B&5.01
BN ERENENTREIZASTEBR
B EF E TR -

MEEBERBNENABOARKETIIESE
T B221F M ARK3N9BEE L K
#917.1% » EFE B 4245% - [t T F%£5.6
BEEDZ - MEETERENENETTRES
REA: ()VEBEERXEWRRSHZE M-
FTERBAETHNHIEMBEYERS
B WFRNEEBEEMTRNEFREILE
AR RiNEMNERENIETEER
fHEE IR T -

The Group recorded gross profit of approximately RMB1,338.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 0.3% as compared to approximately
RMB1,341.5 million in 2021. Gross profit margin was approximately
25.8%, representing a decrease of 5.0 percentage points as compared
to 30.8% in 2021. The decrease in overall gross profit margin was
mainly due to the decrease in the gross profit margin of all our business
segments.

Gross profit of property management services was approximately
RMB739.9 million, representing an increase of approximately 17.1%
as compared to approximately RMB631.9 million in 2021. Gross profit
margin was approximately 24.5%, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 5.6 percentage points. The decrease in the gross profit margin of
property management services was mainly due to: (i) the increase in
the costs of services as a result of the pandemic, which was mainly
reflected by the increase in the overtime wages of our employees and
pandemic prevention supplies expenses; (ii) the decline in the positive
effect of residential projects which were newly delivered on gross profit
margin; and (iii) the higher proportion of non-residential projects with
low gross profit margins.
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Gross profit of community-related value-added services was
approximately RMB414.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 6.8% as compared to approximately RMB387.8 million
in 2021. Gross profit margin was approximately 32.2%, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 10.2 percentage points. The decrease in gross
profit margin was mainly due to: (i) the rapid growth of the revenue
from the group catering business and facility management services
with low gross profit margin, which diluted the gross profit margin of
the segment; and (ii) the effect of the pandemic on the operations of
some of our businesses with fixed staff and facility costs, leading to the
decline of the gross profit margin of the businesses.

Gross profit of smart community services was approximately RMB56.6
million, representing a decrease of approximately 34.1% as compared
to approximately RMB85.9 million in 2021. Gross profit margin was
approximately 16.1%, representing a slight decrease as compared to
the previous year.

Gross profit of developer-related value-added services was
approximately RMB127.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 46.0% as compared to approximately RMB236.0 million
in 2021. Gross profit margin was approximately 24.6%, representing a
decrease of 4.3 percentage points compared with last year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately RMB481.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 13.4% as compared to
approximately RMB424.0 million in 2021. The increase in administrative
expenses was mainly due to: (i) the continued stable growth of the
Group's scale; and (ii) reserve of talents for the rapid development of
business related to the great logistics.

Other Losses — Net

The other losses of the Group were approximately RMB103.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 23.6% as compared to
approximately RMB135.8 million in 2021, which was mainly due to the
fluctuations in exchange rates during the period.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax amounted to approximately RMB152.2 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 16.8% as compared to approximately
RMB182.9 million in 2021. The decrease in tax expense was mainly due
to the decrease in the Group’s profit before income tax. The tax rate
was approximately 24.3%, representing a slight decline as compared to
approximately 24.7% in 2021.

Under the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group is
exempted from income tax in the Cayman Islands.

For the Group entities incorporated in Hong Kong, as the Group did
not derive any revenue subject to Hong Kong profits tax for the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not make provision for Hong
Kong profits tax accordingly.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
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Profit for the Year

Profit for the year of the Group was approximately RMB474.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 15.0% from approximately
RMB558.7 million in 2021; profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB423.5 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 19.4% as compared to that in 2021; and net profit
margin was approximately 9.2%, down by 3.6 percentage points over
that in 2021.

Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

As of 31 December 2022, the Group maintained a sound financial
position. As at 31 December 2022, the current assets of the Group
were RMB4,699.0 million, representing an increase of 8.4% as
compared to RMB4,336.4 million as at 31 December 2021. The
cash and cash equivalents of the Group were RMB1,973.7 million,
representing a decrease of 21.2% as compared to RMB2,504.1 million
as at 31 December 2021. The Group’s total equity as at 31 December
2022 was RMB2,908.5 million, representing an increase of 15.2% as
compared to RMB2,524.6 million as at 31 December 2021. As at 31
December 2022, the short term loans (fixed interest rate) of the Group
were only approximately RMB2.3 million, and the current ratio of the
Group was 156.1%, which was at a very stable level.

Treasury policy

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and maintain a strong and healthy
liquidity position to ensure that the Group is well-placed to capture
future growth opportunities.

Trade receivables

As at 31 December 2022, trade receivables amounted to approximately
RMB1,292.3 million, representing an increase of approximately 107.5%
as compared to approximately RMB622.8 million as at the end of last
year, which was mainly due to the rapid growth of trade receivables
from property development related business.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income of approximately RMB451.3 million
and approximately RMB6.0 million respectively, accounting for
approximately 7.4% in aggregate of the total assets of the Group as at
31 December 2022. Such financial assets mainly include investments in
various wealth management products of licensed banks and unlisted
trust plans, as well as investments in listed bonds denominated in
US dollars. The Board considers any single investment with fair value
accounting for more than 5% of the total assets of the Group as
significant investment. As the Group did not have any single investment
accounting for 5% or more of the total assets of the Group as at 31
December 2022, the Group did not hold any significant investments.
As at 31 December 2022, the Company had no plans for any significant
investments in the future.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held by

EETTAEZSZERMEE the Group as at 31 December 2022
B £2022%12831H
M2022%12A31A8 LHEE
For the year ended
As at 31 December 2022 31 December 2022
HAKE SFABERMN
BmEEMELD DNREE
DMREHE BABEIE WE(FE) H i A
Approximate
percentage Fair value
of the total gains/(losses)
assets of the through profit
Fair value Group or loss Other income
AR¥Fr % AR®Fr AR¥F7
REME Nature of investments RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
EARBEFAEEMN Financial assets at fair value
EREE: through profit or loss:
EEEMRES Trust products and funds 241,465 3.9 — 1,583
ERXLETES Listed bonds denominated in US dollars 80,636 1.3 (122,598) 27,923
FELEHRBEERKE  Investments in preferred shares and
EERE debts of unlisted companies 129,224 2.1 (2,643) 10,945
&t Total 451,325 7.3 (125,241) 40,451
H £2022512A31H
20225128318 LFE
For the year ended
As at 31 December 2022 31 December 2022
HASE it RES
BmEEMELN ERRE
DMREE BRABED L BX H At e A
Approximate Accrued
percentage expected
of the total credit
assets of the impairment
Fair value Group loss Other income
AR¥FT % AR¥F7 AR¥F
REME Nature of investments RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
BAREETA Financial assets at fair value
Htt2EU AW through other comprehensive
cREE: income:
ETLEMESR Listed bonds denominated in US dollars 5,996 0.1 (49,889) —
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Due to higher price fluctuations of the listed bonds denominated in US
dollars, fair value losses and accrued expected credit impairment losses
were recognised by the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022. The Directors will continuously monitor the price movements and
make fair value adjustments accordingly.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not pledge any assets.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

As at 31 December 2022, the cash balances held by the Group were as

wmR follows:
7A2022F128318 20214128318
As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
AR T ARMF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ETT usD 96,831 16,879
AR RMB 1,860,514 2,427,371
BT HKD 16,351 59,852
&5 Total 1,973,696 2,504,102
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%{ﬁ&%iﬁl%/\ﬁmn‘l'@ AEBEBAEET
\,,nﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁuuim)}%’%ﬁ/\ﬁ’%ﬂ’]ﬂ
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* EHHES

Almost all of the Group’s operating activities are carried out in the
PRC with most of the transactions denominated in Renminbi. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure
of U.S. dollars and Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi as a result
of certain cash balances. We will closely monitor the fluctuations of
exchange rates and give prudent consideration as whether to enter into
any currency swap arrangement as and when appropriate to hedge
corresponding risks.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In January 2023, the Group entered into an equity acquisition
agreement with Ms. Wang Ting (£ #2), agreeing to acquire its 70%
equity interests in Shanghai Xiangxi Property Management Co., Ltd.*
(L8 EYEETIEARBRAAR) which became a subsidiary of the
Group since the acquisition date. As of the date of this annual report,
the initial accounting for such acquired subsidiaries was incomplete
and was still under review by the management and thus no relevant
financial information was disclosed.

*  For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Qi Xiaoming, aged 54, is our chairman, executive Director, chief
executive officer and general manager. He also serves as the chairman
and executive director of Tibet Xinchengyue Property Services Co.,
Ltd. (“Tibet Xinchengyue”). Mr. Qi joined the Group in January 2015
and has been responsible for the overall business operation of the
Group, directly managing project development and customer service.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qi served as the assistant manager of
the executive management department in Jiangsu Seazen Co., Ltd.
("Jiangsu Seazen”), a subsidiary of Seazen Group (as define below)
and the assistant president and general manager in Changzhou Future
Land Property Development Co., Ltd. ("Changzhou Future Land”),
Chengzhong Branch from September 2002 to March 2015. He also
served as the assistant president of Seazen Group Limited (stock code:
1030, together with its subsidiaries, collectively (“Seazen Group”) a
company which is listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), from March 2015 to June
2016. Jiangsu Seazen and Changzhou Future Land are the subsidiaries
of Seazen Group.

In July 1992, Mr. Qi graduated from Hefei University of Technology
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering.

Mr. Gao Xinli, aged 43, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief operating officer of the Company in July 2021. Mr. Gao joined
the Group in November 2020, and has been responsible for operation
management and customer service management of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Gao served as the executive deputy general
manager in the Planning Management Centre of Seazen Holdings
Co., Ltd* (G iE R & E X » B R 2 7)) (“Seazen Holdings”), a
subsidiary of the Seazen Group listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 601155), from July 2008 to December 2016, served
as the general manager in Taixing Future Land Wanbo Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (FEH M EFFERZF AR A7) from
January 2017 to December 2018, and served as a member of the 13th
Session of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference of
Taixing, Jiangsu in 2017. He also served as the general manager in the
Planning Management Centre of Seazen Holdings from January 2019 to
October 2020.

Mr. Gao graduated from School of Civil Engineering of Southeast

University with a master’s degree in management in June 2008,
majoring in management science and engineering.

*  For identification purpose only
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Ms. Wu Qiangian, aged 39, is an executive Director and has been
responsible for the Group’s post-investment management. Ms. Wu
joined the Group in August 2012 and has assumed multiple positions,
including the Company’s deputy general manager (responsible for
customer service) and regional general manager of Suzhou. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Wu served as the customer service manager and
sales manager of Changzhou Future Land from June 2007 to July 2012.

In June 2006, Ms. Wu graduated from Yancheng Teachers University
with a bachelor’s degree in management.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaosong, aged 35, joined the Group in July 2019 as a
non-executive Director. Mr. Wang joined Jiangsu Seazen in 2009, as a
civil engineer and subsequently as a project manager. From November
2011 to January 2013, Mr. Wang became the vice president and general
manager of the marketing department of Jiangsu Seazen, responsible
for and gained valuable experience in sales and market research. Mr.
Wang has served as a director of Jiangsu Seazen since April 2013.
In February 2013, Mr. Wang was appointed as president of Jiangsu
Seazen, and has been responsible for its general management; and
from 14 December 2015 to 26 October 2016, he served as the general
manager of Seazen Holdings. Since March 2015, Mr. Wang has been
a director of Seazen Holdings. He served as the president of Seazen
Holdings from 24 August 2018 to January 2021 and was re-appointed
as the president of Seazen Holdings on 19 January 2023. He served as
the chairman of Seazen Holdings since 3 July 2019. Mr. Wang has acted
as a non-executive director of the Seazen Group since October 2013.

Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing University with a bachelor’s degree
in Environmental Sciences in 2009.

Mr. Lv Xiaoping, aged 61, has been serving as our non-executive
Director since April 2018. Before joining the Group, he served as
the deputy general manager of Jiangsu Xincheng Enterprise Group
Co., Ltd. from September 2001 to August 2004, and as the general
manager of Seazen Holdings from 30 March 2015 to 15 December
2015. From August 2004 to February 2013, Mr. Lv served as a director
and the president of Jiangsu Seazen, principally responsible for the
overall management of the Group’s residential property development
business carried out by Jiangsu Seazen. From February 2013 to January
2016, Mr. Lv served as the vice chairman of Jiangsu Seazen and has
been acting as a director of Seazen Holdings since December 2015.
In November 2012, Mr. Lv was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Seazen Group. He was appointed as an executive director and
the chief executive officer in January 2016 and has been holding the
positions until now.
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Mr. Lv graduated from Naval University of Engineering in July 1983 with
a bachelor’s degree in engineering and graduated from China Europe
International Business School with an MBA degree in June 2007.

Mr. Lu Zhongming, aged 51, has been serving as our non-executive
Director since April 2018. From December 2001 to May 2010, he served
as the general manager of the finance department of Jiangsu Seazen.
From June 2010 to March 2015, he served as the vice president of
Seazen Holdings. In March 2015, Mr. Lu joined Seazen Group and has
been serving as the vice president and was appointed as an executive
director since 2016.

In June 1999, Mr. Lu graduated from Nanjing Institute of Economics
and was conferred an MBA degree by Tongji University in December
2013.

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan, aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director.
She was an independent director of Tibet Xinchengyue from August
2016 to February 2018. Before joining the Group, Ms. Zhang worked
for Changzhou Accounting Firm as a clerk, deputy director and director
between August 1992 and December 1998. From January 1999 to
December 2000, she served as the chairman and chief accountant of
Changzhou Zhengda Accounting Firm Co., Ltd. Later, she joined Jiangsu
Gongzheng Accounting Firm in January 2001 and had been serving
as the managing deputy chief accountant and director of the firm's
Changzhou branch until August 2008. Since August 2008, Ms. Zhang
has been an associate professor at Business School of Jiangsu University
of Technology. From December 2011 to December 2017, Ms. Zhang
served as an independent non-executive director of EGing Photovoltaic
Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange,
SSE stock code: 600537), and served as an independent non-executive
director of Jiangsu Changhai Composite Materials Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, SZSE stock code: 300196) from
February 2016 to May 2022. Ms. Zhang has been an independent
non-executive director of Changchai Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, SZSE stock code: 000570) since April 2020
and an independent non-executive director of Jiangsu Tianmu Lake
Tourism Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, SSE
stock code:603136) since February 2021.

In June 1992, Ms. Zhang graduated from Finance and Economics School
of Soochow University with a bachelor’s degree in economics. She was
certified as a senior accountant and registered appraiser in 2002 and
2011 respectively.
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Mr. Zhu Wei, aged 61, is our independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Zhu was an independent director of Tibet Xinchengyue from August
2016 to February 2018. Since June 1994, Mr. Zhu has been working in
Jiangsu Zhuhui Law Firm and has served as a partner, director and the
chairman of partners’ meetings. Since December 2002, Mr. Zhu has
also been serving as a postgraduate tutor in Soochow University. From
October 2015 to February 2022, Mr. Zhu served as an independent
non-executive director of Changzhou Langbo Sealing Technology Co.,
Ltd. (@ company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, SSE stock code:
603655).

In July 1983, Mr. Zhu graduated from Southwest University of Political
Science and Law with a bachelor’s degree in law. He was conferred
a diploma in law by the University of London in December 1997 and
a doctoral degree in constitutional law and administrative law by
Soochow University in June 2007 respectively. In August 1998, Mr. Zhu
was certified as a national first-grade lawyer.

Mr. Xu Xinmin, aged 72, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Xu has the title of economist and has accumulated over 22 years
of experience in the real estate industry. Mr. Xu served as the deputy
secretary general of the China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce
where he was in charge of the work under the research committee
for community services from December 2014 to December 2017.
From August 1992 to February 2001, Mr. Xu acted as the director of
the department of housing management of Changzhou Real Estate
Administration Bureau in Jiangsu and subsequently the director of the
property management office of Changzhou Real Estate Administration
Bureau in Jiangsu. From March 2001 to April 2010, Mr. Xu served
as the director of the general affairs department of China Property
Management Institute. Mr. Xu served as the deputy secretary general of
China Property Management Institute from March 2001 to April 2010,
where he was mainly responsible for overseeing the organization and
implementation of nationwide property management demonstration
evaluation and acceptance. In July 2001, Mr. Xu was appointed as a
senior consultant of the Property Management Committee of Chinese
Universities. Since September 2014, Mr. Xu has been an independent
non-executive director of Colour Life Services Group Co., Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1778).

In June 2005, Mr. Xu graduated from Beijing Forestry University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zuo Wei, aged 45, is the chief financial officer of the Company.
Mr. Zuo joined the Group in April 2019 and has been responsible for
the finance and accounting of the Group. Mr. Zuo has over 22 years of
experience in professional accounting and financial management. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zuo served as multiple financial management
positions in Shanghai, Nanjing, Chongging and other regional branches
of Vanke Group from July 2001 to August 2015. From August 2015 to
October 2017, he served as the deputy general manager in Shanghai
business division of CIFI Holdings Group. From October 2017 to April
2019, Mr. Zuo served as the general manager of financial management
department in residential development business division of Seazen
Holdings.

Mr. Zuo graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
with a bachelor’'s degree in management in July 2001, majoring in
accounting, and completed the MBA study at Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law, obtaining his master’s degree of MBA in December
2012.

Mr. You lJianfeng, aged 44, is the chief strategy officer of the
Company. Mr. You joined the Group in January 2016 and has been
responsible for strategic management and investor relationship of
the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. You worked in Adfaith
Management Consulting Inc. from July 2002 to August 2006, and
served as a senior analyst in Shanghai Huijiang Real Estate Consulting
Co., Ltd. from July 2007 to February 2011. From February 2011 to
April 2012, he was the product management director of Noah Private
Wealth Management Co., Ltd. and the product management director
of Shanghai Fanghui Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.
from April 2012 to November 2013. From November 2013 to December
2015, he served as the financing director and vice general manager of
the financial management department of Jiangsu Seazen.

In July 2002, Mr. You graduated from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University with a bachelor’s degree in economics
majoring in finance, and obtained his bachelor’s degree in management
by finishing a minor in e-commerce in Department of Computer Science
and Technology. In June 2008, he was conferred a master’'s degree of
MBA by Fudan University.
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Mr. Yang Bo, aged 38, is the chief marketing officer of the Company.
Mr. Yang joined the Group in March 2021 and has been responsible for
community-related value-added services of the Group. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Yang served as a design manager and an assistant
general manager of the design management department of Seazen
Holdings from July 2008 to March 2014, the assistant general manager
of Shanghai branch of Seazen Holdings from April 2014 to May 2014,
and the general manager of Shanghai Chengbei Information Technology
Co., Ltd. ()8 % Bz EH T AR 22 7)) under the Seazen Group from
June 2014 to May 2015. From June 2015 to February 2021, he served as
the general manager of Jiangsu Yungui Network Technology Co., Ltd.
CTERZ B4 4 it A BR 2 7)) under Seazen Group.

Mr. Yang graduated from the School of Geography and Ocean Science,
Nanjing University with a bachelor’s degree in science majoring in
urban planning in July 2008.

Mr. Hu Zixuan, aged 34, is the chief digital officer of the Company.
Mr. Hu joined the Group in April 2019 and has been responsible for
the Group’s information and smart community business. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Hu assumed asset management and information
management positions in Seazen Group from March 2015 to April 2019,
and successively served as the director in asset management center and
the deputy general manager in information management center. From
March 2014 to February 2015, he served as the general manager of
Beijing Fengle Technology Company Limited* (1t R LR B BR A F).
From March 2013 to February 2014, he served as the product manager
in Lenovo Corporate Research & Development in Beijing.

Mr. Hu graduated from University of Toronto in Canada in June 2012
with a bachelor’s degree in applied science majoring in electronic
engineering.

Mr. Dong lJiahua, aged 45, is the deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Dong joined the Group in March 2021 and has been
responsible for the management of the Group's elevator business.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong worked in Jiangsu Xincheng
Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. from July 2000 to June 2002, Guangdong
Yida Textile Co., Ltd. (BEE @ EH AR A A]) from July 2002 to
August 2003, Shanghai Dafeng Computer Co., Ltd. (E /B ZEZEKE
R A &) from September 2003 to August 2004, and Shanghai Oasis
Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (E/B&ZMNEMELEGRAF) from
September 2004 to October 2008. From October 2008 to May 2019,
he served as the financing manager, assistant general manager and
deputy general manager of the financial management center and
the deputy general manager of the financing management center of
Jiangsu Seazen. From May 2019 to February 2021, he served as the
executive deputy general manager of Yungui branch under the Seazen
Group.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Dong graduated from the School of Finance and Management,
South-Central Minzu University with a bachelor's degree in accounting
in July 2000 and a master's degree in business administration of Wuhan
University in September 2012.

Ms. Xie Yong, aged 45, is the chief investment officer of the Company.
Ms. Xie joined the Group in March 2019 and has been responsible
for the Group’s project expansion and merger and acquisition. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Xie assumed the position of investment and
expansion in the Enterprise Development Centre of A-Living Property
Management Group (HEAE = R EE) from November 2017 to
February 2019, and successively served as the deputy general manager
in the Enterprise Development Centre of A-Living Property Management
Group (#E 4 V& ¥ % BR 75 %£ E ) and the general manager of the
Enterprise Development Centre of Greenland Property. From June 2016
to November 2017, she served as the head of Tianjin Longfor Property.
From March 2012 to May 2016, she served as the general manager
in Real Estate Division of Shanxi Mingliang Group (ILI7588 525 &)
and served as the deputy general manager in Real Estate Company of
Shanxi Zhuoyi International Investment Group (1L 78 S (B H R & £ H)
from March 2008 to March 2012.

Ms. Xie graduated from Sapporo University in Japan in September 2002
majoring in business administration.

Mr. Lu Bingli, aged 41, is the chief technology officer of the Company.
Mr. Lu joined the Group in April 2019 and has been responsible for the
Group's information management business. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Lu assumed real estate information management position in Seazen
Group from April 2008 to April 2019 and served as the assistant
general manager in information management center.

Mr. Lu graduated from Jiujiang University in June 2006 majoring in
computer network engineering and graduated from Fudan University in
2020 with a bachelor’s degree majoring in business management.
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The Board is pleased to submit the report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended on 31 December
2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are property management
services, including property and equipment maintenance, security
services, cleaning services, gardening services, public area maintenance
and other property management related services, and value-added
services, including developer-related value-added services, community
related value-added services and smart community services. For the
analysis of the Group’s principal activities for the year ended 31
December 2022, see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS

For the Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2022, see
the section headed “Financial and Business Summary” of this annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.16
per share for the year ended 31 December 2022. The final dividend
is still subject to approval by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 28 June 2023 (the “AGM"), and is expected to be paid on 18
July 2023 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 5 July 2023.

Our dividend policy

Subject to the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, through a general
meeting we may declare dividends in any currency but no dividend shall
be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the Board. The
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”)
provide that dividends may be declared and paid out of our profit,
realised or unrealised, or from any reserve of the Company lawfully
available for distribution including share premium.
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The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Directors, and the amounts of dividends actually declared and paid will
also depend upon the following factors:

° our general business conditions;
° our financial results;

° our capital requirements;

° interests of our Shareholders; and

any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.

Our future dividend payments to our Shareholders will also depend
upon the availability of dividends received from our subsidiaries in
the PRC. PRC laws require that dividends be paid out of the net profit
calculated according to PRC accounting principles, which differ in
certain aspects from HKFRSs. PRC laws also require enterprises located
in the PRC to set aside part of their net profit as statutory reserves
before they distribute the net proceeds. These statutory reserves
are not available for distribution as cash dividends. Furthermore,
distributions from our subsidiaries may be restricted if they incur debts
or losses or as a result of any restrictive covenants in bank credit
facilities or other agreements that we or our subsidiaries may enter into
in the future.

Any final dividend for a fiscal year will be subject to our Shareholders’
approval. The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

KEY RISK FACTORS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following contents list out the key risks and uncertainties
confronted by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may
be other risks and uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined
below.

Industry Risk

The Group's operations are subject to the regulatory environment and
measures affecting the property management industry in the PRC. In
particular, the fees that property management companies may charge
for property management services are subject to regulation and
supervision by relevant regulatory authorities. The Group’s business
performance primarily depends on the GFA under management and
the number of projects that the Group is providing services to, but the
Group's business growth is, and will likely continue to be, affected by
the PRC government regulations relating to the industries in which the
Group operates.
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Business Risk

The Group’s ability to maintain or improve the Group’s current
profitability of various services depends on the Group's ability to
control operating costs (particularly labour costs) and the Group’s profit
margins and results of operations may be materially and adversely
affected by the increase in labour or other operating costs. The Group
may not procure new service contracts as planned or at desirable
pace or price. The Group may not be able to collect service fees from
customers and as a result, may incur impairment losses on receivables.
Termination or non-renewal of the Group's service contracts could have
a material adverse effect on business, financial position and results of
operations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements. The Group has been allocating system and staff
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations and
to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators. During the
year, save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report below, the Company has complied, to the
best of our knowledge, with the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Listing Rules, the SFO, and other relevant rules and regulations.
Besides, the subsidiaries within the Group continue to comply with
their applicable local laws. During the year, save as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this
report below, the Company was not aware of any particular law
and regulation that would have a significant impact on the Group's
operation.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group firmly believes that sustainability plays an important role
in its development and is actively applying its ideas to every detail
of the business operations and devoted to delivering a better future
for the society and the Company as well. The subsidiaries within the
Group have implemented relevant environmental protection measures,
and follow the Group's general policy on energy saving and emission
reduction, in order to minimise the environmental damage caused
during the course of business of the Group.

The subsidiaries of the Company in China strictly comply with the
country’s environmental laws and regulations and were not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant standards, rules and
regulations during the year.

For further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, which will be reported separately from this report
and will be published at the same time with this Annual Report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results and summary of assets and liabilities of the Group during
the last five financial years are set out on page 9 to page 11 of this
annual report. The summary shall not constitute a part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Use of proceeds from Placing

On 16 March 2021, the Company and Citigroup Global Markets
Limited and CLSA Limited (the “Placing Agents”) entered into a
placing agreement, pursuant to which the Placing Agents agreed on
an individual (rather than joint nor joint and individual) basis to place
(the “Placing”) up to 50,000,000 new ordinary shares (the “Placing
Shares”) on a best efforts basis at a price of HK$20.80 per share. The
aggregate nominal value of the Placing Shares is US$500,000, while
the net placing price (after deducting related costs and expenses to
be borne by the Company) is approximately HK$20.64 per share. The
Directors are of the view that the Placing will raise funds to consolidate
the financial position of the Group, provide a good opportunity
to broaden the shareholder base and capital base of the Group to
facilitate future development, and increase the liquidity of the shares.
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The Placing was completed on 23 March 2021. A total of 50,000,000
Placing Shares were successfully placed to not less than six placees
at a placing price of HK$20.80 per Placing Share. The Company has
received the net proceeds from the Placing of approximately HK$1,032
million (equivalent to approximately RMB864.3 million) (after deducting
the relevant costs and expenses to be borne by the Company). The
closing price quoted on the Stock Exchange on 16 March 2021, being
the date of announcement of the Placing, was HKD21.80 per share.
As at 31 December 2022, the Company has utilised the net proceeds
in accordance with the plans as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 17 March 2021, the particulars of which are as follows:

Net proceeds (RMB million)
FEXERE(FEARY)
Unused  Used during the Unused
as at year ended asat

31 December 31 December 31 December  Expected time of
Item Percentage Available 2021 2022 2022 using unused proceeds
R2021E12A318 R02ENANA RUNENANA  FBRFEHENAENES
A BOl L) ABA LEERHA A8 EH
KENZERLT 60% 518.6 254 155.9 695  03FNANALZE
Acquisition of property management companies On or before
31 December 2023
YEEARAHREERBERRENTHAT 30% 253 1026 4.0 616 203F12A318% 28
Acquisition of downstream companies that are On or before
complementary to the Company’s community-related 31 December 2023
value-added service business
TGS HEERRS 10% 86.4 137 737 - WBENRANBHZE
Upgrade of information technology infrastructure On or before
31 December 2023
4
Total 100% 8643 4017 206 1311
FTEREFRHEER MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
FTEEF Major Customers

HE202FN2A3MBLEFE  AEBAIRA
BEMRFBEAEERIAMN21.7% (2021 :
355%) MAKEZE—HZARFNRSE
IR EE B U A H20.9% (2021 :34.5%) °

RBEHN - BREREREN  BEES
FARENETHEAREARRBEES
FIABEAEARRMEHITRMOBEMNS%IA L)
RAEBRAREPHHER L -

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the turnover with the top
5 customers of the Group accounts for 21.7% of the Group’s total
revenue (2021: 35.5%), while the turnover with the largest single
customer of the Group accounts for 20.9% of the Group's revenue
(2021: 34.5%).

During the Reporting Period, except Mr. Wang Zhenhua, none of the
Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the Shareholders
(who to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the issued shares of the Company) had any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers.
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Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the turnover with the top 5
suppliers of the Group accounts for 4.7% of the Group’s cost of sales
(2021: 12.6%), while the turnover with the largest single supplier of the
Group accounts for 1.3% of the Group’s total purchase amount (2021:
5.8%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, or any of their close
associates, or any of the Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the issued shares of the Company)
had any interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group always adheres to a people-oriented approach, respects
labor and talents, and regards employees as one of the key partners
in promoting the sustainable development of the Group. The Group
provides all employees with a fair and equitable scope of employment, a
healthy and safe working environment, a competitive remuneration and
welfare system, a scientific and sound training system, multichannel
promotion opportunities and rich and colourful employee activities, to
enhance their sense of belonging and happiness, and to achieve mutual
growth of the employees and the Group.

The Group also understood that it was important to maintain good
relationship with customers, suppliers and other business partners
to achieve its long-term goals, therefore, our management had
established effective communication, promptly exchanged ideas and
shared business update with them when appropriate. During the year,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and
its customers, suppliers or other business partners.

GEARING RATIO

Our gearing ratio was calculated based on total borrowings divided by
total equity as of the respective date. As at 31 December 2022, our
gearing ratio is 0.1% (as at 31 December 2021: 0%).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out on note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out on note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Companies
Act, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands (the “Companies Act”), amounted to approximately
RMB640.1 million (as at 31 December 2021: RMB912.0 million).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out on note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Directors were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Mr. Gao Xinli
Ms. Wu Qiangian

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Xiaosong
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, the Board
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint a
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the
first annual general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
shall be eligible to be re-elected as a Director at that meeting.

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association, at every
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall retain office
until the close of the meeting at which he retires and shall be eligible
for re-election thereat.
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Therefore, Mr. Qi Xiaoming, Mr. Wang Xiaosong and Mr. Xu Xinmin
shall retire from office by rotation and have offered themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
circular to be sent to the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on page 27 to page 33 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive Director made in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent during the year ended 31
December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company with a term of three years. The respective executive
Directors or the Company may terminate the contract by a prior written
notice of at least three months. The appointment of an executive
Director shall be in accordance with the requirements on Directors’
retirement by rotation under the Articles of Association and applicable
Listing Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the Company with
a term of three years. In accordance with their respective letters of
appointment, each of the independent non-executive Directors is
entitled to receive a fixed amount of director’'s emoluments while the
non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any remuneration.
Relevant appointments shall be in accordance with the requirements on
Directors’ retirement by rotation under the Articles of Association and
applicable Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contracts with any members of the Group, excluding the
contracts expiring within a year or may be terminated by the employers
without paying any compensation (legal compensations excluded).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The 2023 Seazen Framework Agreement (the “2023 Seazen
Framework Agreement”) was entered into between Jiangsu
Xinchengyue Holdings Company Limited (an indirect subsidiary of
the Company) (“Jiangsu Xinchengyue”) and Seazen Holdings
on 28 October 2022 (after trading hours), in relation to provision
of certain property related services to Seazen Holdings; the 2023
Services Framework Agreement (the “2023 Services Framework
Agreement”) was entered into between Jiangsu Xinchengyue and Mr.
Wang Xiaosong (as attorney for and on behalf of Mr. Wang Zhenhua,
a controlling Shareholder) on 28 October 2022 (after trading hours) in
relation to provision of certain property related services to Mr. Wang’s
associated companies (excluding the Seazen Holdings), for a term of
one year from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 subject to the
2023 Services Annual Cap. The 2023 Services Framework Supplemental
Agreement (the “2023 Services Framework Supplemental
Agreement”) was entered into between Jiangsu Xinchengyue and Mr.
Wang Xiaosong on 8 December 2022 (after trading hours) in relation to
the adjustment of the 2023 Services Annual Cap.

The above agreements relate to the provision of certain property
related services to companies (including the Seazen Group) in which
Mr. Wang Zhenhua can exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more
of the voting power at their general meetings and their subsidiaries.
Mr. Wang Xiaosong is the son of Mr. Wang Zhenhua, thus, was
considered as having a material interest in the 2023 Services Framework
Agreement. Such transactions were approved by the independent
Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 29 December 2022.

Save for the transactions, arrangements or contracts set out above
and in the sections titled “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Directors’ Report” of this
annual report and note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, no
other transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a person who was a Director or his or her
connected entity had, directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this Directors’ Report, no % controlling Shareholders
or its subsidiary had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance, whether for the provision of services
or otherwise, to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December
2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were entered
into or existed during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 26,681 full time
employees in the PRC. Total employee benefit expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately RMB1,940.2
million, which included (i) wages, salaries and bonuses, (ii) pension
costs, (iii) housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances, (iv) other employee benefits and (v) share option scheme,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”.

The Company persists in establishing and optimizing a value-oriented
unified remuneration system based on a proactive and effective
incentive mechanism, materializing optimization of resources allocation
and maximization of corporate efficiency; adhering to the philosophy
of market allocation based on value of position, contribution in terms
of capability and performance difference; maintaining competitiveness
of remuneration, attracting, motivating and retaining core staff. Staff
remuneration is mainly comprised of wages of different positions,
wages in terms of performance, allowances and grants, and social
insurance.

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
remuneration policy and structure for the remunerations of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

Details of the remunerations of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out on note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
PROGRAMS

The details of the Company’s retirement and employee benefit
programs are set out on note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES

The Directors confirm that no information is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

On 19 January 2023, Mr. Wang Xiaosong was appointed as the
president of Seazen Holdings.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO
(including interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by
the Company, or which were otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:
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RELABREBERZHFRE Long position in the Company’s ordinary shares
FRRAR REEN
HERGHE Aol
Number of
sharesand  Approximate
underlying percentage of

Espgs Name of Directors BOREEMEE Identity and nature of interest shares held  shareholding

/N Qi Xiaoming EGHMBEARETLZEA  Beneficial owner and trust beneficiary ~ 4,960,000(L)@ 0.57%

REH Gao Xinli EGHMBEARETLZEA  Beneficial owner and trust beneficiary ~ 1,770,000(L)® 0.20%

RERE Wu Qiangian EGHMBEARETLZEA  Beneficial owner and trust beneficiary — 1,262,022(L)@ 0.14%

B 5 - Notes:

1. FEILUXRTRBROZIFAE - 1. The letter “L" denotes the long position in shares.

2. H B 3E R /N BA S A E AN A B FR20184F 10820 2. Including Mr. Qi Xiaoming's interests in 450,000 share options granted by the
A ?9? MEERESE((BRESTE]IETHAX Company under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 20 October

N AR #9450,0000 R E PR R - AR 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme”), and 900,000 underlying award shares upon
EARRAR2019F 11 A1SB KA AR 15 88 B 51 &1 full vesting of the awards granted by the Company under the share award scheme
((ROEBAEDETAHRAQRRE DA adopted by the Company on 15 November 2019 (the “Share Award Scheme").
51 900,000 X MR R BIRGL P B R -

3. HPaERAANEERNBREFEETHAR 3. Including Mr. Gao Xinli's interests in 945,000 share options granted by the
A F H #945,000 R R HE R - A KRR Company under the Share Option Scheme and 600,000 underlying award shares
HRBFTEBETHEAARBRENKBDERSES upon full vesting of the awards granted by the Company under the Share Award
1% #600,000 R HA SR R HD P A R - Scheme.

4. HEFAEREBLRITRBREFEETHAEAR 4. Including Ms. Wu Qiangian’s interests in 1,000,000 share options granted by the
A #% H #91,000,00017 IR E R EE R - AR Company under the Share Option Scheme and 200,000 underlying award shares
BROZBAEETHAARAREOEDEHE upon full vesting of the awards granted by the Company under the Share Award
& 1% §9200,000 R AHBA B AR th h HE A 25 Scheme.

B E X EEE SN - R2022912A318 @ & Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the

EERARAZEITERABRERRHEM Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
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position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interests
and short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by the Company, or
which were otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
there were no rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were there any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its
controlled companies, or affiliates and their subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
corporations.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
in accordance with Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required to be entered in the register kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

REAREBRZHR Long position in the Company’s ordinary shares
BREHL
FEROEE Bl
Approximate
Number of percentage of
RREE Name of Shareholders & #HRE#FME Identity and nature of interest shares held  shareholding
FiRE Wang Zhenhua (“Mr. 2REEANEIRA Founder of a discretionary trust ~ 600,000,000(L) 68.87%
(EF%:3) Wang") GEY) (Note 2)
Chen Ting Sen (PTC) Chen Ting Sen (PTC) A3 Trustee (Note 3) 600,000,000(L) 68.87%
Limited Limited
Infinity Fortune Infinity Fortune S EEEL (MIFE3)  Interest in a controlled corporation  600,000,000(L) 68.87%
Development Limited Development Limited (Note 3)
First Priority Group First Priority Group SPEEED(HFE3)  Interestin a controlled corporation  600,000,000(L) 68.87%
Limited Limited (Note 3)
Wealth Zone Hong Kong  Wealth Zone Hong Kong &2 B # % (fi754)  Interest in a controlled corporation  600,000,000(L) 68.87%
Investments Limited Investments Limited (Note 4)
Innovative Hero Limited  Innovative Hero Limited & % # & A (Ffi 5£5) Beneficial owner (Note 5) 600,000,000(L) 68.87%
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Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes the long position in shares.

2. Mr. Wang was the founder of Hua Sheng Trust, through which, Chen Ting Sen
(PTC) Limited held long position in 600,000,000 shares through its controlled
corporations in its capacity as the trustee.

3. Chen Ting Sen (PTC) Limited, as trustee of Hua Sheng Trust, which was established
by Mr. Wang as settlor in favor of his family members, held 100% of the issued
share capital of Infinity Fortune Development Limited, which in turn held 100% of
the issued share capital of First Priority Group Limited.

4. Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited is 100% held by First Priority Group
Limited.

5. Innovative Hero Limited is 100% held by Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2022, the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any persons
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange in accordance with Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by a written
resolution of the Shareholders on 20 October 2018 (the “Adoption
Date”).

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group.
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Participants of the scheme

The Board may, at their absolute discretion, invite any person belonging
to any of the following classes of participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares:

Any employee (whether full time or part time) of our Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which our Group
holds any equity interest, including:

(@) any executive director of our Company, its subsidiaries or
Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of our Company, its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(©) any senior management of our Company, its subsidiaries or
Invested Entity;

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the options may
be granted to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants. For the avoidance
of doubt, any person who falls within any of the above classes shall
not, by itself, unless the Board otherwise determines, be construed as a
grantee of option under the Share Option Scheme.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to our
Company as consideration for the grant.

Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of our Company must not in aggregate exceed
80,000,000 shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"), being 10% of the
shares in issue on 6 November 2018 (the “Listing Date"”) (but taking
no account of any shares which may be issued under the exercise
of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the prospectus of the
Company dated 24 October 2018 (the “Prospectus”), and representing
approximately 9.18% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this report. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the Scheme Mandate Limit.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised or outstanding options) to each eligible
person in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of our Company for the time being (the “Individual Limit").
Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
must be subject to the issue of a circular to the Shareholders and the
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of our Company with such
eligible person and its associates abstaining from voting.

Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An option may be accepted by an eligible person within 15 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the option.

Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions on
the exercise of the option, an option may be exercised one year after
the date on which the option is granted and shall expire on the earlier
of the last day of (i) a six-year period from the date of such grant; and
(i) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.

Exercise price of options

The exercise price for shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations on the date of grant of that option, which must be
a business day; (ii) the average closing price of shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of that option; and (iii) the nominal value
of the shares.
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Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of six years
commencing from the Adoption Date.

As at 1 January 2022, the number of options available for grant under
the Share Option Scheme was 21,195,000. As at 31 December 2022,
the number of options available for grant under the Share Option
Scheme was 15,625,000.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme as at the date of this annual report is 51,990,000, which is
approximately 5.97% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this annual report.

For further information regarding the Share Option Scheme, see
“Statutory and General Information — Share Option Scheme” of the
Prospectus. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is around 1
year and 7 months.

On 2 September 2019 (the "Date of First Granting”), a total of
16,000,000 share options (the “First Batch Share Options”) were
granted to 3 executive Directors and 29 employees of the Company.
Closing price per share immediately preceding the Date of First
Granting is HK$5.86. The First Batch Share Options are valid for a
period commencing from the Date of First Granting until 19 October
2024, and vesting of the First Batch Share Options is conditional upon
the fulfilment of the following conditions:

(i) upon 12 months from the Date of First Granting, and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”,
40% of the total number of the First Batch Share Options;

(i) upon 24 months from the Date of First Granting, and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”,
30% of the total number of the First Batch Share Options; and
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(iii) upon 36 months from the Date of First Granting, and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”,
30% of the total number of the First Batch Share Options.

On 30 June 2020 (the "Date of Second Granting”), a total of
2,960,000 share options (the “Second Batch Share Options”) were
granted to 10 employees of the Company. Closing price per share
immediately preceding the Date of Second Granting is HK$19.54. The
Second Batch Share Options are valid for a period commencing from
the Date of Second Granting until 19 October 2024, and vesting of the
Second Batch Share Options is conditional upon the fulfilment of the
following conditions:

F-HBREHE HE A BEKRG

No. of Second Batch

Share Options Vesting Date Vesting Conditions

30% KI5 — 4t B AR 20214 6A30H BHZE2020F12A318 L FEHEEH E2019F 12 A3 L FE AR Al #

30% of the Second Batch 30 June 2021
Share Options

30% ) & — HEBE AR 20229 6A30H

30% of the Second Batch 30 June 2022
Share Options

40% B 5 Z#t BB IR R 2023F6A30H

40% of the Second Batch 30 June 2023
Share Options

HREREGFFEMEL  BEZELI0%RFEBAARRELERE
®’IZER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 has an increment of at least 40% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HE2021F12A3MBLEFEHE E2019F12A3H EEFE AR A E R
MRERFE(RFFDEARLL - B ED120% REEEARRELEHAK]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 has an increment of at least 120% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

BZE2022F 128318 L FEEBF2019F2A3MBIEFEAR AR
MR EAEFNDEAELL - BIEEL230% R FEBAXRREDERHEE]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ending 31 December 2022 has an increment of at least 230%
as compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
annual individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”
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On 10 November 2020 (the “Date of Third Granting”), a total of
1,350,000 share options (the “Third Batch Share Options”) were
granted to 1 employee of the Company. Closing price per share
immediately preceding the Date of Third Granting is HK$20.75. The
Third Batch Share Options are valid for a period commencing from the
Date of Third Granting until 19 October 2024, and vesting of the Third
Batch Share Options is conditional upon the fulfilment of the following
conditions:

HBERMS

Vesting Conditions

B E2020F12A31R L FE EHE £2019F12A31MB IEFE AR A H#
HREREGFFEMEL  BEZELI0%NREFEBEAXRRELERE
®’IZER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 has an increment of at least 40% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HE2021F12A3MBLEFEHEEEZ2019F12A3H EEFE AR A E R
MRERIEMRFFDEARLL - BB ED120% REEBARREL ERAK]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 has an increment of at least 120% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

BZE2022F12A31B L FEEBFE2019FN2ANBIEFEAR A #ER
MR EAEFNDE AR - BEEL230% RFEBAXRREDEHEE]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ending 31 December 2022 has an increment of at least 230%
as compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
annual individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

[

E-HBREHE FEAH
No. of Third Batch
Share Options Vesting Date
30% H) B Pk 1 20214 6A30H
30% of share options 30 June 2021
30% Y 8 ik 1 2022 6A30H
30% of share options 30 June 2022
40% ) §8 AR 8 20234 6A30H
40% of share options 30 June 2023
FERRBEEERAF
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On 1 July 2021 (the “Date of Fourth Granting”), a total of 7,700,000
share options (the “Fourth Batch Share Options”) were granted to
13 employees of the Company. Closing price per share immediately
preceding the Date of Fourth Granting is HK$23.6. The Fourth Batch
Share Options are valid for a period commencing from the Date of
Fourth Granting until 19 October 2024, and vesting of the Fourth
Batch Share Options is conditional upon the fulfilment of the following
conditions:

HBERMS

Vesting Conditions

FlitERERE FEAH
No. of Fourth Batch

Share Options Vesting Date
30% H) B Pk 1 20224 7R1H
30% of share options 1 July 2022
30% 9 8 ik 1 20234 7H1H
30% of share options 1 July 2023
40% &Y 5 Iz 1 20245 7H1H
40% of share options 1 July 2024

B Z2021F12A31H L E WM& £2020512 8318 L FE A QA #
AR REMEFEFEAL  BEEIETERRFEAARRELERIG
®’IZER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 reaches certain goals as compared
with that for the year ended 31 December 2020 and annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HZE2022F12A3BEFEHEB Z2020F12A3BEFEARAA A
BREREMEFFEREL  BEINETERRFEAAXRRELERIAE]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ending 31 December 2022 reaches certain goals as compared
with that for the year ended 31 December 2020 and annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

B ZE2023F 128318 L FEEE E2020F12A31B EFEAA A # R
BREREMEFREMRL  EERNETERRFEAARREDERIAH]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ending 31 December 2023 reaches certain goals as compared
with that for the year ended 31 December 2020 and annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2022 Annual Report

.l



ETERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

REBE2022F12A3ALEFER BREZ During the year ended 31 December 2022, details for changes of the

BEFBOT: share options are as follows:
g
#202251818 12A31H REZHE
REUNBEGE REUMBEAE TRAHZAN
RESRH e RESRE NMETHRTE
BRERAALZ BLBH kB EE ERRL (Bx) ERfi ERXH ERiH Rt & (B7x)
Number Weighted
Number of shares average
of shares involved inthe  closing price
involved in the outstanding immediately
outstanding granted share  before the date
granted share Cancelled options on of exercise
Name of share optionson  Granted during ~ Exercise price Exercised during  Lapsed during during 31 December of the share
options holders ~ Date of grant 1 January 2022 the year (HKD) the year the year the year 2022 options (HKD)
anEs
Executive Directors
HARE 201959A2A 450,000 - 618 - - - 450,000 -
Mr. Qi Xiaoming 2 September 2019
REERL 20195972 1,000,000 - 618 - - - 1,000,000 -
Ms. Wu Qiangian 2 September 2019
RHARE 2005115108 1,350,000 - 2085 - - 405,000 945,000 -

Mr. Gao Xinli 10 November 2020

it - 2,800,000 - - - - 405,000 2,395,000 -
Sub-total
EARA 2019942 8,335,000 - 6.18 1,097,000 - - 7,238,000 9.51
Other Grantees 2 September 2019
2020567308 2,360,000 - 19.90 - - 708,000 1,652,000 -
30 June 2020
01E7A1H 7,700,000 - 236 - - 3,360,000 4,340,000 -
1 July 2021
it - 18,395,000 - - 1,097,000 - 4,068,000 13,230,000 9.51
Sub-total
@it = 21,195,000 - - 1,097,000 - 4,473,000 15,625,000 9.51
Total

FHBREFEZE-—FFE BFLHE For further details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to note 27
& KM FE27 - to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 15 November 2019.

Purpose

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are: (i) to provide employees
of the Company (the “Employees”) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company; (ii) to encourage Employees to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and the shares or
the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders; and (iii) to provide
the Company with a flexible means of either retaining, incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
the Employees.

Participants of the Share Award Scheme

The Employee(s) selected by the Board pursuant to the rules of the
Share Award Scheme to participate in the scheme (the “Selected
Participant(s)”).

Scheme Limit

The maximum number of shares involved under all relevant grants
made pursuant to the Share Award Scheme (excluding awarded shares
that have been forfeited in accordance with the Share Award Scheme)
in aggregate must not exceed 1.25% of the total issued share capital of
the Company as at 15 November 2019. The Share Award Scheme was
amended on 1 July 2021 and 23 August 2021 to adjust the maximum
number of shares involved in the relevant grant (excluding award
shares that have been forfeited in accordance with the Share Award
Scheme) to an aggregate not exceeding 5.0% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at 23 August 2021., i.e. 43,603,500 shares
(representing approximately 5.0% of the issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this report).

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Award Scheme

There is no limit of maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Award Scheme.
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Grant Price of Awarded Shares

The grant price of the award shares (“Award Shares”) awarded under
the Share Award Scheme (if any) shall be determined by the Board at
its sole discretion, and shall be set out in the grant notice issued to the
grantees.

Voting Rights

The trustee of the Share Award Scheme (the “Trustee”) and the Board
shall not exercise any voting rights attached to any shares held on the
trust constituted by the Trust Deed (the “Trust”).

Restrictions

The Award Shares awarded to the Selected Participants under the
Share Award Scheme shall be personal to such Employee and shall not
be assignable or transferable. Each of the Selected Participants shall
not sell, transfer, charge, mortgage, encumber or create any interest in
favour of any other person over or in relation to any award, or enter
into any agreement to do so. The Selected Participants are not entitled
to any rights attached to the unvested Award Shares, including but
not limited to any voting right and entitlement to dividends that have
accrued prior to the vesting of such Award Shares.

If any Director possesses unpublished inside information in relation
to the Company, or where dealings by Directors are prohibited under
any code or requirement of the Listing Rules or any applicable laws
from time to time, no payment shall be made to the Trustee and no
instructions to acquire shares shall be given to the Trustee under the
Share Award Scheme and the Trust Deed. Further, the Board shall not
award any shares to any Director during the periods in which dealing in
shares is prohibited pursuant to the Listing Rules or any corresponding
code or securities dealing restrictions adopted by the Company.
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Operation

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Board (or the committee
(if any)) may from time to time instruct the Trustee to purchase the
existing shares in the open market, and determine, among other things,
the timing of awards, list of Selected Participants, number of Award
Shares, vesting date and conditions of vesting, and performance targets
that must be achieved before any of the Award Shares may be vested
in the Selected Participants under such award. Each grant of an award
to any Director, or mid to senior level management and key personnel
of the Company shall be subject to prior approval of the independent
non-executive Directors (excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is a proposed recipient of the grant of an award).

Vesting and Lapse

Unless otherwise determined by the Board (or the committee (if any))
at its discretion, the relevant Award Shares held by the Trustee on
behalf of the Selected Participants on trust shall not vest in the relevant
Selected Participant in the following circumstances:

(@) the Selected Participant ceases to be a Selected Participant by
reason of (i) death of the Selected Participant, (ii) termination
of the Selected Participant’s employment or contractual
engagement with the Group or an affiliate by reason of his/her
permanent physical or mental disablement, or (iii) termination
of the Selected Participant’s employment or contractual
engagement with the Group by reason of redundancy; or

(b) other circumstances as provided in the Scheme Rules.

Upon occurrence of any of the above circumstances, any Award Shares
awarded but have not been vested in the Selected Participant will be
returned to the Trust in accordance with the rules of the Share Award
Scheme.

Unless otherwise determined by the Board (or the committee (if any))
at its discretion, in respect of a Selected Participant who retires at any
time prior to a vesting date, all the Awarded Shares of such Selected
Employee shall continue to vest on the vesting date.
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Duration and Termination

Unless early terminated by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall
be effective for 10 years from the adoption date of 15 November
2019 and up to 14 November 2029. As at the date of the report, the
remaining life of the Share Award Scheme was around six years and
seven months.

Further details of the Award Shares under the Share Award scheme are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 15 November 2019
and note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total of 5,030,000
Award Shares were granted under the Share Award Scheme to certain
Employees for their contribution to the Group.
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REBE2022F12A3BLEFER  BEFKH During the year ended 31 December 2022, details for changes of award

ZEEFEBOT shares are set out as follows:
BREBR WORE1A1HER R2022512831A
RESRTE  HEHABEN EREEHAERN
RERGBBEEALS RiiAH (B7) RERGEE ERRH EREER  ERXM  EREE RERGEA
Award Shares
Grant price granted but Award Shares
payable per unvested as Granted Vested Lapsed  Cancelled granted but
Name of award Award Share 1January  during the duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  unvested as at 31
shares holders Date of grant (HKD) 2022 year year year year December 2022
H1E%
Executive Directors
HRLE 2020%6A308 (F 1) 9.95 700,000 - - - 300,000 400,000
Mr. Qi Xiaoming 30 June 2020 (Note 1)
2022%3F28H 4.49 - 500,000 (Note 6) - - - 500,000
28 March 2022
REERT 2020%6A308 (F 1) 9.95 175,000 - - - 75,000 100,000
Ms. Wu Qiangian 30 June 2020 (Note 1)
2020%3F28A (Hi3H4) 4.49 - 100,000 (Note 6) - - - 100,000
28 March 2022 (Note 4)
FHFEE 2020E11A108 (1 5£2) 10.43 525,000 - - - 225,000 300,000
Mr. Gao Xinli 10 November 2020 (Note 2)
2000537288 (ff£4) 449 = 300,000 (Note 6) = = = 300,000
28 March 2022 (Note 4)
it - 1,400,000 900,000 - - 600,000 1,700,000
Sub-total
Hi &R A 2020%6A308 (F 1) 9.95 1,365,000 - - - 585,000 780,000
Other Employees 30 June 2020 (Note 1)
WNETAIA(K3) 18 1,000,000 - - - 300,000 700,000
1 July 2021 (Note 3)
2022535288 (Hi4) 449 - 3,380,000 (Note 6) - - 410,000 2,970,000
28 March 2022 (Note 4)
S4eEEAL(RaEEE) 2002568308 () 9.95 980,000 - - - 40000 560,000
Top 3 highest paid individual 30 June 2020 (Note 1)
(exdudmg D“’e(tors) 18 1,300,000 < = = 390,000 910,000

WNETRIB (KE3)
1 July 2021 (Note 3)

2022%3F28R (Hi344) 449 = 750,000 4 5 = 750,000
28 March 2022 (Note 4)
Nt - 4,645,000 4,130,000 = - 2,105,000 6,670,000
Sub-total
@ - 6,045,000 5,030,000 2 - 2,705,000 8,370,000
Total
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Notes:
1. The grant price shall be payable upon the vesting of the relevant Award Shares.

2. Subject to the fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions set out by the Board,
30% of the Award Shares shall be vested on 30 June 2021, 30% of the Award
Shares shall be vested on 30 June 2022, and 40% of the Award Shares shall be
vested on 30 June 2023. For details, please refer to note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements and the announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2020.

3. Subject to the fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions set out by the Board,
30% of the Award Shares shall be vested on 30 June 2021, 30% of the Award
Shares shall be vested on 30 June 2022, and 40% of the Award Shares shall be
vested on 30 June 2023. For details, please refer to note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements and the announcement of the Company dated 10 November
2020.

4. Subject to the fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions set out by the Board,
30% of the Award Shares shall be vested on 1 July 2022, 30% of the Award Shares
shall be vested on 1 July 2023, and 40% of the Award Shares shall be vested
on 1 July 2024. For details, please refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements and the announcement of the Company dated 2 July 2021.

5. Subject to the fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions set out by the Board,
30% of the Award Shares shall be vested on 1 April 2023, 30% of the Award
Shares shall be vested on 1 April 2024, and 40% of the Award Shares shall be
vested on 1 April 2025. For details, please refer to Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements and the announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2022.

Since the adoption date of the Share Award Scheme and up to the date
of this report, a total of 13,080,000 Award Shares had been granted
under the Share Award Scheme. The total number of shares available
for grant under the Share Award Scheme was 30,523,500 shares,
representing approximately 3.50% of the issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this report.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of options and
awards granted under all schemes of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2022 divided by weighted average number of
shares in issue for the year ended 31 December 2022 is 0.59%.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not adopt any other share
option scheme or share award scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period, or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALES OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme purchased an aggregate of 500,000 shares on the
market for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DETAILS OF PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE UNDER
RULE 14.36B

(i) Performance guarantee with respect to Chengdu
Chengyue Times Property Services Ltd* (X #F = % &
K Y ¥R # AR 2 A) (“Chengyue Times”)

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 7 May 2020. According to the terms of the equity
interest purchase agreement (the “Equity Interest Purchase
Agreement”) entered into between, among others, Tibet
Xinchengyue Property Services Co., Ltd. (78 ¥ 5 30 15% ¥ % IR
BB R AR (“Tibet Xinchengyue”, a subsidiary of the
Company and as the purchaser), Sichuan Kedi Properties Co.,
Ltd.* (P9)I| %l E ¥ HBRAR]) (“Kedi Properties”), Sichuan
Tairan Properties Group Co., Ltd.* (| A=A BEEBERD
7)) (“Tairan Properties”) and Wei Min* (3£87) (together with
Kedi Properties and Tairan Properties, collectively to be referred
as the “Vendors”), Tibet Xinchengyue had agreed to acquire
61.5% of the total equity interests of Chengyue Times from the
Vendors at the consideration of RMB104,550,000.00.

Pursuant to the Equity Interest Purchase Agreement, among
others, the Vendors and Chengyue Times undertook that
Chengyue Times shall achieve the following performance
targets:

(i) from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020, the net
profit attributable to the parent company in the
consolidated income statement of Chengyue Times shall
not be less than RMB17,270,000.00;

*  For identification purpose only
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(ii)

(i) from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021, the net profit
attributable to the parent company in the consolidated
income statement of Chengyue Times shall not be less
than RMB18,840,000.00;

(iii) from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, the net
profit attributable to the parent company in the
consolidated income statement of Chengyue Times shall
not be less than RMB20,410,000.00.

For further details regarding the performance targets and the
compensation mechanism, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 9 November 2020.

For the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022,
Chengyue Times had achieved the above performance targets.

Performance guarantee with respect to Dalian
Hua’an Property Management Co., Ltd.* (KB E =Y
¥ EE AR ATF) ("Dalian Hua'an PM”)

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 9 November 2020. According to the terms of the
equity acquisition and cooperation management agreement
(the "Equity Acquisition and Cooperation Management
Agreement”) entered into between, among others, Tibet
Xinchengyue (as the purchaser), Shanghai Limu Business
Consultation Centre (Limited Liability Partnership)* (/837K
EmRHRT L (BRA%E)) (“Shanghai Limu”, as the vendor),
and Dalian Hua'an United Industrial Co., Ltd.* (KEZELH &
F 25 AR) ("Dalian Hua'an United”), Tibet Xinchengyue
had agreed to acquire 60% of the total equity interests of
Dalian Hua'an PM from Shanghai Limu at the consideration of
RMB62,856,000.

Pursuant to the Equity Acquisition and Cooperation
Management Agreement, Shanghai Limu and Dalian Hua'an
United undertook that Dalian Hua'an PM shall achieve the
following performance targets:

(i) from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020, the net
profit attributable to the parent company in the
consolidated income statement (after deducting
non-recurring gains/losses) of Dalian Hua’an PM shall
increase by 10% from the figures in 2019 and that there
is a net expansion in the gross floor area (“GFA") under
management of 200,000m?;

*  For identification purpose only
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021, the net profit
attributable to the parent company in the consolidated
income statement (after deducting non-recurring gains/
losses) of Dalian Hua'an PM shall increase by 20% from
the figures in 2019 and that there is a net expansion in
the GFA under management of 200,000m?;

from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, the net
profit attributable to the parent company in the
consolidated income statement (after deducting
non-recurring gains/losses) of Dalian Hua’an PM shall
increase by 30% from the figures in 2019 and that there
is a net expansion in the GFA under management of
200,000m?;

from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, the net
profit attributable to the parent company in the
consolidated income statement (after deducting
non-recurring gains/losses) of Dalian Hua’an PM shall
increase by 35% from the figures in 2019 and that there
is a net expansion in the GFA under management of
200,000m?; and

from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024, the net
profit attributable to the parent company in the
consolidated income statement (after deducting
non-recurring gains/losses) of Dalian Hua’an PM shall
increase by 40% from the figures in 2019 and that there
is a net expansion in the GFA under management of
200,000m?.

If the accumulated net profit attributable to the parent company
of Dalian Hua’an PM fails to reach the targets set out in points
(i) to (iv) above upon the expiry of the undertaking, the parties
agree that Shanghai Limu and Dalian Hua'an United shall
compensate double the shortfall of the accumulated net profit
of the Dalian Hua'an PM that has not been achieved within
30 days after the issuance of the annual audit report through
their own resources, subject to the compensation principles
as set out under the Equity Acquisition and Cooperation
Management Agreement. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 9 November 2020.
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For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021,
Dalian Hua'an PM had reached the relevant performance targets.
As at the date of this report, the relevant financial information
of Dalian Hua'an PM is not yet finalized for determination of
satisfaction of the relevant performance target for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The Company will closely monitor the
above-mentioned performance targets and disclose the status of
satisfaction in its future annual reports in compliance with Rule
14.36B of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and Company Law of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On 20 October 2018, our controlling Shareholders (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of
the Company (for itself and on behalf of all members of the Group)
(the "Deed of Non-Competition”), pursuant to which they have
undertaken that they would not and, would procure none of their
associates (other than any member of the Group) to directly or
indirectly, engage in any business which competes or is like to compete,
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business as described in the
Prospectus in the PRC or any other places where the Group carries on
business (the “Restricted Business”).

For details regarding the Deed of Non-Competition, see “Deed of
Non-competition” in the section of “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders and Future Land Group” in the Prospectus.
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Each of our Controlling Shareholders has made a declaration (the
“Declaration”) as to the compliance with the terms of the Deed of
Non-Competition for the year ended 31 December 2022. In determining
whether the Controlling Shareholders had fully complied with the Deed
of Non-Competition during the Reporting Period, the independent non-
executive Directors noted that: (i) each of the Controlling Shareholders
has made the Declaration; (ii) no Restricted Business was reported to
be undertaken by the Controlling Shareholders (other than, for the
avoidance of doubt, through the Group) during the Reporting Period;
and (iii) there was no particular situation rendering the compliance
with, and enforcement of, the Deed of Non-Competition being
questionable. The independent non-executive Directors were satisfied
with the Controlling Shareholders’ compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or their associates had
any interest in any business which competes or may compete with,
directly or indirectly, the Group’s business.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions

The 2022 Services Framework Agreement and the Seazen
Framework Agreement

On 28 October 2021, Jiangsu Xinchengyue (an indirect subsidiary of the
Company) has entered into a service framework agreement (the “2022
Services Framework Agreement”) with Mr. Wang Xiaosong (as
attorney for and on behalf of Mr. Wang) in relation to the provision of
property management services and value-added services to Mr. Wang's
associated companies (i.e. companies in which Mr. Wang can exercise
or control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power at their
general meetings and their subsidiaries, including Seazen Group, for a
term of one year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, with the
maximum aggregate annual transaction amount of RMB2,000 million.

To govern the transactions contemplated between the Group and
Seazen Group more specifically, Jiangsu Xinchengyue has also entered
into a framework agreement (the “Seazen Framework Agreement”)
with Seazen Holdings, which is a subsidiary agreement pursuant to the
2022 Services Framework Agreement. The annual cap of the service
fees under the Seazen Framework Agreement of RMB1,650 million was
already included in the annual cap of RMB2,000 million under the 2022
Services Framework Agreement.
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Mr. Wang is a Controlling Shareholder of the Company, and thus a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

The 2022 Services Framework Agreement, the Seazen Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
approved by the independent Shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 22 December 2021. For
details relating to the 2022 Services Framework Agreement, the Seazen
Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28 October
2021 and 1 November 2021, respectively, and the circular of the
Company dated 3 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the transaction amount
that the Group settled with Mr. Wang's associated companies for the
property management services and value-added services set out under
the 2022 Services Framework Agreement amounted to RMB1,073
million, which did not exceed the annual cap of RMB2,000 million.

The 2023 Seazen Framework Agreement, the 2023 Services
Framework Agreement and the 2023 Supplemental
Agreement

For the purpose of renewing the 2022 Services Framework Agreement
which was to expire on 31 December 2022:

(i) on 28 October 2022, Jiangsu Xinchengyue (an indirect subsidiary
of the Company) entered into the 2023 Seazen Framework
Agreement with Seazen Holdings, in relation to the provision
of property management services and value-added services to
Seazen Holdings, for a term of one year from 1 January 2023
and 31 December 2023, subject to the maximum aggregate
annual transaction amount of RMB1,350 million.

(i) on 28 October 2022, Jiangsu Xinchengyue entered into the
2023 Services Framework Agreement with Mr. Wang Xiaosong
(as attorney for and on behalf of Mr. Wang), in relation to the
provision of property management services and value added
services to Mr. Wang's associated companies (excluding Seazen
Holdings), for a term of one year from 1 January 2023 and 31
December 2023, subject to the maximum aggregate annual
transaction amount of RMB100 million.
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(iii) On 8 December 2022, Jiangsu Xinchengyue entered into the
supplemental agreement with Mr. Wang Xiaosong (as attorney
for and on behalf of Mr. Wang) in relation to the adjustment
of the annual cap set out under the 2023 Services Framework
Agreement.

Mr. Wang is a Controlling Shareholder of the Company. Seazen
Holdings is a subsidiary of Seazen Group which is held as to more than
30% by Mr. Wang. As such, Seazen Holdings is an associate of Mr.
Wang, and both Mr. Wang and Seazen Holdings are connected persons
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the 2023 Seazen Framework Agreement and
2023 Services Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company.

The 2023 Seazen Framework Agreement, the 2023 Services
Framework Agreement and the 2023 Supplemental Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by the
independent Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 29 December 2022. For details relating to these
agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 28 October 2022 and 8
December 2022, and the circular of the Company dated 13 December
2022.

As disclosed in the Company’s circulars dated 3 December 2021 and 14
December 2022, respectively, in order to ensure that the transactions
contemplated under the 2022 Services Framework Agreement and
the Seazen Framework Agreement, the 2023 Services Framework
Agreement, the 2023 Seazen Framework Agreement and the 2023
Supplemental Agreement will be conducted on normal commercial
terms, and that the relevant fees will not fall below the prevailing
market rate, the guidance price of such services for similar type of
development projects issued by the local government (if applicable)
and the fees charged to the third party customers independent of the
Group, the Group will adopt the following measures:

(i) the finance department of the Group, will be responsible for
regular monitoring of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the above-mentioned agreements to ensure
that the annual cap will not be exceeded, in particular, the
Group will cease to enter into any new subsidiary agreement
if such will cause the total contractual income to exceed the
annual cap for that financial year;
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internal review will be conducted by the Group to assess, on a
monthly basis, whether the provision of property management
services and value-added services has been made in accordance
with the terms of the above-mentioned agreements and in
accordance with the aforesaid pricing policy;

prior to entering into any subsidiary agreements, the personnel
of various departments including the legal department, finance
department and operation department of the Company will
review and assess the specific terms and conditions of the
transactions to ensure their consistency with the above-
mentioned agreements. During such internal review process, the
relevant personnel will examine, among others, (a) information
of the parties; (b) the term of the agreement; (c) the type and
scope of services to be provided by the Group thereunder;
and (d) whether the contract price is in line with the aforesaid
pricing policy, in order to ensure comment (if any) from various
departments of the Group will be properly addressed;

the Company will engage its auditor to conduct an annual
review of the continuing connected transactions to be
conducted pursuant to the above-mentioned agreements; and

the independent non-executive Directors will review the
continuing connected transactions to be conducted pursuant
to the above-mentioned agreements on an annual basis and
confirm in the annual reports of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and ending 31 December 2023 on
whether such continuing connected transactions have been
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, on normal commercial terms or better, and in accordance
with the above-mentioned agreements on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above non-exempt continuing connected
transactions which took place during the year ended 31 December
2022 and confirmed that such transactions have been entered into:

)

(i)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
on normal commercial terms or better; and
according to the relevant agreements governing such

transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor has carried out a number of scheduled auditing
procedures for the continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 and confirmed
that nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe
the continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(4) have exceeded the relevant cap amounts disclosed in the
Prospectus and the relevant announcements of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2022 (if applicable).

Save for the related-party transactions described as “provision of
services” in note 36(b) to the financial statements (being the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above) and certain deposits payment
by the Group to related parties described as “balances with related
parties” in note 36(d) to the financial statements, the Board confirmed
that none of the related-party transactions constitute non-exempt
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As confirmed by the Directors,
during the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had made
certain payments as deposits to connected persons of the Company in
relation to certain properties services rendered under the 2022 Services
Framework Agreement. These deposits would constitute connected
transactions and advances to entities, and would be subject to the
relevant requirements under Chapter 14, 14A and 13 of the Listing
Rules. Please refer to the separate announcement of the Company in
relation to the aforesaid payments and their implications under the
Listing Rules. Save for the said payments of deposits to connected
persons, the Group has complied with the requirements under Chapter
14, 14A and 13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
there were no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed by the Company in
accordance with the provisions concerning the disclosure of connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made no charitable and other
donations.

MATERIAL LEGAL ACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not involved in any
material legal actions or arbitrations. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company was not involved in any unsettled material legal
actions or claims or in any such material legal actions or claims that
might threaten the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY CLAUSES

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
no former or current permitted indemnity clauses have benefited the
Directors (whether entered into by the Company or others) or any
directors of their affiliated companies (if entered into by the Company).
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance covering director and
officer liabilities for its Directors, Supervisors and senior officers.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company had no material
acquisition and sale of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audit committee (the “"Audit committee”), together
with the management and external auditors, has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. The information regarding the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
corporate governance report on page 73 to page 96 of this annual
report.
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DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report above, The Company does not have any
disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing
Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float approved by the Stock Exchange and allowed by
Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has acted as auditor of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022. PricewaterhouseCoopers has audited
the attached financial statements, which were prepared pursuant to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

The auditor of the Company has not changed in the past three years.

MATERIAL EVENTS DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association

On 28 June 2022, the Company announced the proposed amendments
to the memorandum and articles of association of the Company to
(i) reflect and align with the new requirements under the amended
Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules which have come into effect on 1
January 2022; (ii) provide flexibility to the Company in relation to the
conduct of general meetings; and (iii) make certain other housekeeping
changes (the “Proposed Amendments”). The Proposed Amendments
were subsequently approved by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2022.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Acquisition of 70% equity interests in a company

In January 2023, the Group entered into an equity acquisition
agreement with Ms. Wang Ting (F #£), agreeing to acquire its 70%
equity interests in Shanghai Xiangxi Property Management Co., Ltd.*
(EENEMEESIEABERAA), which became a subsidiary of the
Group since the acquisition date. As of the date of this annual report,
the initial accounting for such acquired subsidiaries was incomplete
and was still under review by the management and thus no relevant
financial information was disclosed.

Qi Xiaoming
Chairman

Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023

*  For identification purpose only
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for
the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the “CG code”) as its own code of corporate governance. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has complied with
all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the
Reporting Period. The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure the compliance with the CG
Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the
senior management of the Group. To oversee the particular affairs
of the Company, the Board has established four Board committees,
including the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and Environmental, social and governance
committee (the "ESG Committee”) (collectively, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees the
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of
the Company and Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance covering
any legal actions against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board composition

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Mr. Gao Xinli
Ms. Wu Qiangian

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Xiaosong
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management”.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had met the requirements of
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors (among
which, at least one independent non-executive Director shall possess
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise).

The Company has also met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding
the appointment of independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that a diversified board of Directors will be
beneficial to the Company’s performance. Therefore, the Company
has adopted a board diversity policy, specifying that the diversification
of the Board members will be considered in multiple respects while
determining the composition of the Board, including (but not limited
to) age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. All appointments of the Board will be based on
the principle of “the best person for the job” and take into account the
objective conditions and the benefits of a diversified Board in selection
of candidates. The summary of the board diversity policy is as follows:
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1. Policy vision

The Company understands that a diversified Board is beneficial
to the improvement of the Company’s performance. The
differences in ideas, background, ways of thinking and working
methods may create values for our stakeholders, particularly for
our customers, Shareholders, employees and the communities
managed by us.

2. Measurable targets

The screening of Directors is based on a series of diversified
categories. The Company undertakes to implement the policy of
equal opportunity for all in all respects, without discrimination
due to gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and service term or
other factors.

3. Supervision and report

The Nomination Committee will annually report the composition
of the Board in terms of diversification in the corporate
governance report of the annual report and supervise the
implementation of the policy.

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

1. The Board comprises nine Directors, two of which are female;
and
2. The members of the Board have different cultural and

educational backgrounds; some of them have obtained
diversified professional qualifications.

As at 31 December 2022, the ratio of men to women in the workforce
(excluding Directors) was 58:42. For details of gender distribution,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Company
will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels,
including but not limited to the Board and senior management levels,
by taking into account gender diversity factors in the recruitment
process, and to develop a pipeline of female mid to senior level
management so as to develop a pipeline of potential successors to the
Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Therefore,
the Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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Save as disclosed in the biographies of Directors in the section of
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report, no Directors
have any personal relations (including financial, business, family or
other material relations/correlations) with any other Directors or the
chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, and Nomination Committee.

In regards to the CG Code provision of requiring Directors to disclose
to the issuer the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organizations and other significant commitments, as well as their
identity and the time involved in the issuer, all the Directors have
agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely
manner.

Mechanisms to Ensure Independent Views

The Company ensures independent views and input are available to the
Board via the below mechanisms:

1. The Board composition and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors should be reviewed by
the Nomination Committee on an annual basis, in particular the
portion of the independent non-executive Directors and the
independence of the independent non-executive director who
has served for more than nine years;

2. A written confirmation was received by the Company under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in relation to his/her independence to
the Company. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent;

3. In view of good corporate governance practices and to avoid
conflict of interests, the Directors who are also directors and/or
senior management of the Company’s Controlling Shareholders
and/or certain subsidiaries of the Controlling Shareholders,
would abstain from voting in the relevant Board resolutions in
relation to the transactions with the Controlling Shareholders
and/or its associates;
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4. The chairman of the Board shall meet with independent non-
executive Directors at least once annually; and

5. All members of the Board can seek independent professional
advice when necessary to perform their responsibilities in
accordance with the Company’s policy.

The Board reviews the mechanisms for ensuring independent views
and input are available to the Board on an annual basis, whether in
terms of proportion, recruitment and independence of independent
non-executive Directors, or their contribution and access to external
independent professional advice.

Induction and continuous professional development

All newly appointed Directors will be provided with necessary
induction training and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as
their responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide all Directors
with updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules
and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Company encourages all Directors to seek continuous professional
development and thus develop and update their knowledge and skills.
The joint company secretaries, from time to time, update and provide
written training materials relating to the roles, functions and duties of
directors.
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According to the information provided by the Directors, they have
accepted the training as follows during the year ended 31 December
2022:

BEEXRRREME
Nature of courses for
continuous professional

EEpnR Name of Directors development
AN S Mr. Qi Xiaoming B/C/D
R KL Mr. Gao Xinli B/C/D
REBHRT Ms. Wu Qiangian A/C/D
FEREE Mr. Wang Xiaosong C/D
BN EEAE Mr. Lv Xiaoping C/D
B HRR % A Mr. Lu Zhongming C/D
R LT Ms. Zhang Yan C/D
KEFZE Mr. Zhu Wei C/D
FEETR A Mr. Xu Xinmin c/D
B 5 Notes:

A: HEMSER Kedh,  SwEESLEHHRE A Attend seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or briefings

B: R ek, HeFER,Xmi8HE B: Address at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

(- 2R ENEY  BAREBEBNIE C: Attend training courses provided by law firms and related to the Company’s business
D: MEZBENZBEOME  ZRBELEER - D: Read documents covering a wide range of topics, including corporate governance,

EERE LWRAUREMAAREA

FEREEHTE

RiBLEER T ZTRIMEXXEC 2146
EE2IFERERATEACERTUAROR
MARALEE -

BARERARANESREREFNTE
BEAEENBEREEYREAEENE
BREEMERE - ENARENERIN
EEeRREERAEFEVNTEMERLH
R—AZERIAARRRREHBERN-—HHESE
BARAEEXBERENERRLRNT - EE
iy REERBERFER TR RE -
EXgHEBTHABBR LTEBREAE
BiERNBEMRRREENEE R DR
EEREEFATENASL -

director responsibilities, Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations

Chairman and chief executive officer

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Mr. Qi Xiaoming is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the overall management of the Group
and guides the Group’s strategic development and business plans.
Considering the Group’s current development status, the Board believes
that the structure of the same person holding the two positions of
chairman and chief executive officer can provide the Company with a
strong and consistent leadership and benefit the implementation and
execution of the Group’s business strategies. Nonetheless, we will
review the structure from time to time based on the circumstances at
that time. The Board will continue to evaluate relevant situations and
separate the two roles of chairman and chief executive officer at a
proper time taking into account the Group’s overall status.
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Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company with a term of three years. The respective executive
Directors or the Company may terminate the contract by serving
not less than three months’ written notice to the other party. The
appointment of an executive Director shall be in accordance with
requirements on Directors’ retirement by rotation under the Articles of
Association.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the Company with
a term of three years. In accordance with their respective letters of
appointment, each of the independent non-executive Directors is
entitled to receive a fixed amount of director’'s emoluments while the
non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any remuneration.
Relevant appointments shall be made in accordance with the
requirements on Directors’ retirement by rotation under the Articles of
Association and applicable Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contracts with any members of the Group, excluding contracts
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or the nearest number but no less than one-third of the
Directors, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three (3)) are
subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting and
each Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years at
an annual general meeting. Any Director newly appointed by the Board
to fill a causal vacancy of the Board or serve as a new Director shall
submit himself/herself for election by Shareholders at the first annual
general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
offering proposals regarding the appointment, re-election and
succession plans of Directors to the Board.

Board meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly,
at least four times a year, and at approximately one time each quarter.
Notices of not less than 14 days are given for all regular Board meetings
to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend regular meetings
and discuss the matters on the agenda.
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For other Board and Board Committees meetings, reasonable notices
are given. The agenda and accompanying meeting papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committees members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
When any Directors or Board Committees members are unable to
attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed
and given an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman
prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings should be kept by the
joint company secretaries with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail including the matters considered by the
Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, and
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board Committees meeting are sent to the Directors for
consideration within a reasonable time after the meeting is held. The
minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by all Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Company held 4 Board meetings, an
annual general meeting and 1 extraordinary general meeting were held.
Information regarding the attendance of Board meetings and general
meetings by individual Directors is as follows:

EHERRBFAE CBHERRHSIXE

CHEESERE RE EHERR RE8 EHERRSE
EHEESSRH BEREXRE Bl K EIRE
Number of

Number of Number of attendance/
attendance/number  attendance/number number of

of attendance
required of annual

of attendance
required of Board

attendance required
of extraordinary

= Directors meetings general meeting general meeting
/N BE o A Mr. Qi Xiaoming 4/4 11 1/1
RFMEE Mr. Gao Xinli 4/4 1/1 0/1
REBLRLT Ms. Wu Qiangian 4/4 11 0/1
FRIALE Mr. Wang Xiaosong 4/4 0/1 0/1
BN A Mr. Lv Xiaoping 4/4 0/1 0/1
P BRR % A& Mr. Lu Zhongming 4/4 11 0/1
R L L Ms. Zhang Yan 4/4 11 1/1
KELAE Mr. Zhu Wei 4/4 1/1 0/1
TR EE Mr. Xu Xinmin 4/4 1/1 0/1
FRIRREEEERA
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Model code for securities transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
inquiries with all the Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed
that he/she has complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code during the Reporting Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves its right to decide all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. Directors could
have recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to access
and consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.

Corporate governance functions

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors and their corporate governance
functions include:

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with laws and regulatory requirements;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manuals applicable to the employees and Directors;

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and offer proposals and report relevant
matters to the Board

° to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance rules and disclosure in its corporate governance
reports; and

° to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company’s whistle-blowing policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Lu Zhongming, our
non-executive Director, and Ms. Zhang Yan and Mr. Zhu Wei, our
independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Zhang Yan is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of an
issuer must comprise a minimum of three members, comprising non-
executive directors only, and at least one of them is an independent
non-executive director with appropriate qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. Our Directors confirm that we had complied with
such requirements during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include:

o to oversee the Company’s relations with the external auditor
and be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and deal with any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

o to review and monitor the Company’s financial statements and
reports, including the significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them, and to consider any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

o to review and discuss financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.

The full text of written terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Audit Committee convened 2 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2022 to discuss and consider the followings:

° reviewed the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the financial year, and the audit report prepared by the
external auditor on accounting matters and major findings
during the audit process;

° reviewed the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the six months ended 30 June 2022; and

° reviewed the financial reporting systems, compliance
procedures, internal controls (including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications, training courses and budgets of
employees of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
departments), risk management systems and procedures, the
effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Company,
and the reappointment of external auditors. The Board has
not deviated from any recommendations made by the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, retirement or
removal of the external auditors.

EERLZEENELREZEEZNBRAER The attendance of each member of Audit Committee at such meetings
& is set out in the table below:

EHEEREZESESERE
EBHEERZEEERH
Number of attendance/
number of attendance
required of Audit
= Directors Committee meetings
P BRA % A& Mr. Lu Zhongming 2/2
R L Ms. Zhang Yan 2/2
KRERE Mr. Zhu Wei 2/2
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Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Xu Xinmin and
Ms. Zhang Yan, our independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Lv
Xiaoping, our non-executive Director. Mr. Xu Xinmin is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors
to determine their eligibility;

° make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer; and

o develop policy concerning diversity of Board members, review
the policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidates or incumbents
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skills and ability to commit
time and efforts to carry out duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be submitted
to the Board for decision. The full text of written terms of reference
of Nomination Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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The Nomination Committee convened 1 meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2022 to discuss and consider the following:

reviewed and assessed the implementation of the board
diversity policy;

reviewed and implemented the Company's policy and practices
on corporate governance;

reviewed and monitored Company's compliance with the
corporate governance codes under the Listing Rules and the
relevant disclosure in the corporate governance report;

assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

. EREFEARTES - . considered the reappointment of the retiring Directors.
ZREZEEKEHEZSTTENBERAER The attendance of each member of Nomination Committee at such
T%: meeting is set out in the table below:
EHERBZEGRE
ELEREZEGRH
Number of attendance/
number of attendance
required of Nomination
2= Directors Committee meeting
B/ NFEEA Mr. Lv Xiaoping 11
R L Ms. Zhang Yan 11
BT R A& Mr. Xu Xinmin 11
BEBE Nomination Policy

—HRME REZESDENEBRESRKRE
ARBFE(BFBETR)ATEREIT@E :

(i) EFENZTE HRBREMER - F
B XERBEER FELR K
Bt MBI R TIEESR:

iy BE BERARBDEBHEBITED

In general, the Nomination Committee will assess, including but not
limited to, the following information and aspects for selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship:

)

(if)

diversity in all aspects, including gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and work experience;

qualifications, including the achievements and experience in
relevant industries related to the business of the Group;
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(iii) willingness to devote sufficient time to performing the duties as
member of the Board and other responsibilities as a Director;

(iv) integrity and reputation;

(v) independence of candidates for independent non-executive
Directors, which is assessed with reference to the factors as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and any other factors
deemed as appropriate by the Nomination Committee or the
Board;

(vi) potential contributions to the Board; and

(vii)  other relevant aspects that apply to the business of the Group.

Nomination procedures for Directors

The Nomination Committee shall call a meeting, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members (if any) or shareholders (if any) for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who are not
nominated by Board members.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information, together with their written consent to be appointed as
a director of the Company. The Nomination Committee may request
candidates to provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

The Nomination Committee shall evaluate the proposed candidate’s
suitability with reference to the information and aspects stated
above and make recommendation(s) to the Board’s consideration and
approval.

In the case of the re-election of a Director at the general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution of the
Directors to the Company and their services, their participation and
performance within the Board, and whether such Director still meets
the needs to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
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Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhu Wei and
Mr. Xu Xinmin, our independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Qi
Xiaoming, our executive Director. Mr. Zhu Wei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;

o to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° either (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the

remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management; or (i) to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; and

° to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules adopted by the Company.

The full text of written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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FHEEEREE20202F 128318 L FEH The Remuneration Committee convened 2 meetings during the year

MEBM2REg®E Ul HwmREBUATAR : ended 31 December 2022 to discuss and consider the following:
. Z2REZFENLETEREERITR . reviewed and approved the management's remuneration
HEEBEEBMNTIMNER: proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and

objectives; and

. BN EZERSMEEENEH R . reviewed the remuneration policy and structure for the Directors
K tEHE o and senior management.
ETHNEEeNELRZESENBRAER The attendance of each member of Remuneration Committee at such
T%: meetings is set out in the table below:
BEHEFHESSERE
EHEFMEESRH

Number of attendance/
number of attendance
required of Remuneration

B Directors Committee meetings

BN SR A Mr. Qi Xiaoming 2/2

RESXE Mr. Zhu Wei 2/2

AR L& Mr. Xu Xinmin 2/2
R HEBEREREZEES ESG committee

SR -HENEARAZESHEANTESR/] The ESG committee currently comprises the executive Directors, namely

BREE REEXTREFMEEANL - M Mr. Qi Xiaoming, Ms. Wu Qiangian and Mr. Gao Xinli. Mr. Mr. Qi
NREERRE HEREARZEGNERF - Xiaoming the chairman of the ESG committee.

RR HgkEcZEgNTERELE The primary duties of the ESG committee include:

J HEERBAARANERE LEEE o to formulate and review the Company’s environmental, social
B (TESG) EfE ~ FEx - &RBE ~ 12 and governance (“ESG”) responsibilities, vision, strategy,
JRAI R B2 - hnog 2 2 M AT b R B 3R framework, principles and policies, and strengthen the
BRE UBEREEEETFHAN materiality assessment and report process to ensure the
ESGIK 5 #5 48 ) $A 1T M B j continuous execution and implementation of ESG policies

passed by the Board;

. FRWHERRAMNESGEE - EH . to consider and approve the Company’s ESG goals, and regularly
FERESGEBEMERBER & review the achievement of ESG goals; and

. FRESGEZBE M KB # R by o to monitor main ESG trends and related risks and opportunities

B WA EAEBESGEEER and evaluate whether the Group’s ESG-related structure and
REBEAZDREHAREHR KRB E business model are adequate and effective in this regard, adopt
BFER 40 B 3T A = BIESG IR 38 IF BB R 7% and update the Group's ESG policies when necessary and ensure
EHEHRKEE TEERNEE. that such policies are up-to-date and comply with applicable
AR N BE B B RO B R AR 2 o laws, regulations and regulatory requirements, as well as

international standards.

88 FHIRBREEBERAR
2022F F s



EEERRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RR HERBEARZEENE E202261248 The ESG Committee convened 2 meetings during the year ended 31

31 EI IEFE 5 F? BR2REH SRE i December 2022. The attendance of each member of ESG Committee at
REGLZEENELRZEEZNERH such meetings is set out in the table below:

E/\\Ti’% :

M B

EHERE HERERE
EERY EHERE -
HEREARZESRE

Number of attendance/
number of attendance
required of ESG Committee

= Directors meetings

B/NBRSE A Mr. Qi Xiaoming 2/2

RERFZT Ms. Wu Qiangian 2/2

KA & Mr. Gao Xinli 2/2

EENSREEENFH M REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

HE202F12R831BLEFE EFEKER For the year ended 31 December 2022, the details of the remuneration
BERAERFEINEEIBENARASHER of the Board members and the Company’s senior management set out

B MBS T on page 31 to page 33 of this annual report are as follows:

AE
FHEE(AR% T Remuneration range (RMB) Number of person
2508 -5008 2.5 million = 5 million 1
0-250& 0 — 2.5 million 10

MR E MR AISMBEEN  REZR Saved as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements,
2022FN2A3BILEFE HEEEHENE no Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during
ERETAME - the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, which give
a true and fair view of the status of the Company and the Group and
of the results and cash flow of the Group.

The management has provided the Board with such explanations and
information as necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are submitted
to the Board for approval. The Company has provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’'s performance,
positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's
ability to continue as a going-concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 97 of
this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, the Audit Committee, the senior management and the
internal audit department are the four levels of structure of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining adequate risk management and internal control systems
to (i) safeguard the investments of Shareholders and assets of the
Company and avoid inappropriate use or disposal; (i) comply with
relevant laws, rules or regulations; and (iii) keep reliable financial and
accounting records in accordance with relevant reviewing standards
and regulatory reporting requirements and review the effectiveness of
such systems on an annual basis. Risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to be responsible for
the oversight of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on a yearly
basis. Such review covers all important aspects of supervision, including
financial, operational and compliance monitoring. As disclosed in the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee
is responsible for monitoring the Company’s risk management and
internal monitoring systems. The Audit Committee oversees the
risk management process and reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems by conducting the following
procedures:

° Review the Company’s risk management process and policy;

° Review with senior management at least annually reports
demonstrating the compliance with the risk management policy;

° Discuss with senior management at least annually the
Company’s major risk exposures and the steps the senior
management has taken or should take to assess and mitigate
such exposures; and

o Review the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
practices on an ongoing basis.

The senior management is responsible for administering the Company’s
risk management process and is accountable for ensuring that the
Company’s business operations are conducted in compliance with our
risk management policy, taking into consideration the changes in the
environment and the Company’s risk tolerance. Responsibilities of the
Company’s senior management include:

° Design and implement a Company-wide risk management
policy;
o Review and update the risk management policy on a timely

basis, ensuring it remains relevant and adequate, taking
into account changes in the environment, industry and the
Company’s operations and risk profile and, where necessary,
recommend changes to the risk management policy for the
Audit Committee to review;

o Ensure that the Company’s risk management process is aligned
and integrated with the annual strategic and business planning
process;

° Design and establish a risk management methodology which

provides the appropriate tools to identify, evaluate, and manage
business exposures;

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
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° Establish a Company-wide risk reporting process to ensure that
the Company’s senior management, the Audit Committee and
the Board are apprised of all material risk issues and business
exposures;

° Ensure that necessary management controls and oversight
processes are in place to monitor compliance with the risk
management policy and the risk management methodology;

° Approve and monitor key risk positions and exposure trends,
risk management strategies and risk management priorities;

° Review and discuss the Company’s overall risk profile, key and
emerging risks and risk management activities through periodic
risk discussions among senior management; and

° Review the key business strategies and initiatives to assess their
impact on the Company’s overall risk position.

Risk management process

In addition to the Board’s oversight responsibilities, the Company
has developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks and to resolve material internal control defects
(if any). The senior management, through the Company’s internal
audit department, is responsible for the annual risk reporting process.
Members of the internal audit department meet with various members
of the senior management to review and assess risks and discuss
solutions to address material internal control defects (if any), including
any changes relevant to a given year. Risks are compiled, ratings are
assigned and mitigation plans are documented. The risk assessment is
reviewed by certain members of senior management and presented to
the Audit Committee and the Board for their review.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial
results, (ii) the probability that the risk will occur, and (iii) the rate or
speed at which the risk could occur.
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The main features of the Company’s risk management and internal
control structure include: (i) exclusive departments are designated to be
responsible for the implementation of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and the heads of the major operational
units or departments are responsible for managing and mitigating the
risks identified; (ii) the management ensures that appropriate measures
have been taken against material risks that affect the Group’s business
and operations; and (iii) the internal audit department provides the
management and Audit Committee with independent confirmation
regarding the effectiveness of risk management and internal control.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has ensured that the risk
management and internal control provisions under the CG Code
have been complied with. The Board, during its annual review on the
risk management and internal control systems, has confirmed the
effectiveness and adequacy of such systems, and also the adequacy of
the resources and staff qualifications and experiences of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Inside information

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
events that may impact the price of the shares or their trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered
as inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably
practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and
the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive
Directors and the joint company secretaries also have responsibilities
for approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by
the Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to time.

Internal audit department

The Group's internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major responsibilities of
the internal audit department are reviewing the financial conditions and
internal control of the Company, and conducting comprehensive audits
of all branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The approximate remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor to the Company during the Reporting Period is
as follows:

SHARE TR
R % %8 5 Service category Amount (RMB’000)
E 2R Audit services 2,900
IE B % R Non-audit services 100
@t Total 3,000
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. You lJianfeng (“Mr. You"”) is the Company’s joint company
secretary, responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
has also engaged Ms. Ng Sau Mei (“Ms. Ng”), a director of the Listing
Services of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial services
provider), as its joint company secretary to assist Mr. You to fulfill his
duties as company secretary of the Company. Her primary contact
person at the Company is Mr. You.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. You and Ms. Ng have undertaken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the
Group’s business, performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of timely and nonselective disclosure of
information, which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make
informed investment decisions.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides an opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees
will attend the annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions. The auditor of the Company will also attend the annual
general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and
Shareholders and maintains a website at www.xinchengyue.com,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access. The
Board reviewed the Group's Shareholders and investors communication
activities conducted during the Reporting Period and was satisfied
with the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy.

In light of the above policies and communication channels already in
force as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Shareholders’
Rights” below, the annual general meeting held during the year which
enabled the Directors to communicate directly with the Shareholders
and answer their questions, the Board has reviewed and considered
that the Company’s shareholder’ communication policy has been
appropriately implemented and remained effective during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue (including election of
individual Directors) at general meetings of the Company.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each Shareholders’ meeting.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
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Convening of extraordinary general meetings and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at the
Company’s general meetings according to the Articles of Association.
Any one or more Shareholders with the right to vote on the Company’s
general meetings and hold a paid-up capital of no less than one-
tenth on the date of submitting a request shall have the right to call
an extraordinary general meeting at any time with such a written
request to the Board or any one of the joint company secretaries of the
Company to address any matters stated in such request. Such meeting
shall be held within two months upon submission of such requests. If
no such meeting is held by the Board within 21 days upon submission,
the persons submitting such requests may convene a meeting according
to normal procedures and all expenses reasonably incurred to the
persons submitting such requests due to the Board'’s failure to convene
such a general meeting shall be compensated by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, relevant
procedures are available on the Company’s website.

Inquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their inquiries about the
Company may contact the Board Office at the Company’s headquarters
via e-mail at xcy.ir@xinchengyue.com.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amendments to the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company to (i) reflect
and align with the new requirements under the amended Appendix 3
to the Listing Rules which have come into effect on 1 January 2022,
(i) provide flexibility to the Company in relation to the conduct of
general meetings; and (iii) make certain other housekeeping changes
were approved by the Shareholders by way of special resolution at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2022.
The latest version of the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association has been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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To the Shareholders of S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of S-Enjoy Service Group Co.,
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 110 to 244, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

HELT KK G T BT B BRR A 2240
Eif ¢ +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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OPINION (cont'd)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Z 5 FE W 3 IR /9 7] [3 45 1% . Recoverability of trade receivables

J EBAEHEBEEESR o Purchase price allocation for business combinations
. EESN IR . Goodwill impairment assessment

BMEEZEE EMWERNAEEREEREE

Key Audit Matter

EZEWRENTRE 4

Recoverability of trade receivables

FL2HGAVBRERWF4(ERG A R A E) XM
222 (B S EMKIE)

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and
judgements) and Note 22 (trade receivables) to the
consolidated financial statements.

M20225128310° ESEMNESERRFIAREFER
AR 2VEET(BEAEARKI429B8 8 TR E
BEARKI37EET)

As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount of trade
receivables of the Group is RMB1,292 million, including
gross amount of RMB1,429 million and allowance for
impairment of RMB137 million.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

. B EE 5 e U R IE AT U B M E 2R B B B IR
BIEFETTR WEBMGGTONEEML LM
EERBEZ(WEME =BT Z2HPREER
Z i IREF R AT BE 1) B9 7K F - LART (il B8 K85 ZR Rt
WEERR HME BEXEZHEKFEHNA
e 13 1 5T il B R 4R 4 I E AT TR

o We obtained an understanding of management'’s
internal control over the process of recoverability of
trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes
and susceptibility to management bias or fraud. We
tested the key controls over the Group’s assessment
of the recoverability of trade receivables;

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
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Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)
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For assessing the recoverability of trade receivables, the
Group used judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group's past history, aging profile of the receivables,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period, which are
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the assessment of the expected
credit losses of trade receivables is considered relatively
higher due to uncertainty of significant assumptions used.

EREERBEBFANNIBEAAERLEZNEXETS
BAERBEAANHESEBNEHEE RER - E%Tﬁ%
BEBBEABELBEIBETHE  WETAEARRE
AR R FATEERE -

The Group calculated the historical default rate percentage
based on the payment profile of debtors, including sales
and bad debts related to the sales in the observed period.
The expected lifetime loss is estimated based on internal
historical data with adjustment to reflect current conditions
and forward looking factors.

BEMANERUMNEERBERSE(E)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

. ERMABEEZRN2ET  FHEEERN
WERBREEGER R EANE T

o We assessed the appropriateness of the credit loss
provisioning model and methodology adopted by
management with the involvement of our in-house
valuation experts;

o Liﬂ%)‘gﬁ_ifﬁﬁﬂﬂlﬁl ﬁ&f’f%ﬁi”ﬁl 18 R B

R TEHE
%%E?WGEEV

o We challenged the reasonableness of the estimated
credit loss rates by considering historical cash
collection and movements of the aging of trade
receivables, and taking into account the market
conditions as well as forward looking information;

. BMERMEERZLEMBABXHEHARGESR

ZEWRIEREREEOEE2022F12A31HE 5
JE R T B BR R E 1T M ORI
o We tested the aging profile of trade receivables as

of 31 December 2022 used in the calculation of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables, on
a sample basis, to sales invoices and other relevant
documents;
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BMEEZBHE(E)
Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

BMBESREKKRENFAIEE MR SEREZEIERT)
HREEREAREEETAEHACGRAEERELNER
Ko SEAE il 5t I 1 B o

We consider recoverability of trade receivables a key audit
matter because the amount is significant and there are
significant and complexed management’s estimates and
judgements involved in the assessment of expected credit
losses.

BANERNOTEEREEXSTE(E)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

BHMARFRRETESRRAIBRERBTED
RN

o We checked mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of allowance for impairment of trade
receivables as at year end;

. BB H & 5 e WA ) B 18 4 15 0 1T Ml AR
A WA YRR R AR R R X e

o We checked, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables to cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation.

ERFATHER  ZMEER EE2ERESEERE
B R 1 BT A AR R R A i 5 R K B 1S B RIS B R IR
X e

Based on the procedures performed, we found
management’s estimates and judgements used in the
assessment of recoverability of trade receivables were
supported by available evidence.
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BMEEZBHE(E)
Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

EBEHBEEIR

Purchase price allocation for business combinations

FE2BGE B RE T4 (E ARG b st & AE)
17(BEEE) KM E32(REREB QR -

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and
judgements), Note 17 (intangible assets) and Note 32
(acquisition of subsidiaries) to the consolidated financial
statements.

ot 5

REBE2022F12ANALEE X EEEEETEHEH
ERBEZEBUAERGLEMBBREZDNETLEE -
TREEZERBAMEMEBEARNCEZNEERE
Lﬁﬁﬁﬁ Bt EEERSBRBETREER E
BYRAEREEARKNREET(EZIITFPBR)
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
several business combinations. Management has engaged
independent qualified valuers to assist them in identifying
the intangible assets and to perform the valuations of the
identified assets and liabilities of the acquired companies
at their respective acquisition dates, based on which,
management performed a purchase price allocation for
each acquisition, which resulted in recognition of intangible
assets of RMB126 million being the identified customer
relationships.

BMNERUMNEERRERSE(E)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

. BHMEEEENAMBEHREEBSHORERE
DA EEFETTR CLEEMGHNTETE
MEREMEFREBREAZ(WEFRTE =8B 25
REBRESRFAATEM) BKFE - Rt ERX

hae R E B R o  BHMY EEEEBA M
m%%ﬁ A P w1 B B g2 R I E 1T TR

o We obtained an understanding of management'’s
internal control and assessment process of purchase
price allocation for business combinations and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud. We tested the
key controls over the Group’s assessment of the
purchase price allocation for business combinations;

. BAFEEEBZEMNIIEEMNREN B8

R B

o We assessed the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external valuers engaged by
management;

. HMBEEHNESEREEE RN MGEERS -
WERBEMOABEEERTEEEZEMRMNL
HEFEHEEE BEEMRAMNMBEXRRE

FRAEOHEFAIERAFHOSIEE:

o We obtained the valuation reports in relation to the
purchase price allocation for the acquisitions, and
engaged our in-house valuation experts to assess
the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
adopted by management, the reasonableness of
discount rates and expected useful lives of customer
relationships used by management;
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Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

HEBRETFARETAABEN G SR ERHEG XL
ZEERHABLEARREAERPRMESEHETER
TRFrERR(FERFWAERE  RAISAEF - FIE -
#r & K # 5 ([EBITDAD 7| &~ BRI KRB B KB 5 7]
2 A H) -

Significant judgements and estimates were involved
in the fair value assessment of the identified customer
relationships. These significant judgements and
estimates include the adoption of appropriate valuation
methodologies and the use of key assumptions in the
valuation (mainly annual revenue growth rate, earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
("EBITDA”) margins, discount rates and expected useful
lives of customer relationships).

BHMRAUHESERERETEL TERNEL AR R
REXEBAHELEBENEZLE MERAG G Y
RE#RAEFPBAENAABENGRBEREERS HE
ERREE -

We consider this area a key audit matter given the
magnitude of the identified customer relationships and
goodwill recognised arising from the business combinations,
and the significant judgements and estimates involved
in the fair value assessment of the identified customer
relationships and the recognition of goodwill arising from
the business combinations.

BMNERUMNEERRERSE(E)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

ERMABEEZRNZ2ET MBI
B A E P B R E M E LR IR 2R 2 TR B
FIERANERBRINEEE RERAERER
EBITDAR % HZMEEBABATHZERRKEZ
S B UHE R R B AR B E L BUR TS BUR (FLL B o
o We challenged and assessed the reasonableness
of the key assumptions used in the cash flow
forecasts for the valuation of the identified customer
relationships with the involvement of our in-house
valuation experts. For annual revenue growth rate,
EBITDA margins, we compared these assumptions
with the relevant historical data of these acquired
companies and market data, where applicable.

. BHMAEEERATHRERNGEZ(HE R
EPHARRABNTEME BHRREMETHH
BRESTHEEE -

o We evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis performed by management on the key
assumptions to understand the impact of reasonable
changes in assumptions on the identified customer
relationships and goodwill.

i

. BHMZEE#NEPBARRAEBENAAREBETE
BB AR o

o We checked the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the fair value of the identified
customer relationships and goodwill.

ERFBTHRER RMNBEREPEEAN AL EBAENG
REBEHMEENMBORRBIS RN E XA B RMGE
AYESREZBRELAXS °

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
the significant judgements and estimates involved in
the fair value assessment of customer relationships and
the recognition of goodwill arising from the business
combinations were properly supported by available
evidence.
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B E R

Goodwill impairment assessment

FL2HEEV BRI E4(ERS A R HE) R o BMEEEENAMEFREBBRENTGERE

HI7(BEEE) FHETTE UTERMGFANIEEEREMER

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and FEpeAR(MEMNE T8 ZHREEREX

judgements) and Note 17 (intangible assets) to the HREFE9RIRE 1) @9 7K - AST fi B K 38 3R PR it &9 [

consolidated financial statements. AR ZME ESEEEBERENHO@EERE
HETT TR

o We obtained an understanding of management'’s

internal control and assessment process of goodwill
impairment and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes
and susceptibility to management bias or fraud. We
tested the key controls over the Group’s assessment
of goodwill impairment;

. BHMRE EEENSHARRREMY E5E
EBOTHR G ESEMBINBESELSE
RAELNEESEOES L -

o We assessed the appropriateness of the Group's
identification of the CGU and allocation of goodwill
based on the Group’s accounting policy and our
understanding of the Group’s business.

MARBRBEERRAR
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M20224512 8318 -
BLcmEKRE

EEENBEEH R ARKH6H
EEENXBAHEE B ERE

HEmME  EEESSCRBEERAS —ABUNES
ELXEU(REELEEN]) YEHABEOREZCKE

SEH - -EREEARBEEREEFERAABERLE
KAURSERE)ECERIEBENRELEEN
MTW@é%X?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ HEITERBEFER - &
EARBEHEREESL ENMBRE  BABEBRER
ﬁé?i SELENRRASRE - #17HBRETMH
FrZRIEH B R E REE - ZFERHAE R BIER
MBENFEEZETHBERENG  AREEBEEST
HRRAHERERR MEBRREIERBEFHRALRE
ENERBHATEEX -
As at 31 December 2022, balance of goodwill of the Group
amounted to RMB416 million. Goodwill arose from the
Group's business combination activities. For the purposes of
goodwill impairment assessment, management considered
each of the acquired group a separate group of cash-
generated-units ("“CGU") and goodwill has been allocated
to each of the acquired group. Management assessed the
impairment of goodwill by determining the recoverable
amounts of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
based on the higher of value-in-use calculation and fair
value less cost of disposals. The value-in-use calculation
requires the Group to forecast the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU based on the financial
budgets approved by management. Significant judgements
and estimates were involved in the goodwill impairment
assessment. These significant judgements and estimates
include the adoption of appropriate method to perform
goodwill impairment assessment and the use of key
assumptions in the value-in-use calculation, which primarily
include annual revenue growth rate, gross profit margin and
pre-tax discount rate.

ERMBARDBERBEETHERENGRAFLEE
ANHAE R BB RERE S —HEREZEIE -
We consider this area a key audit matter due to the
significance of the goodwill balance and the significant
judgements and estimates involved in the goodwill
impairment assessment.

BMNERUMNEERRERSE(E)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

. HMREEEENEERENGL  TZERMD
W ARl B F KA E IR E 5t i BN E T AT ER &
WAEEREBEMEANBRENEEE -

o We obtained management’s assessment on goodwill
impairment and engaged our in-house valuation
experts to assess the appropriateness of the method
adopted by management to perform goodwill
impairment assessment and the discount rate used
by management.

. EEZMARBEEZSRN2ET  RMEELTGE
EEREEFEPRANERRENSEL - 3
FRARRERENX  ZFMEBEBRABERT K Z
EMRBEMHE L BERTSHBFELER -

o We challenged and assessed the reasonableness
of the key assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculation with the involvement of our in-house
valuation experts. For the annual revenue growth
rate and gross profit margin, we compared them
with the relevant historical data and market data,
where applicable.

. &ﬁ#ﬁaﬁﬁﬁ?%ﬁ“mAﬁ A AT Y
THAOFZEMEARBRRMETHNBRRESNA
S -

o We evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity

analysis performed by management on the key
assumptions to understand the impact of reasonable
changes in assumptions on the recoverable amount.

. BAZEHEREN AT ENRBERY -
o We checked the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the goodwill impairment assessment.

ERAATHREF  HMERFERENEMERNE
RABRGEAHESREZTBLRAIFE °
Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
significant judgements and estimates involved in the
goodwill impairment assessment were properly supported
by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained some of the other
information including chairman’s statement and management discussion
and analysis prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The remaining
other information, including corporate profile, corporate information,
financial and business summary, directors and senior management,
report of the Directors, corporate governance report and the other
sections to be included in the annual report, is expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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BMEERZESER(HPREB)AEES
#E KEAXHEUARBEARSHRET 81
T TR BIE P R B A ER S & E A
BERRE -

B ek K B

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mang, Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B £2022412 A318 4 Z For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E2022%F HZE20214
12H31H 12H31H
ILtEE IEFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
B 5 AR T AR T T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
L ON Revenue 6 5,179,553 4,350,735
B & AR 75 B A& Cost of sales and services 6,7 (3,841,413) (3,009,188)
E Fl Gross profit 1,338,140 1,341,547
HERZHEEH Selling and marketing expenses 7 (92,137) (34,035)
1T E A Administrative expenses 7 (480,952) (424,035)
SERERENEED Net impairment losses on financial and
VERIEN SR B contract assets 3.1.2 (145,432) (111,232)
H g A Other income 9 97,141 80,606
Hih & [ Other expenses 10 (11,129) (4,377)
H 5 18 )5 58 Other losses — net 11 (103,687) (135,763)
KR E Operating profit 601,944 712,711
B 78 U A Finance income 26,372 29,302
B 75 K A Finance costs (925) (337)
2 N Finance income — net 12 25,447 28,965
HAEREEYERN Share of net loss of associates accounted
FEAG B = N & 1EF R for using the equity method 28 (407) =
I%Fﬁ B A1 7 Profit before income tax 626,984 741,676
BHEH Income tax expense 14 (152,237) (182,947)
ﬂi A R Profit for the year 474,747 558,729
Hib2mEKA Other comprehensive income
AEE 7 BE B i) HE  Items that may be reclassified to profit or
loss
BRAARBEFAEAMm Changes in the fair value of debt
PEHRANBEBILARAR instruments at fair value through other
BEEZD comprehensive income 19 (46,394) (75,444)
ERARBEFTAHM Credit loss of debt instruments at fair
2EHBANELIEER value through other comprehensive
& 18 income 312 49,889 71,949
EXNHME2EUE (EE) Other comprehensive gain/(loss) for
the year 3,495 (3,495)
HwREWKA Total comprehensive income 478,242 555,234
l‘l 10 FHIRBREEBERAR
20202F FHRE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B £2022412 A31H 4 = For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20225F B E 20214
12A31H 12H31H
LtEE IEFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Bt & AR¥TR AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR A = FEAS FH - Profit is attributable to:
. WNECIE ¥ - DN — Owners of the Company 423,476 525,455
— 78 A% M RE 2 — Non-controlling interests 51,271 33,274
474,747 558,729
ATATELBEZEKA: Total comprehensive income is
attributable to:
. WNEIE? Z =N — Owners of the Company 426,971 521,960
- FEERE RS - Non-controlling interests 51,271 33,274
478,242 555,234
BRAEFMCAARBITETR) Earnings per share (expressed in RMB)
- BREKREF — Basic earnings per share 15 0.50 0.62
-BREERT - Diluted earnings per share 15 0.50 0.62

Lt iR A 2 A K FE S BE MY 5 — 6FBD

=

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

12022412 A31H As at 31 December 2022

2022%F 720214
12A31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
B 5 AR T AR T T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
IREBEE Non-current assets
Y BERZE Property, plant and equipment 16(a) 83,039 58,890
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16(b) 19,287 19,722
| EE Intangible assets 17 885,170 728,325
REEERAINKE Investments in associates 28 4,733 4,000
BEEREMEE Deferred income tax assets 30 88,718 54,509
bigca Deposits 23 = 1,944
BEAnRBEGFAEZD Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 20 370,689 205,873
RBEELTE Total non-current assets 1,451,636 1,073,263
REEE Current assets
rE Inventories 21 44,230 28,301
BHEE Contract assets 6 292,740 289,495
BEAnRBEFAEMEZE Financial assets at fair value through
WAR @ EE other comprehensive income 19 5,996 52,390
BEAnRBEGFAEZN Financial assets at fair value through
T REE profit or loss 20 80,636 245,032
B 5 kWA Trade receivables 22 1,292,257 622,758
ERNRIE- - ZE Rk Prepayments, deposits and other
H & W 5RIA receivables 23 1,009,456 594,304
RekBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 1,973,696 2,504,102
REBEELSHE Total current assets 4,699,011 4,336,382
EEHRE Total assets 6,150,647 5,409,645
& Equity
EATBEEAELESR Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
% 7% Share capital 25 59,973 59,900
5 Reserves 26 2,529,505 2,224,020
2,589,478 2,283,920
R ER Non-controlling interests 319,045 240,712
REEE Total equity 2,908,523 2,524,632
FHIRBREEBERAR
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REBMBRRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

72022412 A31H As at 31 December 2022

R2022F 20214
12A31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
B 5 AR T AR T T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
a& Liabilities
FFRBER Non-current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities 16(b) 9,521 11,310
B Provisions 3,102 2,064
B 5K H M &R FRIE Trade and other payables 29 105,398 92,857
B IBAEE Deferred tax liabilities 30 114,764 97,375
FRBEBRE Total non-current liabilities 232,785 203,606
FEBEE Current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities 16(b) 6,736 3,129
(EES Borrowings 2,265 =
anaE Contract liabilities 6 747,899 776,038
FET AR B Dividend payable 22,526 25,293
B 5 &k B A B 5K IE Trade and other payables 29 2,043,283 1,729,360
BB mEHEaE Current income tax liabilities 186,630 147,587
nEBAEALE Total current liabilities 3,009,339 2,681,407
EBEAE Total liabilities 3,242,124 2,885,013
EZEREEHEE Total equity and liabilities 6,150,647 5,409,645
REBEEFE Net current assets 1,689,672 1,654,975

ot fR A B AR OR SR FE B BE MY RS R — 6D

=
=

FN0E24BE WM E A

RN
Qi Xiaoming
EBEZE

Director

BF 7% 3R} = 702023434
WVHEZEEFEH ESTAUTEERAEE -

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read

in conjunctions with the accompanying notes.

RH A
Gao Xinli
EE

Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 110 to 244 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2023 and were signed
on its behalf.
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REER®BR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B 22022412 4318 [E4F E For the year ended 31 December 2022

ARAHEB AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
A fafe @it EEhEs RREE
Share Non-controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests Equity
fzr  ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETT ARETxR
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RONF1RB1BHE 5 Balance at 1 January 2021 56,641 1,225,167 1,281,808 127,781 1,409,589
2EUNA Comprehensive income
ERHE Profit for the year - 525,455 525,455 33,274 558,729
E2EMEA Other comprehensive income - (3,495) (3,495) = (3,495)
BrazEhA Total comprehensive income for the period - 521,960 521,960 33,274 555,234
EERERBERNAREARTH Transactions with owners recognised
% directly in equity
[ Share Placing 3,252 861,149 864,401 - 864,401
AR ERERER—HKELR  Dividend declared by the Company and by a
ERFEREENRE subsidiary to non-controlling interests - (239,819) (239,819) (3,103) (242,922)
RIZ2019F B R B/THEBER  Exercise of share option under 2019 share
1 option scheme 244 19,183 19,427 - 19,427
BERTHRA Buy-back and cancellation of shares (237) (48,362) (48,599) = (48,599)
BEERMEE:EMERD  Acquisition of shares for Employee Share Award
Scheme - (138,836) (138,836) - (138,836)
THEEERAPORZTBAHMRS  Exercise of unrestricted shares from stock
shares - 14,372 14,372 - 14,372
KERB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries = = = 76,292 76,292
MEHBAR Addition of subsidiaries - - - 1,845 1,845
¥ERERTE Injection of capital from non-controlling
interests - - - 5,957 5,957
BELRERNR D Transaction with non-controlling interest = 464 464 (1,334) (870)
WRAEERNER Share-based payment = 8,742 8,742 = 8,742
WONENANBNES Balance at 31 December 2021 59,900 2,224,020 2,283,920 240,712 2,524,632
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B 22022412 A31H [E 4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2022

RAREAAER
Attributable to owners of the Company
BA& i axt  FERER EREE
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests Equity
fiE  AR¥Tn AR¥Tr ARETn ARETn ARET:n
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R02F1R1B &t Balance at 1 January 2022 59,900 2,224,020 2,283,920 240,712 2,524,632
2ERA Comprehensive income
ERFE Profit for the year - 423,476 423,476 51,271 474,747
E2EMEA Other comprehensive income - 3,495 3,495 = 3,495
BrazEhA Total comprehensive income for the period - 426,971 426,971 51,271 478,242
EERERBERNAREARTH Transactions with owners recognised
% directly in equity
AAFEEREKERFBAFAEIR Dividend declared by the Company and by
R TEﬁnE@ ke subsidiaries to non-controlling interests 31 - (134,944) (134,944) (2,883) (137,827)
RIZ2019FBEREB/THEBER  Exercise of share option under 2019 share
& option scheme 25 73 5,740 5,813 - 5,813
BEERMEE:EWMERD  Acquisition of shares for Employee Share Award
Scheme 26 - (3,765) (3,765) - (3,765)
KEKHBAF Acquisition of subsidiaries 32 - = = 29,725 29,725
MR B AR Addition of subsidiaries - - - 678 678
FRRERTE Injection of capital from
non-controlling interests - - - 10 10
HE—RNHBAF Disposal of a subsidiary 3 - = = (779) (779)
WRAEERNER Share-based payment 27 - 10,394 10,394 = 10,394
R-ERBAREE Capital increase in a subsidiary - 975 975 525 1,500
BELRERNR Transaction with non-controlling interest 37 = 114 114 (214) (100)
R’02F12A31RME S Balance at 31 December 2022 59,973 2,529,505 2,589,478 319,045 2,908,523

& 22 B BfY P 5

— BB

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B 22022412 4318 [E4F JE For the year ended 31 December 2022

B Z20226% BE20216
12A31BLEE 12A31BLEFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
BT & AR TR ARET T
Note RMB‘000 RMB’000
RETHFMBEELETE Cash flows from operating activities
KEFMBRE Cash generated from operations 34(a) 226,555 913,443
B SR Income tax paid (162,679) (158,109)
RETHMBHRLTE Net cash generated from operating
activities 63,876 755,334
REZBHHERERE Cash flows from investing activities
THEERAREEAEZHAN Payments for acquisition of financial assets at
TREE fair value through profit or loss (662,172) (1,206,579)
HEEAABENABZMNESHE Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair
AEMGHE value through profit or loss 536,211 922,616
BAREBEEFTABZHNESBMERE Interest received on financial assets at
REZEAREEFTAEMEEYR  fair value through profit or loss and
A EHEEND RS financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 9 40,451 49,150
WEHNBARMIES AL ESE  Net cash outflow for acquisition of subsidiaries 32 (89,920) (164,830)
HER—HEERQF Investment in an associate 28 (1,140) (4,000)
BT ER Loans to related parties (35,000) =
INBEENE BERRHE Payments for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment 16 (57,420) (43,759)
THNBEEEVEE Payments for acquisition of intangible assets 17 (21,457) (7,740)
INEERARLBEFAEME Payments for acquisition of financial assets
YA SREE at fair value through other comprehensive
income - (122,854)
HEWE  BERREFSIE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 6,110 2,701
YN BAEFEWENBARAA Payment for unsettled consideration of
ERE acquisition of subsidiaries from previous
years (182,731) (15,799)
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FERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B 22022412 A31H [E 4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2022

B Z20226% BE20216
12A31BLEE 12A31BLEFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Pt 5% ARB TR ARET T
Note RMB‘000 RMB’000
RETHFEANRESFHE Net cash used in investing activities (467,068) (591,094)
MEZTBRESELSRE Cash flows from financing activities
RAR20195F BB AR 1 5t &1 77 68 Exercise of share option under 2019 share
AR option scheme 25 5,813 19,427
fic B Share placing - 864,401
HEFENEASHFHREFE  Principal elements of lease payments and its
interests 16(b) (5,725) (6,558)
AARE RO E KB ARZE Dividend paid by the Company and by
& FE 125 AR HE 23 A0 AR B, subsidiaries to non-controlling interests 31 (137,827) (242,922)
AREEB MR E B  Acquisition of shares for Employee Share
Award Scheme (3,765) (138,836)
TEBEFRMFHRZEH MM Exercise of unrestricted shares from stock
shares - 14,372
FERERTE Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests 10 5,957
AR B B K% AT 8H AR T Payment for share buy-back and cancellation - (48,599)
I 12 % 7 25 ) T 4 WJ;' Tfiﬁ Capital injection to addition of subsidiaries
from non-controlling interests 678 1,845
MBARIEE Capital increase in subsidiaries 1,500
AE—HBARFERER Share purchase of non-controlling interests of
BERM a subsidiary 37 (100) (870)
BB A Proceeds from borrowings (5,172) =
HE BB AR Net cash inflow for disposal of a subsidiary
ReEmAFE 33 167 -
BMETEH(ER), FEBHLFHE Netcash (used in)/generated from
financing activities (144,421) 468,217
BeRELEEBNRD)/ Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
ZmFEE equivalents (547,613) 632,457
RBBRETNHRE R Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
iﬁéﬁ{“% financial year 2,504,102 1,882,136
EXZHURE R Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and
fﬁﬁg{“% My e cash equivalents 17,207 (10,491)
REANBEEREAELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,973,696 2,504,102
LR ERE N =R E MM T — OB E - The above consolidated statement of cash flow should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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eV BRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 4318 [E4F JE For the year ended 31 December 2022

1.1

— B AR
—REHR

IR RIS =B AR AR (N A 4
AFR2018F1A16HIRIEMEHS
AR A (F22E - 196146 HE35 %5 6 -
BERIER]) LR 28 S Kz
REREAR DR - I HR2018411 A
CEEE BB AEXSMAR A A (5
REEDER E o RR R K M=
Bz #b HE & PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman
Islands °

AARB—REBERAF - BE
MEBAREZRNAEARLME(H
B ) 1R 5 B 1R R s R AE B 1 E R
T o &R R A A Alnfinity Fortune
Development Limited » H A 5 B & &
B EMAR S o A5 B A & AR IR AR
BATIREAE((EREILREE
BRARR]D -

BRBEHEAN SGEMBERRUAAR
BETTIARS®TFRDZS -

1.1

GENERAL INFORMATION

General information

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited, hereinafter referred to
as the “Company” was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 16 January 2018 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap.22, law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “stock exchange”) on 6 November 2018. The address of
the Company’s registered office is PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of property
management services and related value-added services in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The ultimate controlling
company is Infinity Fortune Development Limited, which was
incorporated in British Virgin Islands. The ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Group is Mr. Wang Zhenhua (“Mr. Wang” or
the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholder”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 A31H [E 4 For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.1
(i)

(ii)

EXREFHRUE

AHERUBEZEE AV BHRR
BRARANEIZGTBRRBE - RS

BERAEN  ZEBRRMEZF
E—EEM -
mEEE

BrEBHMBEHREERREER
&l % Bl

ARBGEMBHRRERBRBEET LGS
MAgBRMENEEYBERSEN(E
BUMBEREEDEEEAFGRM(E
6RE)HWBERERHE -

Vil

REMBRRERBELKAERE
THREGBRALBEFAREMEZEE
ANEBMEENMGABGZNERE
EERIERT -

2.1
(i)

(ii)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”) issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets through profit or loss.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 4318 [E4F JE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2 EBEASTHEMEw@ 2
21 REEEE) 2.1
(iii) 2 ZE B R4 B F 5T R A 15 5T 2E B (iii)

NEB D g H R2022F1B1H 18 HY
FEREHBEXNERAUATEL &G
EIE

. ME BEERRE RERZ
RIS R — B & sHER
F165% (BRI )

. HMSERZRER — FAEY
1% &5 R F35% (& 7T A9)

. BB B kS E R2018F =
2020 A HF 2 2 B

. BEAHN — BITAENMKAE
— BB G EREITR(ER
)

C BRTESIFESRUET KA
ZHEHNEHEERIE

AEBETERRPRMAUATETA:

. BE-XZMELHEEERE
BEMZEERE — BEG
SR F125% (B 5T &)

F2022F 1818 &8 4 L it 57 7] %
Al BEARRETEHASEEE
202FNANBELETZEAMNKEE X
BERMBRAEKNTENERNZE -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments
for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing
1 January 2022:

o Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended
use — Amendments to HKAS 16

o Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments
to HKFRS 3

o Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2018-2020

o Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract —

Amendments to HKAS 37

. Amendments to AG 5 Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendments
early:

o Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction — amendments to HKAS 12

The adoption of the above new standard, amendments and
interpretation starting from 1 January 2022 did not give rise to
any significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position for the twelve months ended 31 December
2022.

MARBRBEERRAR

L‘ 20 Gonmama



RE P BRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 A31H [E 4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.1
(iv)

2.2
()

BEASTHEME @)

iR EL % (18)
5 7K BR AR B9 F 5T 2R R #2 FE

BT ERBITI REBELHR
i ERE E2022F12831B ILFEE
WARBHER  BREAEEBRT K
o ZEER MBI ARZEEETR
EHRARARFEHE IS Y EE KA

BRENARRZELEATE -
EHRARESETERE
K& 2 7]

MBAREASEHEEEEHED
MEER(BREBMLER) - HAK
B3 E 2 E R TS R 2 0 3R R A
R EAEEMNLEBBEHEHE
RBEINIERFTEZZTOR AKX
SEHFHERBEEZENE -HERQ
AAEENEEBEASBEZARES G
AR BENEREZBEELAH
AER o

HE## T8 E 5 & G

REVBRREBBEHEEAR T2
EHMNERBAEBOMBERRER
BNEEEZETERREBERNAE
HAEH 2 ARE AR -

REHTHNAE AHERKELKE
EFENREREEANAR X &
RHRAZEHEAHBOEERNKE
TRBERBEBTARMNEE  BERK
REBEFAABENEZBLKA
MR (RS T RS ERR) R
EEE e

2.1
(iv)

2.2
(i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standard amendments and
interpretations have been published that are not mandatory
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments and
interpretations are not expected to have a material impact on
the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
consolidated financial statement items of the entities or
businesses in which the common control combination occurs as
if they had been consolidated from the date when the entities
or businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in consideration
for goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of common control combination,
to the extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s
interest.
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B 22022412 4318 [E4F JE For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2

()

BEASTHEME @)

EOHRARERETEEE)

B8 2 a (&)

H A1 # T 89 %% & vf (4)

FAEZHBARBHEEAHEBRE
BRI ZFANERES HERK
EBERIHABAEH ZBRORE
i i R B AE - RIS ET S MR ) A2

SRR MR RE A
5, 2 7% 2 7 0 51 5 2 B A9
EHRRSFOHRBRRAY T

FEH A B T #9275 & vf

AEBRBRBEIBLIFZHRIE
BEHERBEHAR - WE—HHER
AEENRERMEREE  HK
WETHWMEBAEENABRAS
BBETHRAEZNAAEER 8
ZHNRERRIARERHEMELN
TREEXBENLAAEER EXH
& Bt AT KRB BRI B8R B B A B BT
EHNRABERIARAE  IFUEER
WEABROHAAEEBFTE -

AEERBEEZREBEEEERE
WBBETOEMFEERES - KK
BIOEERER DRR GRS -
IEBAARLIDEERERE
E’Yé?%‘fﬁ BARBENREHE
BEZEGEREEDIAIENEES
ECERERNLIIGE - FIEBRE
HEFTA H A A KB R W B AR
ARBEFE KRIEBEUBREE
AIERUA S —tEEEGFE -

2.2

(i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Business combinations under common control (Cont’d)

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income includes
the results of each of the combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of
the common control combination.

A uniform set of accounting polices is adopted by those entities.
All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between combining entities or businesses are
eliminated.

Business combinations not under common control

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations not under common control. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 A31H [E 4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.2
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BEASTHEME @)

EOHRARERETEEE)
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WHEHRBK AR EER S

WEBEHIEERET KBHTRE
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HEZRKBEANAARBEEHFE
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REBRER -

AEFBEZENEMAIARELRKER
HHAREEER KA/KEEXEAE
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TTEHFE HRELEINESA
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FEEAE  EARKETFZER
BESBRRELATHEEKEDRAE
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2.2

(i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Business combinations not under common control (Cont’d)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform to the Group’s accounting policies.
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2.2
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(ii)
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(iv)) ©

2.2

()

(ii)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transaction with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transaction —
that is, as transactions with the owner of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners, the difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (see (iv) below), after initially
being recognised at cost.
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2.2

(iii)

(iv)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont'd)

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature
of its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see (iv) below), after initially being recognised at cost
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income.

Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint
ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.
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2.2

(iv)

2.3

2.4
(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont'd)

Equity accounting (Cont'd)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note
2.7.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"),
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive and non-executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional and
the Group’s presentation currency.
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised within “Other losses — net” in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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2 EBEAREFHRME@ 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

25 ME BEERRE@E 2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)
WEDREMGFAIFERFH(NT)A Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
FREZEZBEKAS 8 ZE HF & allocate their cost to their residual values, over their estimated
BEE: useful lives as follows:

& 5 A1 E A & Estimated useful lives
BF 30%F Buildings 30 years
EH R 104 Transportation equipment 10 years
BEF&E 54F Electronic equipment 5 years
R J i 28 4E5F Furniture and machinery 4-5 years
HEERE ARk A s Al A Lease improvement Over the shorter of the
FHPNRES lease term or the estimated
useful life
REREHRER BEEENTHEER The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
MEEREFEH  WIEHEZEMARE - adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
MREENEEESNEMGATRE An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
¢E AERBEENREEMRE recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
HAlE g8 - than its estimated recoverable amount.
REEW=MEBEAMALRMER Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
HEFRTMEET  URAEe2EKRA proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
FRNTEMBEFHEIER - losses — net’ in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
FHIRBEEEERA R
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2.6
(a)

(b)

(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

Licences

Separately acquired licences are shown at historical cost.
Licenses acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life
(10 years) and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Computer Software

Acquired software licences are capitalised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (5 to
10 years).
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2.6
(d)

(e)

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in business combinations are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The customer
relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected useful lives respectively
(7 to 10 years).

Trademarks

Trademarks acquired in business combinations are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. The trademarks have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected useful lives respectively (15 years).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.8
2.8.1

2.8.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

i) those to be measured subsequently at fair value either
through other comprehensive income or through profit
or loss; and

i) those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2.8
2.8.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)

2.8.3 Measurement (Cont’d)

Debt instruments (Cont’d)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at fair value through OCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income and recognised in ‘other gains — net’. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net in ‘other gains — net’ in the period in which it arises.
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2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Measurement (Cont’d)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in ‘other income’ when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in ‘other gains — net’ as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the expected credit losses on a
forward-looking basis associated with its debt instrument
carried at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value
through OCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note
3.1.2 details how the Group determines whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.
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2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables.

For deposits and other receivables due from related parties,
since the majority of the deposits is due from government
authorities as pledge for the ordinary business and related
parties have a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term, thus the impairment provision
recognised during the period was limited to 12 months expected
losses.

For financial assets at fair value through OCI debt instruments,
other receivables other than those from related parties, the
Group adopted a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised
below:

o The receivables, which are not credit-impaired on initial
recognition, are classified in “Stage 1” and have their
credit risk continuously monitored by the Group.

o If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified, the receivables are moved to
“Stage 2" but is not yet deemed to be credit impaired.

o If the receivables are credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3".

Receivables in Stage 1 have their expected credit loss measured
at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. Instruments in Stage 2 or 3 have their expected credit
loss measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime
basis.

When measuring expected credit loss, the Group considers
forward-looking information.
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2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and banks,
deposits held at call with financial institutions and other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares

or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.
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2.15

2.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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2.17

2.18

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company's
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.
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2.18

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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(ii)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group only operate defined contribution pension plans.
In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant municipal and provincial governments in the PRC under
which the Group and the PRC based employees are required
to make monthly contributions to these plans calculated as
a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based
employees’ payable under the plans described above. Other than
the monthly contributions, the Group has no further obligation
for the payment of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans are
held separately from those of the Group in independently
administrated funds managed by the governments.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement
scheme are expensed as incurred.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate
in various government-supervised housing funds, medical
insurances and other social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject to certain
ceiling. The Group’s liability in respect of these funds is limited
to the contributions payable in each year. Contributions to the
housing funds, medical insurances and other social insurances
are expensed as incurred.

l140

FHIRBREEEBERAR
2022F F L



RE P BRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 A31H [E 4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.19
(iii)

2.20

BEASTHEME @)

EEER (8

B B8 7

7 55 122 I 3 1R 4K I 20 31 47 R 0B B %
B R B E AR % AR T
o o BE R ) o 2K 9K A0 LA B
CARP 5% RREBER : (@4
5 R MBI R (SRR 2 A R
(b) B 88 38 6 4 P K B B 0B & AT OF
R 375 40 8 70 26 35 % 5% 4 Bt B AR )
Z B o AR T LA B B B
BRT  BREFDREEDES S
te0 BB ABGHE - AR HR A
012181 B 14 )0 A 1 60 18 L 46 B R 5
Rl -

LU 60 5 2 8 B9 4 =K

PAR 17 7% 5 B B0 3 B 48 7 38 B BB X
RS BIA R B fn RE)FTEIR K TEE -
BRI MBI NME27 -

RIEBREFSRBOEREZERK
RBEARENZRE RN ORQ
REEDNERREERNHAX - XA
R MiERS BXHENBELN2E
PIREBRER RN A R(E
BEE:

- BREEMNTHSRRGHWE
RH R (E)

- TEEEANRERIETS KRR
FEGKTOTEWMERRE
ERSMNBNMRR HELER
BREREKAREER) R

- BREEFFEEGENFE (M
BRERNKFEHRREXFHR
MERE) -

2.19
(iii)

2.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or
when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of terminations
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.

Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefit is provided to employees
via the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme.
Information relating to the scheme is set out in Note 27.

The fair value of options and restricted shares granted under
the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme
are recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options and restricted shares granted:

- including any market performance conditions (e.g. the
entity’s share price)

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period), and

- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g.
the requirement for employees to save or hold shares for
a specific period of time).
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2.20

2.21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont’'d)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2.22

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Revenue recognition

The Group provides property management services,
developer-related value-added services, community-related
value-added services and smart community services. Revenue
from providing services is recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered. The following is a description
of the accounting policy for the principal revenue streams of the
Group:

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed
amount for each month of service provided and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed.

For property management services income from properties
managed under lump sum basis, where the Group acts as
principal and is primarily responsible for providing the property
management services to the property owners, the Group
recognises the fee received or receivable from property owners
as its revenue and all related property management costs as
its cost of service. For property management services income
from properties managed under commission basis, the Group
recognises the commission, which is calculated by certain
percentage of the total property management fee received or
receivable from the property units, as its revenue for arranging
and monitoring the services as provided by other suppliers to
the property owners.

Property developer related services include mainly i) on-site
sales assistance services, which includes cleaning and
maintenance services to property developers, which are billed
and settled monthly based on actual level of services provided
at pre-determined price and revenue is recognised when such
services are provided; ii) property delivery related and other
consulting services, which are fixed amount contract with
property developers and are billed and settled on a monthly
basis and revenue is recognised when the services are provided.
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2.22

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Community related services include mainly i) Commission income
from information services is recognised on a net basis when the
service provided; ii) Revenue from merchandise sales from the
online platform is recognised when the Group sells products to
the customers; iii) Revenue from public resources management
services, which is recognised on a net basis over the time when
such services are rendered; iv) Revenue from other community
convenience services are charged for each services provided
and recognised when the relevant services are rendered; and
v) Commission income for sale of car parks, which are billed to
property developers on a monthly basis and were recognised on
a net basis when the car parks were delivered to the customers.
Community related services are normally billable immediately
upon the services are provided.

Smart community services mainly include engineering and
maintenance services of elevator and intelligent security
equipment. Revenue from smart community services are
recognised when the contracts have been approved and the
services are rendered. Revenue from smart community services
recognised over a period of time are based on the stage
of completion of such service, which is determined by the
proportion of costs incurred to the estimated total costs. As
at the balance sheet date, the Group reassesses the stage of
completion so as to better reflect the changes in obligation
performance. Revenue is recognised by the stage of completion
of the construction services. Trade receivables are recognised
when the Group has an unconditional right to payment. For the
remaining part of the services, a contract asset is recognised.
The Group recognises the loss provision using the expected
credit loss model for its trade receivables and contract assets.
If the payments received or receivable exceed the services
rendered, a contract liability is recognised for the excess.
Contract assets and contract liabilities under the same contract
are presented on a net basis. Smart community services are
normally billable immediate upon the delivery of the services.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the transaction
price will be allocated to each performance obligation based on
their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone selling
prices are not directly observable, they are estimated based
on expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment
approach, depending on the availability of observable
information.
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2.22

2.23
(i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the statements of financial position
as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group’'s performance and the
customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer. Incremental costs incurred to obtain a contact,
if recoverable, are capitalised and presented as assets and
subsequently amortised when the related revenue is recognised.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to an
amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the Group
transfers services to the customer, the Group presents the
contract as a contract liability when the payment is received, or
a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier). A contract liability
is the Group’s obligation to transfer services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional
right to consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the profit
attributable to owners of the company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.
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2.23
(ii)

2.24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Earnings per share (Cont'd)

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and the
weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

l1 46

FHIRBREEEBERAR
2022F F L



o)

B FE ¥R MY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 A31H [E 4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.25

BEASTHEME @)

HE

HERRAERAREEE LEMEE
BEAHASEER 2AEZEER

f& o

BRFREEEHERIFBEEAKREND
AEBERRBREENFBEAKETN
HENBLER BEOREIEE
HERFEEAKND -

HEELAWEBEERBBENLSRARE
EEGE HEABEEUATHEEN
EBRAEF

B E 1+ 5% (B 48 B E B & 50
R AE {7 e WA B R

. ENEEEIMNENAEHEEN
o NFAs B RS A S B A

NS E

. RHRBEEERTHAEEES
FE T 3RR

. REBHENITEERS (M A S E
BRMEETEZEN) &

. XN EEENTR(HEE
R RRAE BT EZAER) ©

RECERECEEERINNAE
ENRATAARBHEZA -

HENREBEEMRE SN ETIA
MR- WMEBEEZEERNE M@
FRASERE  AERAEANE
EERR - BIE R A A B LU
Ko BB BULHREFRE
ANERBRERZEEERBEUEES
EMFESHUBAINOME -

2.25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable,

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees,

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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2.25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Leases (Cont'd)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third-party financing,
and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, the Group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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B BEEZE @ 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)
HE(E) 2.25 Leases (Cont'd)
FTRAEEERKAGZ  BEATS Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
18 : following:
. HEBBENVIIHA=E=LE . the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,
. 7 B 46 B B 5k 2 B FT 1E &9 4 7] . any lease payments made at or before the commencement

HEMZ  REBWHEMA date less any lease incentives received,
'fiﬁgb

. FAMBEERAE & . any initial direct costs, and

. BRI o . restoration costs.

EREEE-—RNEENKAFH

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of

SHEEH(UREERE)ZRELER the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
BEME WASEEAERETHER If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
BEEERE MERAREEERHEBEE the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s

WAEREFRANTUINE - AEHE
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FATER o
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REZTERAAL - RHBHAERE

HEBHRAREBAXNUTHEE - K

1@@%?*7?‘%;6;&%4& =) SN
NIRE o

AEBEAEAANKERENHE
WARBERZNEENAERSK
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AFAEBEENREE YR EE
%WM% B YA B AR R
RRAX - AR HEEERA ML
AFREFBHRRE -

useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings that
are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the
Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of
office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor
is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position based on their
nature.
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2.26

2.27

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants related to assets refer to government grants
which are obtained by the Group for the purposes of purchase,
construction or acquisition of the long-term assets. Government
grants related to income refer to the government grants other
than those related to assets.

Government grants related to assets are either deducted against
the carrying amount of the assets, or recorded as deferred
income and recognised in profit or loss on a systemic basis over
the useful lives of the assets. Government grants related to
income that compensate the future costs, expenses or losses are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss, or
deducted against related costs, expenses or losses in reporting
the related expenses; government grants related to income
that compensate the incurred costs, expenses or losses are
recognised in profit or loss, or deducted against related costs,
expenses or losses directly in current period. The Group applies
the presentation method consistently to the similar government
grants in the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is engaged in the provision of property management
services and related value-added services in the PRC with almost
all the transactions denominated in RMB, except for proceeds
from certain financing activities, which are denominated in
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD"”) or United States Dollar (“USD").
As of 31 December 2022, majority of the Group’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB except that certain cash and
investment debt are denominated in HKD or USD.

The Company and all of its subsidiaries’ functional currency
is RMB. Accordingly, financial assets denominated in HKD or
USD are subject to foreign exchange risk. Fluctuations in the
exchange rates of HKD and USD against RMB will affect the
Group's result of operations. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, management
closely monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will take
actions when necessary.

As at 31 December 2022, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 10%, against HKD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been RMB1,636,000
(2021: RMB5,985,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
net foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HKD
denominated bank deposits.

As at 31 December 2022, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 10%, against USD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been RMB59,619,000
(2021: RMB46,394,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
net foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of USD
denominated bank deposits and investment debt which are
measured at FVPL and FVOCI.
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3 MHEREEw@ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3 MBEREBEEGE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
3.1.1 HHEEE (&) 3.1.1 Market risk (Cont'd)
(i)  EHEE (i) Price risk
HRAEEMBREEGS BBA The Group is exposed to price risk arising from investments held
MEARAE DB RIZAABETAEM by the Group and classified on the consolidated statements of
2HEB A FEI19) R AR EBETA financial position as FVOCI (Note 19) and FVPL (Note 20).
B (Mf320) MAEEEXERE
R o
REBAEBEMBREELENER To manage its price risk arising from investments held by the
BB o REBZTLEMEASE - K Group, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the
SERBEAGENRE TR ELS portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Group.
Zrulb - MEREERESTEERI All investments must be approved by the Chairman of the Board
KBTI HETT o before they may be entered into.
TERBEEHMEENAARBEE M The following table summarises the impact of increase/decrease
BMAOEGMR R EMmEEBANTE of fair value of the financial assets with all other variable held
ERREMBEHEMEHERTE - constant on net profit and other comprehensive income.
=B Hit 2 EB A
Net profit OcCl
BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2022F 20214 2022%F 20214
2022 2021 2022 2021
ARBTR ARBTRT AR%BTR AR%®TT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
— F#5% — 5 percent higher 22,566 22,545 300 2,620
— T #5% - 5 percent lower (22,566) (22,545) (300) (2,620)
(iii)  FE &z (i) Interest rate risk
20224 20214128318 - B R 17 As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, except for cash deposit in
BeEXUARBS R EbERZER the bank and certain balances of trade and other receivables
BERIENETERN) AEEYE and debt instruments, Group has no interest-bearing liabilities
FaAHteaE ARMTEmYSE AN and hence are not subject to significant interest rate risk.
K@ o
l.] 52 FHIRBEEEERA R
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3.1
3.1.2

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables; cash and cash
equivalents and debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables; and cash and cash
equivalents represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets.

Cash in banks and payment platforms

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash deposits in banks and platforms since they
are substantially deposited at state-owned or reputable financial
institutions in mainland China and reputable international
financial institutions outside of mainland China. For banks
and financial institutions, only independently rated parties
with a minimum rating of ‘A’ are accepted. Management
does not expect that there will be any significant losses from
non-performance by these counterparties.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables and contract assets. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The expected credit loss also incorporates forward looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified
the GDP, completed investment in real estate development and
total retail sales of consumer goods to be the most relevant
factors.
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3.1
3.1.2
(7ir)

(iv)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Deposits and other receivables due from related parties

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with deposits
and other receivables due from related parties to be low, since
the majority of the deposits is due from government authorities
as pledge for the ordinary business and related parties have a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. Thus, the impairment provision recognised during
the period was limited to 12 months expected losses, which
was 3.56% (2021: 1.34%) allowance rate for deposits and other
receivables due from related parties as at 31 December 2022.

Other receivables other than those from related parties

The Group has large number of counter parties for its other
receivables other than those from related parties. There was
no concentration of credit risk. The Group has monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability
of these receivables at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group considers the probability of
default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.

Forward-looking information incorporated in the expected credit
loss model.
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3.1
3.1.2
(iv)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Other receivables other than those from related parties
(Cont’d)

The Group has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk and expected
credit loss. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
o external credit rating
o actual or expected significant adverse changes in

business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the borrower’s
ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of individual property owner or the borrower

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the individual property owner or the same
borrower

o significant changes in the expected performance and

behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the Group and changes
in the operating results of the borrower.
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3 BHEREEm 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd)

3 UBEBEZEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2 FEEEE) 3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)

) ERIABEITAAEMEEKAL (v)  Debt investments at fair value through other
B 2 comprehensive income
RARBEFAEMEEKANES Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
KREPRELMEBES - HANEBE income (FVOCI) include listed debt securities. The loss allowance
AAREMEEARANBEEIREEBR for debt investments at FVOCI is recognised in profit or loss and
BENERBER - WD H MR EA reduces the fair value loss otherwise recognised in OClI.

EHBARRBHOAABEBE -

MR20224F 202112 A31H + F 18 %E As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance provision
HEBEBTENOT - was determined as follows.
R2022%12831R R01%F12A318
As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
ARBTR AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
ERER BlRES
EHFRE  RE&E BE EBEEX  EBE4E B
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected carrying  allowance Expected carrying allowance
loss rate amount  provision loss rate amount provision
EARNAE Trade receivables
BEn Related parties 3.56% 564,281 20,105 134% 195,188 2,616
BRENEARSEMENTIE Receivables carried forward from
acquired subsidiaries* 15.12% 12,214 16,967 5.28% 114,819 6,064
1E LA Within 1 year 8% 550,781 41,644 6% 281,562 17,567
122% 1102 years 2% 109,250 22,582 2% 75,182 31,828
153F 2103 years 30% 62,718 19,078 61% 28,900 17,646
354E 3104 years 44% 22,803 10,118 75% 7924 5,940
4Z5F 410 5 years 81% 3,671 2,967 93% 3,364 3120
SEN QOver 5 years 100% 2,911 2,91 100% 2,899 2,899
1,428,629 136,372 710,438 87,680
* BWENBAREENE S EKRNIFIZ e The trade receivables carried forward from acquired subsidiaries were
WEBHNAAEETE - REAE measured at fair value at the date of acquisitions. Gross amount of the
BARK112,214000n B SR A A gross carrying amount of RMB112,214,000 was RMB230,058,000 (2021:
R #230,058,0007C (20214 : lR A A & Gross amount of the gross carrying amount of RMB114,819,000 was
A AR %114,819,000T 0 2 £ A A RMB156,449,000). The expected loss allowance provision indicated in the
R %156,449,0007T) ° =X FT /R /) T8 8 above table were those made during the period from the acquisition date
BEEBEETD B WE AR £2022 till 31 December 2022.

F12ANBHBAELNEE -
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3 MHEREEw@

31 BMHEBREERGE

3.1.2 EEREE (&)

) BRIALEEFAEMEELAL

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(v)  Debt investments at fair value through other

EBERE (&) comprehensive income (Cont‘d)
R2022512A31R R021E12 8318
As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BRER BEER
BHEEE  RE4HE B EHEEX  BR4E B
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected Carrying  allowance Expected Carrying allowance
Loss Rate Amount  provision Loss Rate Amount provision
ENEE Contract assets
A5 Related parties 3.56% 276,429 9,848 134% 267,830 3579
1EMRA Within 1 year 8% 28,299 2,140 6% 26,924 1,680
304,728 11,988 294,754 5,259

BARE RERAMBRHACFAERNKARMFHANERREHR Att)

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and input VAT to be deducted and others)

e Deposits 373% 665,841 24,809 1.34% 401,262 5362
Hb YR Other receivables
AN BAR &R LA Receivables carried forward from

acquired subsidiaries* 2% 9,811 2,353 - 9,181 -
1ELA Within 1 year 16% 168,045 26,790 6% 75,392 4,704
1228 1102 years 2% 22,058 4,681 42% 15,591 6,561
1538 210 3 years 30% 21N 829 61% 3,885 2372
354E 310 4 years 44% 2,418 1,053 75% 1,567 1175
4E5F 410 5 years 45% 632 286 93% 1,445 1,340
SELLE Over 5 years 100% 1,614 1614 100% 779 179

873,190 62,415 509,102 22,293

L BREHNBARGENEMNKE - & G Prepayments, deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments

e REMEBERRETBERMSKE
A& FHR e EREER R EM)RK
BHAHMNAABENEZ FEHLEAR
ARMI8I,000HBEEAARE
14,520,0007T (20214F : (REBLE A AR
#9,181,0007T) W & i — H TE A A 18
EHEBESTAK -

and input VAT to be deducted and others) carried forward from acquired
subsidiaries were measured at fair value at the date of acquisitions.
Gross amount of the gross carrying amount of RMB9,811,000 was
RMB14,520,000 (2021: the gross carrying amount was RMB9,181,000)
and no further expected loss allowance provision to be accounted for.
The expected loss allowance provision indicated in the above table were
those made during the period from the acquisition date till 31 December
2022.
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3 B 7% & B = I () 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
31 HERBEZE(E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
3.1.2 FERE &) 3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)
) ERIABEITAAEMEEKAL (v)  Debt investments at fair value through other
EBERE (&) comprehensive income (Cont‘d)
RZARBEFAEMEZEKRAN S Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
AE income
MW12A31H MW12A318
As at 31 December As at 31 December
2022% 20214
2022 2021
AR®ET T AR®ET T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
EHER TE (= H
AREHE BB AREE & 1B
Expected Expected
Fair value credit loss Fair value credit loss

AR EBESAEME Financial assets at fair value
HRANEHEE through other comprehensive
-EIA income — debt instruments 5,996 49,889 52,390 71,949
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3 UBEBREEm 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3 MBEREBEEGE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
3.1.2 EEREE &) 3.1.2 Credit risk (Contd)
) ERIABEITAAEMEEKAL (v)  Debt investments at fair value through other
EBERE (&) comprehensive income (Cont‘d)
20224 k20215612 A31H * & H & As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance provision
E -BSREMERRETEER for contract assets, trade and other receivables (excluding
NRIE - EBREZATFaxRERE TN prepayments, receivables from payment platform and input
WHEBEEER R M OERER VAT to be deducted and others) reconciles to the opening loss
BBRFYSEEBRENFAGOT allowance for that provision as follows:
BfiFE
heREBEL
AE(REE

BfiRER  EROAEE
BFHEN FAEM
EAENFE AHEE EEEERR REMAM
B B )% tRHEE ait
Allowance for
prepayments,
deposits
and other
receivables
(excluding Financial assets
prepayments  at fair value
Allowance Allowance ~ and input VAT  through other
fortrade  for contract to be deducted comprehensive
receivables assets  and others) income Total
ARETR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

202251818 At 1 January 2022 87,680 5,259 22,293 71,949 187,181
REAZAMARERH Provision for loss allowance recognised
FRERER in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income 48,692 6,729 40,122 49,889 145,432
W20225128318 At 31 December 2022 136,372 11,988 62,415 121,838 332,613

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 159
2022 Annual Report



eV BRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 4318 [E4F E For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 HBEEREREm@ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3 BBEBRBEEGE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
3.1.2 FEREE &) 3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)
) ERIABEITAAEMEEKAL (v)  Debt investments at fair value through other
EBERE (%) comprehensive income (Cont‘d)
RN
Be R
Ak
FE(TRE
BEFER  RAAEE
i aiib:i AL
BAENFE ENEE  EBEER) FEMAR
B B B SREE B3
Allowance for
prepayments,
deposits
and other
receivables  Financial assets
(excluding at fair value
Allowance Allowance ~ prepayments  through other
for trade for contract ~ and input VAT comprehensive
receivables assets  to be deducted) income Total
ARETT  AREFTR  AREFR  ARETR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2021£181A8 At 1 January 2021 52,397 3359 20,193 - 75,949
REAZEMARERH Provision for loss allowance recognised
BEERERRE in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income 35,283 1,900 2,100 71,949 111,232
R20215128318 At 31 December 2021 87,680 5259 22,293 71,949 187,181
M2022F12A310 - E S EWKFKE As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of trade
EHNEE HMERZBETEIESE receivables, contract assets, other receivables (excluding
NHREBERGTINRAMOEREER X prepayments and input VAT to be deducted and others) and
HM)REAALABEFTAEMLZEK financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
AHEREENEEHABASARY income was RMB2,662,432,000 (31 December 2021:
2,662,432,0007T (2021412 A31H : A RMB1,638,633,000) and the maximum exposure to loss was
[R%1,638,633,0007T) ' AEE BRI & RMB2,401,768,000 (31 December 2021: RMB1,451,452,000).
=R AARE2,401,768,0007T (2021
F12A31H: A K #1,451,452,000
TT) e
l160 %ﬁiﬁi'fﬁﬂﬁi%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
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3.1
3.1.3

B 7% B B B B (s
B EEEEE)

REBE T R

ERESERBAENRERREF
BY HBBASNAEETHRESRE
BARSHRE  BEBBOENR KU
MEHEAERENEEES R, -

TREBINASEREEE B IRAR2
HAENPENERAR  TRANE
MEBRRAHOABBRABESTE - AN
FHRONZEIK R EHEERE
REARE RO ERBFRNER B
LR A RREE e

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.3 Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents or have available funding through an adequate
amount of available financing, including loans from related
parties to meet its daily operation working capital requirements.

The table below set out the Group’s financial liabilities by
relevant maturity grouping at each balance sheet date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months from the balance
sheet date equal to their carrying amounts in the statements of
financial position, as the impact of discount is not significant.

DRE 1225 2835 A st
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and 3 years Total

ARBTRE AR®TRT AR®TR AR®T:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

®2022F12831H As at 31 December 2022

B 5 N H A e FRoE > Trade and other payables® 1,629,706 105,398 — 1,735,104
eI B Dividend payable 22,526 — — 22,526
HEAE Lease liabilities 10,321 9,792 1,951 22,064
&% Borrowings 2,354 — — 2,354
Fo Total 1,664,907 115,190 1,951 1,782,048
#2021E12H31H As at 31 December 2021

B 5 & H o FE A FRIE Trade and other payables * 1,412,575 92,857 = 1,505,432
JERTIR B Dividend payable 25,293 = = 25,293
HEAR Lease liabilities 3,129 7,959 3,938 15,026
Fo Total 1,440,997 100,816 3,938 1,545,751
G TEREEGHFe R EMENBHESHE & Excluding non-financial liabilities of accrued payroll and other tax

TRARE- payables.
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3.2

3.3
(i)

B 7% B B B B (s 3

EXERE 3.2

AERENERAEEEERENKER
BREMEEN KMAERARMD
HoREMSOERENS  LER
B EARRBIARIEERBA o

RIKFBAHBERNERE  AEET
RERERARRAINOBRSSRE &
THBRMNIHEEENRDER

REBNERABLRSEREEH
AR LR FABERABENG
H-FRABERELAGBRASZRRES
EBYFE - BERNREE MBI K
mATRE [ IERERE -

20224 K2021%12A31H © K &
B FIRSAREE -

DRABEEME 3.3
RAEEER (i)

AEHABERMBRRARDR
BEERANMFENERTANRR(E
EREHOHERGE  REHERE
AREEMABAENAFELEER -
AEBERSFEURESESR TR
DHER=—ER TRAASZER -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for owners and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the
consolidated statements of financial position plus net debt.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group maintained at
net cash position.

Fair value estimation

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in
determining the fair values of the financial instruments that
are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified
its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under
the accounting standards. An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.
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3.3
(i)

B 7% B B B B (s

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

AREEME (8 3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
RAREBEERE) (i)  Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)
BRNEBEFARMEEKA G Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
LHEE income
E-B E-E E=E @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
i3 ARETR AR¥ETR AR¥ETR AR¥TR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EEMALEETE Recurring fair value measurements
12022F12A31R At 31 December 2022
SREE Financial assets
EFLLEWES Listed bonds denominated in
US Dollars 19 5,996 - - 5,996
tREELE Total Financial assets 5,996 - - 5,996
F-E F_E F=E Bt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
iR AREFTT  AREFR  AREFT ARETn
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EEHALEHETE Recurring fair value measurements
2021512 531A At 31 December 2021
¢REE Financial assets
EnLWES Listed bonds denominated in US
Dollars 19 52,390 - - 52,390
CREELE Total Financial assets 52,390 = = 52,390
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3 HBEREBER® 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 AREHEME(E) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
(i) RAEBEBRE) (i) Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)
BERAEBBEFA B2 EE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
E-B BB F=E EH)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
iz ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
BEHALEHETE Recurring fair value measurements
#2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022
tREE Financial assets
ErTLWES Listed bonds denominated in
US Dollars 20 80,636 - - 80,636
BREM Trust products 20 - - 75,624 75,624
REES Investment funds 20 - - 165,842 165,842
TRRER Convertible loans 20 - - 107,515 107,515
FEmE LR Unlisted preference shares 20 - - 21,708 21,708
tREELE Total Financial assets 80,636 - 370,689 451,325
E- E_E e @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
)3 AR¥TR AR¥ETR AR¥ETR AR¥TR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEMLLEETE Recurring fair value measurements
R2021E12 8318 At 31 December 2021
tREE Financial assets
EnLmEF Listed bonds denominated in
US Dollars 20 217,822 - - 217,822
BEEM Trust products 20 - - 102,834 102,834
BEEm Wealth management products 20 - - 8,083 8,083
TRRER Convertible loans 20 = = 102,166 102,166
FETRER Unlisted preference shares 20 - - 20,000 20,000
tREELE Total Financial assets 217,822 - 233,083 450,905
REA - REBHEAABEITEMS - There were no transfers among levels 1, level 2 and level 3 for
F—B FZEURE-EBzHILE recurring fair value measurements during the year.
R o
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3.3
(i)

B 7% B B B B (s

F—EB-RNEARMBHLEENEBTA
(PIMAREBENITET AR EHER)
MAABERERSESHROTSRE
SR - AEBFKAENTRHEENT S
BERKERKERE RFLAIASR
7 ®

BB URNEEMEEEN R
TEAMBIMBIXHITETR)NAR
BEXRAGHEXMEE [HEXMN
ZEENRUBEMSHEE R840
KBEEENBEMST - WAE—S&
TEAMNAAEEMTINMEEANEA
ERABRHE  AZIAIAEZ
o

BB W—EXZFEEAGAEL
ERBAIBEMBSHE - A2 LA
ABEZE - ZEBHBERBRIELTRA
BE - CEHER BHESR FHRRK
ERRIFLTELR -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and listed bonds)
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, trust products,
wealth management products, convertible loans and unlisted
preference shares.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2022 Annual Report

165l



eV BRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 4318 [E4F E For the year ended 31 December 2022

3 UBEBREEm 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.3 AREEMEE) 3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

(i) FHEXTJHEWAEZER (ii)  Fair value measurements using significant
RAEE(E=ZE) unobservable inputs (level 3)
TRE5EE2022%12A318 %2021 The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the
FRANBILEFEE=EEB&F) years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021:

EREM BHER REEE WRRER FLafihk a3t
Wealth Unlisted
Trust management  Investment  Convertible preference
products products Funds loans shares Total

ARBTR AR®TR ARBTn ARMTr ARMTR  ARWTR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

RONFIB1BHED L8 Opening balance as at
1 January 2022 102,834 8,083 - 102,166 20,000 233,083
Wi Acquisitions 259,697 3,000 303,701 10,000 - 576,398
HE Disposals (286,907) (11,000) (143,471) - - (441,378)
MEERE/(BE) Fair value gains/(losses) - (83) 5,612 (4,651) 1,708 2,586

RANENANANEREH Closing balance as at
31 December 2022 15,624 - 165,842 107,515 21,708 370,689
ERER BHER REEE WEAREX FLaBER o
Wealth Unlisted
management Investment ~ Convertible preference

Trust products products Funds loans shares Total
ARETT  ARETR ARETn  ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RONEIBIBREDNEH Opening balance as at
1 January 2021 98,693 - 1,000 - - 99,693
W Acquisitions 525,624 8,083 - 102,166 20,000 655,873
& Disposals (521,483) - - - - (521,483)
EZL-RHNELR Transferred to a subsidiary = = (1,000) = = (1,000)

RONENANANERE S Closing balance as at

31 December 2021 102,834 8,083 - 102,166 20,000 233,083
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3.3
(iii)

B 7% B B B B (s

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

A R EE M E) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
BEBEABRALEEBHERFRE (i) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (Level
=E) 3)
BAREE TIRERAES
i AMEE HERH FTREEEAE (TEk— mETH) MEENEE
Range of inputs Relationship of
(probability-weighted unobservable inputs to
Description Fair value at Valuation technique  Un-observable inputs average) fair value
0% 20015
128318 12A318 plPRES 1%
3 31
December ~ December
2022 201 2022 2021
AR®TR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
fERER ;64 102834 EERETE HRE 8%9%  8%9% HREER AAEEHE
Trust products Discounted cash flow Discount rate The higher the discount rate, the
lower of fair value
Refe 165,842 - BRRoRE HRE 8%9%  8%9% HAERER AAEEHE
Investment funds Discounted cash flow Discount rate The higher the discount rate, the
lower of fair value
BEER - 8083 HRRLNE HR% 18R 8%-9% HREHE RREEEE
Wealth management products Discounted cash flow Discount rate NA The higher the discount rate, the
lower of fair value
ThRES 107515 102166 ERKLHE R 12%-13% MR BREER AABEME
Convertible bonds Discounted cash flow Discount rate NA  The higher the discount rate, the
lower of fair value
ELTEER 21,708 0000 HEERERE R 12%-13% MR BREER AABEHE
Unlisted preference shares Discounted cash flow Discount rate NA The higher the discount rate, the
lower of fair value
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3.3
(iv)

(a)

B B E ()
2D B 1 3 ()
HEBE

AEEPBHRE - ERYBREE
REEMERBETHENEEK 8
BRE-ZEAABE ZEFEZEAE
FHBERBREEGER -HES
RO RELERABRMBE  FZ
éﬁaﬁﬁﬁl%%ﬁ E R YN
A—R BAEELFREH K -

BEVBE BERZECEGEERK
DA EF— //\E’ME{E‘TEH%']TE/\R%&
THRROME_BRE=EBEAAEE
Hy & f’F?%uTumaE’J**M ' % B &
RE-NHAIAEBEEINRAR

B KR (R A

AEBHRRELGEFRERR - FAE
MEFHIARERERLIER JHE%
ERER -ATRETEVRFEEDN
éﬁ&ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁfﬁé’]iﬁﬁﬁ%fﬂz
ERAR G R BRI

EZRBRENRERRE

AEERBHEAHBEBEINMERIE
HESREFEER AKERER
THARBEEBEESE BRETAK
AR EELEZSFHRER R EER
ﬁﬂ“%ﬁkﬁﬁ@%%%°ﬁ%ﬁ
EMUAFERPBERKNE
NMEBRBERERELE K%@E%
BANEERE BEERONEHERR
BRENHEERBETEHER A A
BHRE -

3.3
(iv)

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

Valuation process

The finance department of the Group includes a team that
performs the valuation of non-property items required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value. This
team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO) and the
audit committee (AC). Discussion of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO, AC and the valuation team at
least once every six months, in line with the Group’s half-yearly
reporting periods.

Changes in level 2 and 3 fair value are analysed at the end of
each reporting period during the half-yearly valuation discussion
between the CFO, AC and the valuation team. As part of this
discussion, the team presents a report that explains the reason
for the fair value movements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

Allowance on doubtful trade receivables

The Group makes allowances on trade receivables based
on assumptions about expected loss rates. The Group used
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. The
forward looking information is based on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the GDP, completed investment in real
estate development and total retail sales of consumer goods to
be the most relevant factors.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

EREE TR AE @

EZRBRENRRESE (B

MREHERAGAEEZR  FRE
ERFEFMAGLAZENEBEHNRE
SERBFERREAXNEERE - A
MEAGARAABAENFE 2
B XX HfaE3.1.2

B A % 3 #E P 18 B

AEBRETEBRANECEMRSR - &£
MEREABRBES R R BMAERNE
R REE - AELHE - EREER
BET FEXFIRFAENKRREA
EEFETHMER -EF6HEEN
BRRTIABRERIICEN SRR -
AEHEZEReYEFLARETEY
R AT 1S M BB FE TR TR B4R o

EEBEERR/ARKERB N B G
ERAEEETERERZEAHEA
EEE  BRSRETERZHRY
AEBRNELERBREE BERER
BRATBENR -

ERMIANAAEE

THEEBRMSEXINEBRTANAR
BERBHEZRE AKEREHE
HEREZRE AT BEERER
SHHRT SR RIELRR - BRAE
AOERBEREZERREINOY
EMHAER  F2HME33 -

(a)

(b)

(c)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

Allowance on doubtful trade receivables (Cont'd)

Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed. For details of the key
assumption and inputs used, see Note 3.1.2 above.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC.
Judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxations. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to
be probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of
the key assumptions used and the impact of changes to these
assumptions see Note 3.3.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

EREE TR AE @
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UR¥BEHELENHENER

BEAHEREAARAEREFBE
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AEZRZ(EEREFERAER
¥ . EBITDAARI X - BRI X R R MK
FEAENEBRAAFERFH - @E
ZHS BRMFEITR32 -
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A0 B FE27 B BE M A IR ) R A TE
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HIAXH - NI B R AR - WBh
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RREE-

AR R EF G
BEEREFEME EEERSK
BYEEREANRS —EBINRSE
EFEU(REELEEN]) MEE
BERESEEZKREARN EEEE
BREEREEAFERAAEBERBG
EXNEMEFZRSEEETCDEDE
BENREELEMNHAT R DS EF
HEERNE EXHABREAIRE
BREMNE RFEARHERMEFE
EREEREMNEEHETARE
AEIERRKR HIZBEFEKRAE
EX -EMNEREHAMBEE - AH
BZFHE - BRMET7 -

(d)

(e)

(f)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

Fair value assessment of the trademarks and
customer relationships and the recognition of
goodwill arising from business combinations

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the fair
value assessment of the identified trademarks and customer
relationships and the recognition of goodwill arising from
business combinations. These significant judgements and
estimates include the adoption of appropriate valuation
methodologies and the use of key assumptions in the valuation
(mainly annual revenue growth rate, EBITDA margins, discount
rates and expected useful lives of trademarks and customer
relationships). See Notes 17 and 32 for more details.

Share-based payments - expense recognition

Share-based payments as disclosed in Note 27, the Group has
granted share options to the Group’s employees. The Company
has engaged an independent valuer to determine the fair value
of the options granted to employees, which is expensed over the
vesting periods. Unobservable inputs such as the discount rate,
risk-free interest rate, volatility and dividend yield, etc. are used
in determining the fair value of the share-based compensations.

Goodwill impairment assessment

For the purposes of goodwill impairment assessment,
management considered each of the acquired group a separate
group of cash-generated-units (“CGU") and goodwill has been
allocated to each of the acquired group. Management assessed
the impairment of goodwill by determining the recoverable
amounts of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
based on the higher of value-in-use calculation and fair value
less cost of disposals. Significant judgements and estimates
were involved in the goodwill impairment assessment. These
significant judgements and estimates include the adoption of
appropriate valuation method and the use of key assumptions
in the valuation, which primarily include annual revenue growth
rate, gross profit margin and discount rate. See Note 17 for
more details.
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EERE  SEFAEFHEGERS &
EREEREAEEZEERRE - BEE
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HuedE  URERDEELRE -
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AEBOFELEEBANPE &
REBREZE2022F12831B 1L FE
2 ATREFEH -

20224 K20215E128318 K& &
MATEERBEEANRFE T8
HFEMIAREERBEE -

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by CODM. The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segment, has been identified as the executive and
non-executive directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group was
principally engaged in the provision of property management
services and value-added services, including developer-related
value-added services, community-related value-added services
and smart community services in the PRC. Management reviews
the operating results of the business as one operating segment
to make decisions about resources to be allocated. Therefore,
the CODM of the Company regards that there is only one
segment which is used to make strategic decisions.

The principal operating entity of the Group is domiciled in the
PRC. Accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue was derived in the
PRC during the year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all of the non-current
assets of the Group were located in the PRC excluding financial
instruments and deferred tax assets.
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6 WAKREERRBEKAE 6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES
KAZTZEEMXERRG REEAE Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from property
PR %5 FiT 15 I8 o B 2= 20224F K 20214 management services and value-added services. An analysis of
RANBLEFE AEEZERE S the Group’s revenue and cost of sales and services by category
A RBERRBLADTAT for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is as follows:
BENANMALEE
For the year ended 31 December
20228 20215
2022 2021
ARBT T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HER HER
'ON PR % Ak A oA R 7 B AR
Cost of sales Cost of sales
Revenue  and services Revenue and services

RHEFLH—BREBEA  Revenue from customers and

BN recognised over time:
MEEERE Property management services 3,024,934 2,285,035 2,100,212 1,468,342
EER Value added services:
-HEREERS - Developer-related value-added
services 519,518 391,976 815,257 579,241
- EEERS — Community-related value-added
services 821,869 581,580 435,055 267,207
-BERERE — Smart community services 350,552 293,973 519,663 433,807
4,716,873 3,552,564 3,870,187 2,748,597
REEFLH—EEBE  Revenue from customers recognised
LA ON at a point in time
BERY: Value added services:
- EEERE - Community-related value-added
services 462,680 288,849 480,548 260,591
5,179,553 3,841,413 4,350,735 3,009,188
MEEBERBEZERTPREFPRS - Property management services mainly represents service
PREDEREEREE  RERBE - R to residents and tenants, including property and facilities
BR% RERE A HEHEER maintenance, security services, cleaning services, horticulture
HimExEEMEERS - services, public areas repair and maintenance and other property

management related services.
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(a)

WARBEERRBEAZ () 6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (cont'd)
AENEERBEEZZEAMERED Developer-related value-added services mainly represents service
BERYE 2ERSHEEHHKRE related to property developers, including on-site sale assistance
BAREFBRERS services, consulting services and house inspection services.
MHEREEREEZZERRBEAXER Community-related value-added services mainly represents
EERY HRIBRYE EBEZEE service to render public resources management services,
k% EETERE -  BEHRRH% R community engineering services, extensive decoration
MEREMZEBRELEERE A& services, asset management services, catering services,
MOEETNBEFREETFEEFERE facility management and various other home living services to
MAEEMITERE - property owners and customers, with a view to providing them
with a more comfortable and convenient living and working
environment.
BEEERBEXERHAKSEE Smart community services mainly provide one-stop smart
B EEMATR  ERBER solutions for various projects, covering residential properties,
E -BTFENGEEESE - office buildings and complexes.
HEFEHNEBANEERAE (a) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers
AEBEEHRUATEEFSHNBHD The Group had recognised the following assets and liabilities
EEKRBE: related to contracts with customers:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR% T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEZREREBBEH Contract assets relating to smart
ERNEE community services 304,728 294,754
518 B Loss allowance (11,988) (5,259)
EHEEBRE Total contract assets 292,740 289,495
EHBE Contract liabilities
-MEERRE — Property management services 637,133 646,688
-FAEEIEERE - Developer-related value-added services 97,904 92,439
- 1t @ E R — Community-related value-added services 7,603 12,236
-EEZRERB — Smart community services 5,259 24,675
EHNEaBERER Total contract liabilities 747,899 776,038
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6 WARSBERRKERA®m 6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (cont'd)

(b) EHEEREEBNEXRED (b) Significant change in contract assets and liabilities
REBENEGHNEEFTERREREBTE Contract assets of the Group mainly arise from provision
HEEE®EEDMNREREK AR of smart community services ahead of the agreed payment
HELZEERE - schedules for fixed-price contracts.
REBHENBBEXTEELEARFPE Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the advance
RETERFRIE - A8 AR M R iR o payments made by customers while the underlying services are
FHEBEENTHRAEEERIER yet to be provided. Such liabilities increased as a result of the
B8R o growth of the Group's business.

() BENEEBBIVKRA (c) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
TRERABRERARRNEESL The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
BEMRKA: in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward

contract liabilities:
BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000

SAFNENEBEHN Revenue recognised that was included

BRI ON in the contract liabilities balance at

the beginning of the year
W) ¥ E B RIS Property management services 620,161 525,595
7 2RI E R Developer-related value-added services 92,439 38,713
@ 3 1B AR 5 Community-related value-added services 12,236 34,660
BERRERG Smart community services 24,675 22,599
749,511 621,567
FHIRBEEEERA R
L‘ 74 onEEgs
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(d)

(e)

WA K 5 E & BRI R AN (@)

AETHENER

AMEEERY - FAEEIEERSER
HERERBNE AKEEAXRE
FTHERCRERNERAAZZNORA
(MEAEEH=ZBNBEONTRE
EERUHENEHE)  AKECREE
M BREZERUEONERBENE
T ERERBEEE LT - KEH
MEEERBEHLFAEBIEER
BYEEETHR - HEHEREEL
HR-BNEFHIRMBASAAE
ETBHEERBEER

REEZ2RRRBME - 2022912831
HARBITHRENZ®AARYES,259,000
70 (20214F = A R #24,675,0007T) © T8
HER T EREHEER BB A -

BEESESANHEREIBRENE
E

REZE2022F12A831BIEFE - W &
EAESKBTEHMFTEHNE KX
BA - AESiEEREAEE -

6

(d)

(e)

REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (cont'd)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For property management services, developer-related
value-added services and community-related value-added
services, the Group recognises revenue in the amount that
equals to the right to invoice which correspond directly with the
value to the customer of the Group’s performance to date, on a
monthly or quarterly basis. The Group has elected the practical
expedient for not to disclose the remaining performance
obligation for these types of contracts. The majority of the
property management services contracts and developer-related
value-added services do not have a fixed term. The term of the
contracts for community — related services is generally set to
expire when the counterparties notify several months in advance
the Group that the services are no longer required.

For smart community services, there is unsatisfied performance
obligation of RMB5,259,000 at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB24,675,000), which is expected to be recognised as revenue
during the next reporting period.

Assets recognised from incremental costs to obtain
a contract
During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no

significant incremental costs to obtain or fulfil a contract, and
accordingly no asset was recognised.
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7 RMUHEESISIWNEH 7  EXPENSES BY NATURE
BZE12A31MBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR TR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EERHMNE M (M:E8) Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) 1,940,208 1,357,714
FTFE B R E A @ &S m Consumables and goods used 973,361 863,255
INBRE - HERFBRKAR Outsourced security, greening and

cleaning costs 952,187 912,077
NAREE Utilities 209,947 119,305

EREHEERMF16K%17) Depreciation and amortisation charges
(Note 16 and 17) 90,774 32,974
MmAE R Office expenses 76,979 45,264
ERE Travelling expenses 58,018 44,065
EIRKEEER Employee uniform and related expenses 26,053 16,934
EEB Professional fees 19,592 17,948
(XBRESE Business entertainment expenses 22,165 15,527
18 K M on & Taxes and surcharges 18,080 22,411
RITFBE Bank charges 7,975 10,663
7 2R 1B (Bt 3517) Impairment of goodwill (Note 17) 5,404 -
% RN B & Auditor’s remuneration 3,000 3,161
BT FEERE Including: audit services 2,900 2,900
FE&E &R non-audit services 100 261
EEREEER Advertising and promotion expenses 2,228 2,556
LEREL N Operating lease payments 2,715 502
H i Others 5,816 2,902
4,414,502 3,467,258

HERBRBEKATEBEE TR

\

> Cost of sales and services includes mainly employee benefit

B-ERE SERBERE 2
FA & b B A R B2 AR 75 B AE A BN OB
HmlkEme

expenses, outsourced security, greening and cleaning costs,
utilities and consumables and goods used in providing services.

MARBRBEERRAR
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8 EEBANEH 8  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December

202245 20214
2022 2021
ARE T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
T&  He RIEL Wages, salaries and bonuses 1,614,134 1,126,566
A B& 19 7 2 B 8 < 3R (BfE 5227) Share-based payments (Note 27) 10,394 8,742
RIKE Pension 141,024 100,982

FTFEAES BEERBK Housing funds, medical insurances and
H it 2R other social insurances 107,622 73,759
HibE & F Other employee benefits 67,034 47,665
1,940,208 1,357,714

REBOHTEKBRARIEESEASINA
A WREEE MBS R T HRET
Zl o AEERMFRHWE AR DR S
TBRNREMNEEFE TESLRA
el UBZEERKER - &
20224 K2021%128318 1E F & -
BMERKSFEE THHIE LK
AEETARKDRBHIKKE -

BEMEERRIN  NEBEBEE M
Bz E A B AR R MR KR A A
EXREAME-

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution scheme administrated
and operated by government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries
contribute funds which are calculated on certain percentages of
the employee salary as agreed by the local government to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees. There
were no forfeited contributions under this pension plan for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, which may be used
by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond the
annual contributions described above.
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8 EERAINEHAHM®S® 8
(a) ENVERSHFEMAL (a)

HE2022F 128318 IEEE - AEE
B A & = 5B A £ B 18 R Az (2021
FMA)EF HFME &5 R K
38R DA ° B E2022%12 A
3MTEIEFE - ERHEE =A(20214F :
=) BEAZNEFHB T

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Cont'd)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 include 2 (2021: 2) directors, whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 38.
The emoluments payable to the remaining 3 (2021: 3) highest
paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2022 were as
follows:

BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EXF e Basic salaries 4,126 3,489
B4 Bonuses 697 2,249
LA R 1 7% 2 7 &9 5 3K Share-based payments 1,240 1,668
FTEAES BERRBKE Housing fund, medical insurances and

Hi it 8RB other social insurances 213 170
RIK® Pension 188 152
6,464 7,728

ZEFTHELATSESEERA

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

A#E
Number of individuals
BZ12A31HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
e & B (A B T E) Emolument bands (in HK dollar)
2,000,001/ 7t £2,500,000/%% 7t  HKD$2,000,001 — HKD$2,500,000 3 -
2,500,001/% 7Tt 23,000,000/ 7t  HKD$2,500,001 — HKD$3,000,000 - 2
3,000,001/ 7t £3,500,000/% 7t  HKD$3,000,001 — HKD$3,500,000 - -
3,500,001/ 7T 24,000,000/ 7t  HKD$3,500,001 — HKD$4,000,000 - 1
3 3
l.] 78 %ﬁiﬁi'fﬁﬂﬁifﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
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9 Hfttlg A 9  OTHER INCOME
BZ12A31ALLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FBEEAABETAEBIZINSE Interest income from financial assets at
BERBALEBEFAEME  fair value through profit or loss and
ARAKNSRHEENF BEUWA  financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 40,451 49,150
B KT 8 B (B 5%) Government grants (Note) 49,669 23,925
HA Others 7,021 7,531
97,141 80,606
MaZ: BN ETZREMBAORE - & Note:  The government grants mainly represented tax refunds from local

SRR BN R E KGR E MK

government. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies

REIHE - attaching to these grants.
10 HMEH 10 OTHER EXPENSES
BZ12A318LEFE
For the year ended 31 December

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B (8 Compensation 8,075 3,619
H A Others 3,054 758
11,129 4,377
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1N HitEEFEE 11 OTHER LOSSES — NET
BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR TR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EH (W) B8 FE Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses (17,207) 10,491
BEARBEFABZNESEEE Net fair value losses on financial assets
M)A BEEEFE (KM 7£20)  at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 20) 125,541 126,582
HEWHE  WERXED Net gains on disposal of property, plant
I & &8 and equipment (4,647) (1,310)
103,687 135,763
12 BB A FEEE 12 FINANCE INCOME - NET
BZE12A31MBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2022F 20214
2022 2021
AR TR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERBEEEWHF BUA  Interest income on cash and cash
equivalents 26,372 29,302
HEABEN EBMHFE R Interest and finance charges paid/payable
B % & B (M 7E16(b)) for lease liabilities (Note 16(b)) (925) (337)
B A F B Finance income — net 25,447 28,965
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13 KMBATE

7K £ B 7A20224F K 2021412 A31H #Y

13 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and

FEWBEBARTHI AT : 2021 are set out below:
HEL/ BETR
WEARER RIBEREH HRERA AREfERARRES FERERFEESEEE IEED/LEnY
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
ANE WNE 002% W1E
2022 201 2022 2021
ARRRLZERAT RERAEBARAT E3p 100.00% 100.00% - - BRAA
Chief Global Enterprise Limited 01851A23H UsD1 Holding Company
British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
23 January 2018
BEMUSERRRAA BEARDA 17 100.00% 100.00% - - BRAA
Hong Kong Xinchengyue Development 201814318 HK1 Holding Company
Limited Hong Kong, limited liability
company 31 January 2018
TEHARERERAA REEHERATE 3000000057 100.00% 100.00% - - RE
Jiangsu Xinchengyue Holdings Company 20182138 USD30,000,000 Investment
Limited Changzhou, the PRC,
limited liability company#
13 February 2018
FRENERRNERLA HEEMERA ARH 99.00% 99.00% 1.00% 100% EEHRARRE
Xincheng Fuyue Management Consulting  2014%128118 129,292,997 Management consultation
Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB129,292,929 and Investment
limited liability company*
11 December 2014
oK) DxRBEARLA R N AEE 99.99% 99.99% 0.01% 001% NEEERE wERD
Xinchengyue (Chengdu) Property 2020%6A118 10,000,0007 Property management
Management Co., Ltd. Chengdu, the PRC, limited  RMB10,000,000 services, Chengdu,
liability company the PRC
11 June 2020
AHEREZRARRAT RN ERAA 3,000,000% T 100.00% 100.00% - - RE AL
Yangzhou Jiayue Industrial Investment 202012 A14A USD3,000,000 Investment, Yangzhou,

Co., Ltd.

Yangzhou, the PRC, limited
liability company#
14 December 2020

the PRC
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13 KMEX @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
ifEL/ 2Rk
WEARER RIBEREE ARRA AREREREEER FRREGFEEGREESE TEED/LE4Y
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
WANE WNE WNE 1%
2022 2021 2022 2021
ENRERBEEARAR hEENERAT AE® 64.99% 64.99% 35.01% B01%  REEERRHK REEN
Changzhou Shengling Equipment 2020%11A28 5,000,0007C Equipment management
Management Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB5,000,000 services, Changzhou,
limited liability company the PRC
02 November 2020
THEZUERIRARDA hEENERAT AE® 64.99% 64.99% 35.01% H01%  EBIRRE EEN
((I#%L)) 20005128108 3,000,000 Flevator Engineering
Jiangsu Changli Elevator Engineering Co.,  Changzhou, the PRC, RMB3,000,000 services, Changzhou,
Ltd. ("Jiangsu Changli") limited liability company the PRC
10 December 2020
THERSRIEARAT hEENERAT AE® 93.72% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% HERE FEEM
Jiangsu Dashun Elevator Co,, Ltd. 2012554318 10,000,0007C Maintenance services,
Changzhou, the PRC, RMB10,000,000 Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
31 May 2012
AMERNXRBEARAR hERMERAA AE® 93.72% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% MEER hERM
(MRNES)) 1999%1745H 8,000,000 Property management
Hangzhou Wanyue Property Hangzhou, the PRC, limited RMBS,000,000 Hangzhou, the PRC
Management Co., Ltd. ("Hangzhou  liability company
Wanyue") 5 January 1999
FEESRNARAT hEENERAT AR 93.72% 93.712% 6.28% 6.28% HEREREE REE
Changzhou Xincheng Information 2014598308 1,000,0007C M
Technology Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB1,000,000 Software development
limited liability company and maintenance,
30 September 2014 Changzhou, the PRC
BEHARDERBEROERARD  HERNERAA AR 93.72% 93.12% 6.28% 6.28% MEERRE RELH
([EEHER) 199634258 120,000,000 i
Tibet Xinchengyue Property (R20155BZA/E)  RMB120,000,000 Property management
Management Co., Ltd.("Tibet Changzhou, the PRC, services, Cities across the
Xinchengyue") limited liability company PRC
25 March 1996
(moved to Tibet in 2015)
L‘ 82 %ﬁiﬁi'rﬁ}i&i%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
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13

Bt B 2 &) () 13 SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)
HfEL/ BRAR
WEARER RIBEREH ARRA ARERERERERER FRREGFEEGREESE TEED/LE4Y
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests  place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
WANE WNE WNE 1%
2022 2021 2022 2021
LHERB N HERAA hEENERAT AE® 93.72% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% EEERRHE 7EFNM
Jiangsu Ruohong Intelligent Technology ~ 2014%3A19R 10,000,00070 Smart community services,
Co,, Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB10,000,000 Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
19 March 2014
LESRERRIERAR hE EEERAA AE® 93.12% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% EBEERRYE PELE
Shanghai Shuyuan Information 2017518198 10,000,0007 Smart community services,
Technology Co., Ltd Shanghai, the PRC, limited RMB10,000,000 Shanghai, the PRC
liability company
19 January 2017
BE(EM BERRARAT hEENERAT AE® 93.72% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% EEERERHE FEFNM
Changzhou Park Inteligent Technology ~ 2017£6A5H 2,000,0007 Smart community services,
Co,, Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB2,000,000 Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
5 June 2017
BNEZREGAAEARAR hEENERAT AE® 93.72% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% itEREERE  REENM
Changzhou Chengxiang Xinsheng 2020558118 1,000,0007 Community-related
Household Management Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB1,000,000 value-added services,
limited liability company Changzhou, the PRC
11 May 2020
ARBERERAR(HRER]) hERBERLE AE® 57.64% 5764% 42.36% 236% NEERRE RARY
Chengyue Times Co,, Ltd. (“Chengyue 200410712 15,000,0007C Property management
Times') Chengdu, the PRC, limited  RMB15,000,000 services, Chengdu, the
liability company PRC
12 October 2004
RAHRKERERERLA hERAERLA AR 57.64% 57.64% 42.36% 236% EHERRE ARG
Chengdu Yueshishang Catering 2016%11A158 3,000,0007 Catering management
Management Co,, Ltd. Chengdu, the PRC, limited ~ RMB3,000,000 services, Chengdu, the
liability company PRC
15 November 2016
REZRNEEEERAA hEREBRAA AE® 56.23% 56.23% B.77% BI%  NEERRE PEAE
(REZZ)) 200855458 5,000,0007C Property management
Dalian Hua'an Property Management Dalian, the PRC, limited ~ RMB5,000,000 services, Dalian, the PRC

Co,, Ltd. ("Dalian Hua'an")

liability company
5 May 2008
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13 KBRE @

13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

ifEL/ 2Rk
WEARER RIBEREE ARRA AREfERERERS FRREGFEEGREESE TEED/LE4Y
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
WANE WNE WNE WNE
2022 2021 2022 2021
LBRRRERAERART hE L EERAF AE® 100.00% 100.00% - - DXEERE tEHLE
Shanghai Boyi Real Estate Consulting 20211768 40,000,0007 Property management
Co,, Ltd. Shanghai, the PRC, limited RMB40,000,000 services, Shanghai, the
liability company PRC
6 January 2021
BRERRANRARAR hEERERAA AE® 99.99% 99.99% 0.01% 001% EEEERE RHER
Nanjing Yuncabinet Network Technology 2021517138 50,000,000 Smart community services,
Co,, Ltd. Nanjing, the PRC, limited  RMB50,000,000 Nanjing, the PRC
liability company
13 January 2021
LWREBNFERERAR hEEMNERAA AE® 51.55% 51.55% 48.45% B45%  NEEBRE - REEN
(LRESH) 200455524 5,000,007 Property management
Shandong Lead Property Management  Binzhou, the PRC, limited ~ RMBS5,000,000 services, Binzhou, the
Co., Ltd. ("Shandong Lead") liability company PRC
24 May 2004
BHNXRBERERAT hERNERAA AE® 70.99% 70.99% 20.01% 000% NEEERE  REEN
((HEng) 2015%156H 50,000,0007C Property management
Xiangcheng Property Service Group Co.,  Wenzhou, the PRC, limited RMB50,000,000 services, Wenzhou, the
Ltd. ("Xiangcheng Property”) liability company PRC
6 January 2015
FEREZ(RT) RARKAERLT HEERERART AR 79.99% 79.99% 20.01% 000% NEEERH FEZR
([2th%]) WNELA3A 10,000,000 Property management
Xinchengyue Smart (Zhejiang) Logistics  Ningbo, the PRC, limited ~ RMB10,000,000 services, Ningbo, the PRC
Service Co., Ltd. ("Liangshi liability company
Property”) 23 February 2011
ENBRNEERERLT HEERERAT AR 64.99% 64.99% 35.01% B0%  NEEERE - HERR
([BENSR) 2010594128 5,000,000 Property management
Guizhou Bajie Property Management Guiyang, the PRC, limited ~ RMBS5,000,000 services, Guiyang, the
Co., Ltd. ("Guizhou Bajie") liability company PRC
12 September 2010
BNERRALERAR hEENERAT AR 99.99% 99.99% 0.01% 001% WEEERE  FEEN
Changzhou Hengjia Travel Agency Co., 2021584128 1,000,0007 Property management
Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB1,000,000 services, Changzhou, the
limited liability company PRC
12 August 2021
bl ] DE
free  famamEmeRen
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13

Bt B 2 &) () 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
HfEL/ BRAR
WEARER RIBEREH ARRA ARBfERERRS FRREGFEEGREESE TEED/LE4Y
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests  place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
WANE WNE WNE WNE
2022 2021 2022 2021
AXENEERRBARLA HEERERAT AE® 69.99% 69.99% 30.01% 000% NEEERE hEER
([EaxL]) 200353848 10,000,000 Property management
Yantai Yongle Property Management Yantai, the PRC, limited ~ RMB10,000,000 services, Yantai, the PRC
Service Co., Ltd. ("Yantai Yongle")  liability company
04 March 2003
LEERERERRBEERAT hE L EERARY AE® 79.99% 79.99% 20.01% 000% EREE PELE
([2rea) 20454878 16,000,0007C Catering services, Shanghai,
Shanghai Xuefu Catering Management  Shanghai, the PRC, limited RMB16,000,000 the PRC
Service Co., Ltd ("Xuefu Catering”)  liability company*
7 April 2004
HNENNXEBARAT hEFNERAA AE® 64.99% 64.99% 35.01% B01%  WEEERE - hEHN
(T&MEN) 2010587188 2,000,0007 Property management
Suzhou Baochuan Property Management  Suzhou, the PRC, limited ~ RMB2,000,000 services, Suzhou, the PRC
Service Co,, Ltd. ("Suzhou liability company
Baochuan”) 18 August 2010
BNERMERERRBEERLD  PEHENERAD AE® 69.99% TR 30.01% TR ERRK EEN
([EREEK)) 155848 10,000,000 Not applicable Not applicable ~ Catering services, Suzhou,
Suzhou Health Catering Management ~ Suzhou, the PRC, limited ~ RMB10,000,000 the PRC
Service Co,, Ltd. ("Health liability company
Catering”) 4 May 2015
RETEENEERERAA HEXREERA AE® 69.99% TR 30.01% TR DEEERE fEXE
Y ES) 200652A208 3,500,000 Not applicable Not applicable Property management
Tianjin Jinyu Property Management Tianjin, the PRC, limited ~ RMB3,500,000 services, Tianjin, the PRC
Co., Ltd. ("Jinyu Property”) liability company
20 February 2006
RETEMEIERERERAA  HERERERAD AR¥ 69.99% TER 30.01% TR ERRE rERE
Tianjin Binhang Jinyu Catering 200947138 10,0007 Not applicable Not applicable  Catering services, Tianjin,
Management Co. Ltd. Tianjin, the PRC, limited RMB100,000 the PRC
liability company
13 April 2009
THEIRZBHEARAT hEFNERAA AE® 64.99% TER 35.01% TR BREERE REKM
Jiangsu Baochuan Security Service 022567237 10,100,0007 Not applicable Not applicable  Business management
(o, Ltd Suzhou, the PRC, limited ~ RMB10,100,000 services, Linzhou, the

liability company
23 June 2022

PRC
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13 MEBAR @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)
AL/ BRIR
HWEAREHE RIBERAH ARRA rEERERARER FRRERFSEEERER TERH/BE#3
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests place of operation
128310 128318
31 December 31 December
WANE WNE WNE 1%
2022 2021 2022 2021
HRREEHR(H) ERAT hERAERAT ARE 99.80% AER 0.20% MR BRWRGERE:
Chengdu Shuzhi Xinchengyue 201E11A118 30,000,000 Not applicable Not applicable ~ REI#
Technology Co., Ltd. Chengdu, the PRC, limited RMB30,000,000 Technology and Business
liability company* services, Chengdu, the
11 November 2021 PRC
EMEXEHERAT HEEMERAT ARE 65.28% AER 34.72% MR BRWRGERE:
([EMee) 20195108108 10,000,000 Not applicable Notapplicable ~ EIE
Changzhou Yupu Trading Co,, Ltd. Changzhou, The PRC RMB10,000,000 Technology and Business
("Changzhou Yupu") limited liability company services, Changzhou, the
10 October 2019 PRC

* BEPBEEEIAMKIAFIEGERE & Registered as sino-foreign equity joint ventures under PRC law

# BEPBRZREFMA L AN EBEDE # Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law

BrR# REBNPERKIOME LMK EBA Except for * and #, all other subsidiaries of the Group which are established in the

AIHRNERE - PRC are domestic enterprises.

(a) ARABRZEWMB AR P HES B EM (a) The Company has direct or indirect equity interests in these subsidiaries
ERE MZSHBARINREMKEB AR which have direct or indirect equity interests in the other subsidiaries.
AIAEEEERE ZEMB AR These subsidiaries were incorporated in British Virgin Islands or Hong
REBRLBEESNEFBETMRKRS R Kong and all the other subsidiaries were established in mainland China.
BEHMHBARRREAMK Y - FTH All the subsidiaries are limited liabilities companies.
WEBARREREMERA

(b) FAEWBRAREEEEMA KL (b) All the subsidiaries are operating principally in their place of incorporation
g o establishment.

() BAFHRFABEZEEN  BEFRE - B8 (c) Save for disclosed in this annual report, none of the subsidiaries had
MEBRAREEITEMERES - issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

A ZE2022F12A31H © BRI £ ¥ K As of 31 December 2022, as no non-controlling interests that

EEMEBE KO IEEREZ - iF are material to the Group, no related summarised financial

EIWERBAMEERNHE - information are disclosed.
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14

(a)

(b)

(c)

FriEHE M 14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARE T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B EA P 15 B¢ Current income tax
- EMRER — PRC corporate income tax 198,054 195,584
i FE A4S A (M 5E30) Deferred income tax (Note 30)
-FBETEMREH — PRC corporate income tax (45,817) (12,637)
152,237 182,947
HERBEMEH (@) Cayman Island income tax
RARARARRBERESEARERHAERS The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
HfK I ERRERART - Bt exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
BEABMNAERSHEH - Law of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax.
EEELZBEREH (b)  British Virgin Islands income tax
BEABEZHES ((EBELEE]) Under the current laws of British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), all
WITER  RMERBREZHEEM dividends, interest, rents, royalties, compensation and other
RYMWBARIMWIFEEBRZES amounts paid by our subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI to
ERMATZIMNOMERE - FIE - persons who are not resident in the BVI and any capital gains
He BEMNE FekHEMESBENUK realised with respect to any shares, debt obligations, or other
WHEBERBHEERENALTHER securities of such subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI by persons
TEBELZBESEMERINZENW who are not resident in the BVI are exempt from income tax. In
BRARIMEMRKRD  BEHREETXEM addition, upon payments of dividends by our BVI subsidiaries to
BEMBMEBEMEARKZE - A EH us, no BVI withholding tax is imposed.
MEFTEHE o Lo - FAPIAR 3R &8 B & EF
EMBARRBEMEMOKREEER
MEBEZESENB -
ERBAEH () Hong Kong profit tax

AR AEERE 220229128318 &
FEYETWNABAHNTBERNESHD
I A (202148 - 4E) « #R 30 4B 5t & B 7
ST IRE®E -

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group
did not derive any income subject to Hong Kong profits tax
during the year ended 2022(2021: nil).
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14
(d)

FMEHMER®
hESEFREH

AREBHBPEANM KRS ELBNME
MBEERBERITERE - BERES
NI FARRRRAEERREFTE -

AR RAERARMEMMH AR - &
ZRI5%ME R E - FEFTHIRR
FREZHWEESE TH AR - RIEE
RIS ERERER AEEBBRA K
AR ARRAAD AR ERS K
ANETHESHE®R  ERRAEAKA
HI50% D= A QA - M AE2
RNRBBIS%M B EBNTETH - &
AR BAWAEGBRTE0%D#EE S5 AT
i 5 A & B 1&25% B B R 8 FT 15
T BBEANTHESHREERELN
20% °

IR B FTR (AER) K BN R
HERTREESS R EMAORT 15
ZEXI5%MEBEBE o

IEHEEREERENEERARERS
BHREMSEREE  H2023FFER
15% M EBEBE o

BEBE(PEAREMBCEMBH L)
([C¥FmBHRZED BERAEENM
RABERNEMEENSEMESH
FREB25% -

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

PRC corporate income tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in
Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rate
on the estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Tibet Xinchengyue, a Tibet registered Company, is entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15%. Tibet Xinchengyue has a number of
branches across China. According to the relevant tax laws and
regulations, the Group files its income tax return by combining
the taxable income of head office in Tibet and all of its branches
with 50% of the aggregate taxable income apportion to the
head office in Tibet which is subject to income tax rate of 15%
and the remaining 50% among the branches which are subject
to income tax rate of 25%, resulting in an average of about
20% applicable income tax rate.

Chengyue Times and Xinchengyue (Chengdu) and Guizhou
Bajie registered in Western area of China, are entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15%.

Jiangsu Ruohong Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. is entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% until 2023 as it achieved high-tech
enterprise certificate.

The corporate income tax rate applicable to other entities of
the Group located in Mainland China is 25% according to the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC(“the CIT Law").

l1 88
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14
(e)

FRERE M@ 14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

TXHEHINKERGE2EBARNE (e) The reconciliation from income tax calculated based on
MEBRBEAREAENIGH AL the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in the
RAIGHER: consolidated statements of comprehensive income to the

income tax expenses is listed below:

BZ12A31MHLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
kR By 45 2% A A1) B Profit before income tax 626,984 741,676
2 78 FA 1b % FT 15 B B R 25% =T Tax calculated at applicable corporate income
HOIA tax rate of 25% 156,746 185,419
AT EIEB W2 Tax effects of:
- BBIEM S T Al K% & B - Expenses not deductible for taxation
CikzI0)) purposes (Note (i)) 25,376 19,479
— PO K B #B A &) @ A B9 R [/ — Different tax rate applied in Tibet and
B = Chengdu companies (29,731) (22,105)
- RHER AR FT 15 B & Z & - Deductible tax losses and temporary
AHMBRHEEERERZE differences not recognised for deferred
) income tax assets - 154
— FB VB F0 R, IR 3T B & HY 38 7 K — Previously unrecognised tax losses used to
HRHIEEIE reduce deferred tax expense (154) =
152,237 182,947
Hi() AEESSETARERFTEAERMmMN Note: (i) The Group recorded certain expenses not deductible for taxation
BROXH(FEAERAABETAHR purposes, which mainly include net impairment losses on fair
tEERANREBEFEARLEFR value through other comprehensive income and entertainment
REERMBOBHEE) - expenses not eligible for tax deduction.
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15 ARAHEFEAEBEZSREF

(@) BREZXER

FREREABF TIZAREE SR
BABRGAREEMNBRAFASET
ERBROMEFORTE -

15

(a)

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated by dividing
the profit of the Group attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
BF: Earnings:
AEERERBIAMAN Profit attributable to owners of the Company
RRBHEE A G used in the basic earnings per share
(ANR®TFT) calculation (RMB'000) 423,476 525,455
RBEE: Number of shares:
AEFEANEREET Weighted average number of ordinary shares
3 AR A 0 i 1 in issue during the year per share
(AF&H) calculation (in thousand) 853,644 847,729
FRAEARFIHEE ARG Basic earnings per share for profit attributable
MENFRERRAF to the owners of the Company during the
(LAA R TR) year (expressed in RMB) 0.50 0.62
fiso  suagmenes
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15

(b)

KNBHEBEAEESIREFR 15 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

(&)

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

ERBERA (b) Diluted earnings per share
EREBERANIZABREEITEIING L Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
BMRNEF B ARE B ETEE weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
TRREESERGTE - AQAF—HE assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The
THEEAR - BRE BREDRK Company's share-based payment is of dilutive potential.

BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021

BA :

HHEEREERFFAD
RNRARHEHB A LT
(AR¥TFT)

B EE :

HAEFRNEREET
T3 A% /0 N T B
(LAFEH)

hn: Bk BB (AT ED

Earnings:
Profit attributable to owners of the Company

used in the diluted earnings per share

calculation (RMB’'000) 423,476 525,455
Number of shares:
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year per share

calculation (in thousand) 853,644 847,729
Add: number of dilutive shares (in thousand) 2,533 6,497

BEETEERERERE
5 A% A N A T 8
REFTE SR E S
B EDE GAFED)

FARRBEB ARG
MENERESRF
(AAR®THITR)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue and potential ordinary shares used

as the denominator in calculating diluted

earnings per share (in thousand) 856,177 854,226
Diluted earnings per share for profit

attributable to the owners of the Company

during the year (expressed in RMB) 0.50 0.62
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16 Y*E BMERZXEBEURER 16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

HEE RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(@) Y¥X BERRHE (a) Property, plant and equipment
BT EWkfE BTG BERESR AE£E it
Transportation Electronic ~ Furniture and Lease

Buildings ~ equipment  equipment machinery  improvement Total

ARETR  ARETn  ARETR ARETn  ARETn  ARETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2002%1518 As at 1 January 2022
A Cost 3,564 5,617 21,31 43,467 4,093 78,053
Zithg Accumulated depreciation (959) (3,084) (9.862) (3687) (1,571) (19,163)
REFE Net book amount 2,605 2,533 11,450 39,780 252 58,890
B2ANENENALEE For the year ended 31 December 2022
ENEmTE Opening net book amount 2,605 2,533 11,450 39,780 2,522 58,890
W B b B A (W 332) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) - 1,235 755 1158 - 3,148
TE Additions 48 2,245 5,733 24,383 18,405 50,814
e Disposals - (30) (91) (1,342) - (1,463)
HEER Depreciation charge (105) (1,739) (5,027) (19,339) (2,140) (28,350)
EXEEEE Closing net book amount 2,548 4,44 12,820 44,640 18,787 83,039
#2022%12A318 As at 31 December 2022
A Cost 3612 9,067 27,709 67,666 2,498 130,552
ZitHE Accumulated depreciation (1,064) (4,823) (14,389) (23,026) 371 (47,513)
BERE Net book amount 2,548 4,204 12,820 44,640 18,787 83,039
RONF1A1R As at 1 January 2021
e Cost 3,564 3134 13911 4016 2,161 26,786
2ithE Accumulated depreciation (844) (1,663) (8.441) (1,099) (530) (12,577)
REFAE Net book amount 2720 1471 5,470 2917 1,631 14,209
BENNENANALERE For the year ended 31 December 2021
ENEETE Opening net book amount 2720 1471 5,470 2917 1,631 14,209
WEHB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries = 1,259 1,070 8,050 = 10,379
hE Additions = 1518 8170 32,139 1932 43759
e Disposals - (144) (909) (339) - (1391)
HEER Depreciation charge (115) (1,571) 2,351 (2,989) (1,081) (8,066)
EXBEFE Closing net book amount 2,605 2533 11,450 39,780 2522 58,890
R2021512A31R As at 31 December 2021
i Cost 3,564 5,617 2312 13467 4093 78,053
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (959) (3,084) (9,862) (3,687) (1,571 (19,163)
FETA Net book amount 2,605 2,533 11,450 39,780 250 58,890
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16 Y¥E BMELZHLUKRMER 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

EEEG®m RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (cont'd)

@ YXE BERZEE (a) Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)
MEBRGAGEEZEKRARNATE Depreciation expenses were charged to the following categories
Bl in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
55 & AR 7 A A Cost of sales and services 15,077 4,668
THREHR Administrative expenses 13,273 3,398
28,350 8,066

(b) HE (b) Leases
A ERHEAEBEREZABE AN This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
EE&H o lessee.

() RESHBERLEZEZHHE ()  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position
BEMBRARITATEREES The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
8 B 5K IE following amounts relating to leases:
R12A318
As at 31 December
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
AR TR AR T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERREEE Right-of-use assets
BFRBEA Buildings and parking lots 19,287 19,722
HESE Lease liabilities
mE Current 6,736 3,129
JER B Non-current 9,521 11,310
16,257 14,439
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16 Y% BERZRMBEUKFER 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
EEE®m RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (cont'd)
(b) #HEEHE (b) Leases (Cont'd)
(i) RESZEHUAFZERZHHE (i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
FaTHWARITATEBAESHA The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the
JFIA following amounts relating to leases:
BZE12A31BHLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
B 5 AR TR AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERAREENEER Depreciation charge of right-of-
use assets
BFRBA Buildings and parking lots 7 7,053 6,404
FEMZ (BT AMIEAA) Interest expense (included in finance
cost) 12 925 BEY/
HEHEEENER Expense relating to short-term
(BEtAEE R RS leases (included in cost of sales
A A RITHBUE A) and services and administrative
expenses) 7 1,066 480
HANEXF AEHTAERN Expense relating to leases of low-
KEEBEEEHEBRD value assets that are not shown
BR(BHATERER) above as short-term leases
(included in administrative
expenses) 7 1,649 22
P02 - MEMBERLBEAR The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was RMB8,440,000
A R #8,440,0007T (20214 : A R % (2021: RMB7,060,000), which includes cash flow from principal
7,060,0007T) - EFR B EHEMN KA elements of lease payments and its interests of RMB5,725,000
EHIREFNEEEANBEEREAR and cash flow from operating lease payments of RMB2,715,000.
5,725,000 F & & ERN K E 4
W mE AR27150007T °
FHIRBEEEERA R
L‘ 9% onmums
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17 EBFEEE 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
TEERS R L L EFB& @t
Computer Customer
software Licenses Goodwill  Trademarks ~relationships Total
AEETR  ARMTn ARETn ARETn ARETR  AR%T:n
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
(ii) (i)

R202251818 As at 1 January 2022
A Cost 18,388 1,314 350,978 8,000 375,762 154,442
ZiEH Accumulated amortisation (5.832) (53) - (889) (19,383) (26,117)
BEFE Net book amount 12,556 1,261 350,978 PANN 356,419 728,325
BZ2022512831A1LEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022
ENERFE Opening net book amount 12,556 1,261 350,978 711 356,419 728,325
WEEH B 2R (B H32) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) - - 70,036 - 126,127 196,163
AE Additions 21,457 - - - - 21,457
B Amortisation (4,636) (172) - (533) (50,030) (55,371)
HEBR Impairment loss = = (5,404) = = (5,404)
EXBEFE Closing et book amount 29,377 1,089 415,610 6,578 432,516 885,170
R2022512831A As at 31 December 2022
A Cost 39,844 1314 421,014 8,000 501,889 972,061
2 EHERAEE Accumulated amortisation and impaiment (10,467) (225) (5,404) (1,422) (69,373) (86,891)
BEFE Net book amount 29,377 1,089 415,610 6,578 432,516 885,170
R2021511R As at 1 January 2021
i Cost 11,878 84 104,086 8,000 80,984 205,032
ZHEY Accumulated amortisation (3,719 (33) - (356) (3,505) (7613)
BEFE Net book amount 8,159 51 104,086 7644 17479 197,419
HZ2001F12831ALEE  For the year ended 31 December 2021
ENERTE Opening net book amount 8,159 51 104,086 7644 71479 197.419
WERBAF Acquisition of subsidiaries = = 246,89 = 294,778 541,670
AE Additions 6,510 1,230 - - - 7740
B Amortisation 2113 (20) - (533) (15,838) (18,504)
EXREFE Closing net book amount 12,556 1,261 350,978 m 356,419 728,325
R20215128318 As at 31 December 2021
A Cost 18,388 1314 350,978 8,000 375,762 754,442
ZiEH Accumulated amortisation (5,832) (53) - (889) (19,343) (26,17)
BEFE Net book amount 12,556 1,261 350,978 7m 356,419 728,325
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B 22022412 4318 [E4F JE For the year ended 31 December 2022

17 BEEEmW 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

EEEEEHEAAGEEZEKARN Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the

T consolidated statements of comprehensive income as follows:

BZE12A31BLEE

For the year ended 31 December

2022%F 20214F

2022 2021

AR T AR T T

RMB’000 RMB'000

$HE X Selling expenses 50,030 15,838
THREAR Administrative expenses 5,341 2,666
55,371 18,504

(i) EFBA#R (i)  Customer relationships
KRB E2022F12A31MBIEFE - A& During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
EEE T AR (ME32) - ZF QA acquired certain companies (Note 32). Total identifiable net
REEEBEBWERBANAHENEEE assets of these companies as at their respective acquisition
®EA B A R ¥99,530,0007T © B 1 dates amounted to approximately RMB99,530,000, including
BE# 5 &P R AR K126,127,000 identified customer relationships of RMB126,127,000. A
T BMHEMESETHE  UWEBTE valuation was performed by independent valuers to determine
EHANEFPARNAAEE - BEFH the fair value of the identified customer relationships. The
FAAGEEZAMEREREE - valuation method used for customer relationships is the
BEEEFPBEEARNAABENBRER discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions in
BT : determining the fair value of customer relationships are disclosed
as follows:
EBITDA
FlgA (45 W A Sip
BE= Bak) BAKR=X ERER
Annual EBITDA

revenue (% of Pre-tax Expected

growth rate revenue) discount rate  useful lives

BRATER Health Catering 0-4% 13-14% 18.7% 10
TEME Jinyu Property 0-12% 12-14% 19.5% 10

196 FHIRBEEEERA R
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17
(i)

BILEE @ 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (contd)
mE (ii) Goodwill
BEBNDAORETINRGEEEM: Goodwill was allocated to the following cash generating units:
M12H31H
As at 31 December

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BT E K Xuefu Catering 70,252 70,252
A B AR Chengyue Times 64,137 64,137
EEWHE Jinyu Property 56,313 =
RN Yantai Yongle 42,192 42,192
RNBELR Dalian Hua'an 32,626 32,626
2L Liangshi Property 29,764 29,764
## M E Suzhou Baochuan 28,789 28,789
W Xiangcheng Property 27,016 27,016
EMBR Guizhou Bajie 26,116 26,116
1L 5 72 &P Shandong Lead 22,763 22,763
R ETER Health Catering 13,723 =
A =X Hangzhou Wanyue 6,585 6,585
a3 hva Jiangsu Changli 738 738
EESVEREN Impairment of goodwill* (5,404) =
415,610 350,978

EEERNEERERBETRENE -
ZEMBAR 2K E S BIREE
REEFEETE -

* MMM B REEEREEERNR
EEBREATKOSHE -ZBEE
FAGREZEKRARNTRER -

Management performed an impairment assessment on the
goodwill as at balance sheet date. The recoverable amounts
of these subsidiaries are determined based on value-in-use
calculations.

* The carrying amount of Hangzhou Wanyue has been reduced to
its recoverable amount through recognition of an impairment loss
against goodwill. This loss is included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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17 EBEEE@® 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cCont'd)
(i) BEE (ii) Goodwill (Cont’d)

TR 5 2022512 A318 % & A #
ENREABENREEAEMD

The following table set out the key assumptions for those
CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them as at 31

FERK: December 2022:
AMAEEH
BalA ER =
BR=E (% 1 Bt A EBARFEURM
(% EFERRE) BAL) B Al BE B = KEEBRE
Compound
revenue
growth rate
during the Terminal
first five year growth rate
(% annual  Gross margin Pre-tax since the
growth rate) (% of revenue) discount rate sixth year
E RS Chengyue Times 10% 15% 18.0% -
& & ok Yantai Yongle 13% 20% 18.2% -
REER Dalian Hua'an 8% 25% 18.5% -
ik Liangshi Property 13% 23% 18.5% -
W Xiangcheng Property 9% 35% 18.0% =
EMBZ Guizhou Bajie 1% 19% 18.0% -
R B Shandong Lead 9% 17% 18.5% -
N E 41 Hangzhou Wanyue 7% 6% 19.6% -
LB R Xuefu Catering 9% 20% 18.2% -
BINE Suzhou Baochuan 9% 23% 18.5% -
EEME Jinyu Property 15% 23% 18.5% -
BREBER Health Catering 23% 17% 19.0% -

Based on management’s assessment on the recoverable
amounts of the subsidiaries acquired, impairment provision of
RMB5,404,000 was considered necessary as at 31 December
2022 (2021: nil).

BEEEBYMKENRBARTRE
S HEM TS R2022F12A318 A E
tH R (B B 5 A R #55,404,0007T (2021
F4E)o

MARBRBEERRAR
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17
(i)

BEEE @)

BE

17
(i)

T &R & 5 R2021F12 A31H % & [ &
EONREATENRSCELEEMD

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont'd)

Goodwill (Cont’d)

The following table set out the key assumptions for those
CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them as at 31

FERKZ: December 2021:
Al A )
wERA EH X

BRX (%14 A ERNFUARM
(% Fi1E R %) BHL) 74 Al B 3R K B 1 R &

Compound

revenue

growth rate
during the Terminal
first five year growth rate
(% annual Gross margin Pre-tax since the
growth rate) (% of revenue) discount rate sixth year
E RS Chengyue Times 14% 17% 17.2% -
=N Yantai Yongle 13% 22% 17.0% -
RNEER Dalian Hua'an 1% 20% 17.0% -
2L Liangshi Property 12% 26% 17.4% =
B % Xiangcheng Property 1% 35% 17.1% =
EMEBR Guizhou Bajie 13% 32% 17.3% -
1 3R 2B #B Shandong Lead 1% 17% 17.0% -
A =X Hangzhou Wanyue 7% 9-11% 17.4% =
BT E R Xuefu Catering 1% 23-25% 17.2% -
##ME Suzhou Baochuan 18% 25% 17.3% -

RIBFEEEEUENBAF ] UE
S ERFFG  R2021F12A318B B A

TEHRE A -

Based on management’s assessment on the recoverable
amounts of the subsidiaries acquired, no impairment provision

was considered necessary as at 31 December 2021.
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18 REHEI>INEMIA 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
AEBEFREUTERIEA: The Group holds the following financial instruments:
128318
As at 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
B 5 AR% T AR®EF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
SREE: Financial assets
HEEX A EMEMMEE  Financial assets at amortised cost
2 5 FE W IR Trade receivables 22 1,292,257 622,758
TEARIE  me R HEM Prepayments, deposits and
B B (T B & B other receivables (excluding
RIE K% T R 8 prepayments and input VAT to
HEIE IS E R R EAth) be deducted and others) 23 810,775 486,809
REeERREEED Cash and cash equivalents 24 1,973,696 2,504,102
BRARBEFTAEZD Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 20 451,325 450,905
BRAAREEFAEAMm Financial assets at fair value through
ZEHRANEREE other comprehensive income 19 5,996 52,390
4,534,049 4,116,964
R12A318
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
B AR T AR F T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
SREIEE Financial liabilities:
BHEERKATENS Eﬂ Bf& Financial liabilities at amortised cost
B5 Kk EMERNKT Trade and other payables
(T BREETS @& (excluding accrued payroll and
H i) other tax payables) 29 1,735,104 1,505,432
HEaE Lease liabilities 16 16,257 14,439
EES Borrowings 2,265 =
1,753,626 1,519,871
AEBEBMHRAIIMMES] TR The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the

BEENZERAR RBEEHREED
RAGERRALEAZBERMEE
BERMEE o

financial instruments is discussed in Note 3.1. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.

lZOO
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19 BRAREEFAHMEZMEU 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
ANETREE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(i) BAAREBEFAHME2EBAHN (i) Debtinvestments at FVOCI and equity investments
BEXRERRAABEFTAHM at FVOCI comprise the following investments:
ZEHBANEZREGRFEUT R
=g
M®12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARB T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REBEE Current assets
X LmES Listed bonds denominated in US Dollars 5,996 52,390
MENEEBRE Total current assets 5,996 52,390
(i) REZRAGCZEAKABRINRN (i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other
15 comprehensive income
BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARB TR AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
®E WA Investment income - 4,980
FTAE b 2 WA B Credit loss of debt instruments through other
BEEITAEHERE comprehensive income 49,889 71,949
HE M & U BB Fair value losses recognised in other
NAEEEE comprehensive income 46,394 75,444
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19 BRAAREEFAHMEZMEUY 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
ANETREE @) THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Cont'd)
(i) REZREAGCZEAKABRINRK (ii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other
| (#8) comprehensive income (Cont'd)
BEAABEFAEMEEARAGTEN Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
REXZAREZTLMES  HEE41B income are mainly listed bonds denominated in USD, where
MEERASHFE - ZEFEFE the contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest. The
THYERERET ARFEEHKT bonds are mainly issued by property developers and the fair
ENAREBEDERTSEREET - value of such debt instruments was determined based on quoted
AEERFAZEEBSIANKEEH price on market price. The Group held these debt instruments
ReRERFELE  WERAAEE for both collection of contractual cash flows and for selling,
AAEMEEBKAGE - which were measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income.
BZE2022F1RA3MBLEFEFE  BR L For the year ended 31 December 2022, due to the past due of
mESEH  AEBEFAEMEEWY listed bonds, the Group made amounting RMB49,889,000 and
AMEBIAECABEIMNEMEZE RMB46,394,000 (2021: RMB71,949,000 and RMB75,444,000)
WABRNAREBEEBESIAAR for credit loss of debt instruments through other comprehensive
#49,889,0007T & A R #46,394,000 income and fair value losses recognised in other comprehensive
70 (20214F © A R #71,949,0007T & A income separately.
R ¥75,444,0007T) °
20 BAAREBHEITTAERZMNER 20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
BE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(i) BRAAREBEFAEBEZNSMEE (i) Classification of financial assets at fair value
0| through profit or loss
REEBUTeREEESREIAR The Group classifies the following financial assets at fair value
BEHFAEGNEREE: through profit or loss (FVPL):
. TREREBHEKAIBRANE . debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at
Bt \Efs2 MW AT ENE either amortised cost or FVOCI (Note 19)
iR & (I 7E19)
. BEEENEREE & . equity investments that are held for trading, and
o ERUTEEZEZFAEMEZEK . equity investments for which the entity has not elected
AERAABERELEEN to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCI.
A -
FHIRBEEEERA R
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20

(i)

BAABESABZNER 20

=9-3C))

BARBEFAABRZNEREE (i)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont'd)

Classification of financial assets at fair value

W EE) through profit or loss (Cont'd)
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEE Current assets
EXLEMES Listed bonds denominated in US Dollars 80,636 217,822
= FLE m Trust products = 27,210
MBEEETE Total current assets 80,636 245,032
kRBEE Non-current assets
BREES Investment funds 165,842
CIE: - N =D Convertible loans (Note) 107,515 102,166
Z 5L E @ Trust products 75,624 75,624
JE T8 o AR (BT 5E) Unlisted preference shares (Note) 21,708 20,000
12 B E Wealth management products - 8,083
IEMEBEERTE Total non-current assets 370,689 205,873

Mk : B ZE20224128318 - K#MH AR E B
ELrEAHMEISRMELLBRAR
BIOIWNATBRRER BREAARE
100,000,0007T * 4 F| & %10% + B BA
AERENMARIERZRIABETA

H E2022F128318 » AEB IR UK
BARM20,000CAEEEEHENE
BRAMAEBRAERELEROER
EITREYARINEZEAABES
ABENEREE -

B ERN S BRI G ERER
EEERBEASEEERSTERMEE
MEERAURBRERZEHEN
DT B T4 5 S KD 6 SR i )
NHEELRSREEND R - NEE
RIFBEBERXH AR EGRER
HEBRANTFEABEE -

Note: As of 31 December 2022, Chengdu Xinchengyue purchased convertible
loans issued by Shanghai Hezong Chuangzhi Property Agency Co., Ltd. at
a total consideration amounted RMB100,000,000 with an interest rate at
10% per annum, which are accounted as financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss due to the convertible rights.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group also made an investment
in the form of ordinary shares with preferential rights and
convertible redeemable preferred shares at a consideration of
RMB20,000, which are accounted as financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification and initial recognition of the convertible loans
require management to analyse certain complex contract terms
and make judgments to determine the classifications of the
above financial assets, based on the Group’s business models of
managing these financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows. The Group identified its various rights and evaluated
the financial impacts based on key terms from relevant legal
documents.
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20 BAAREBHEITTAERNER 20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
=9-1C)) THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (cont'd)
(i) REE2EHBRAREINNKE (ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
RERN  TIHEBEEREZANER - During the year, the following losses were recognised in profit
or loss.
BZ12A3MHLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR% T AR T T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BERAABEFAEZD Fair value losses on financial instruments at fair
CMIENAREBEEIE value through profit or loss (Note 11)
(PR 3E11) (125,541) (126,582)
(iii)) ERBORAABEE (iii) Risk exposure and fair value measurements
FHEAEEFMEBNERRRDNE R Information about the Group's exposure to price risk is provided
HRWEI - BB ERAAEBEFRN in Note 3.1. For information about the methods and assumptions
FAMNGERBERHNER  FL2HEW used in determining fair value please refer to Note 3.3.
£33 °
21 RE& 21 INVENTORIES
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR T AR¥ETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
75 PR 70 38 {8 AR 7 1O #E 1 Consumables to be used in value-added
services 25,828 13,620
e Spare parts 14,317 12,862
5 & Merchandise for sales 3,860 1,600
Hb Others 225 219
44,230 28,301
R E B Less: allowance for impairment = =
44,230 28,301
REZE2022F12A3B L FEHR A Inventories recognised as an expense during the year ended
HAX®fF&EARARIMKI73,361,0007T 31 December 2022 amounted to RMB973,361,000 (2021:
(20214 : A R #863,255,0007T) ° #% RMB863,255,000). These were included in cost of sales and cost
ERIBETAEEN A KR RSB of providing services (Note 7).
B AR A (T 5E7) ©
FHIRBREEEBERAR
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22

g5 rWFIE 22 TRADE RECEIVABLES
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 e W A (M 5% (@) Trade receivables (Note (a))
- B 75 (M 5E36(d) — Related parties (Note 36(d)) 564,281 195,188
-F%=h — Third parties 864,348 515,250
1,428,629 710,438
B EPERFIBREREE  Less: allowance for impairment of trade
receivables (136,372) (87,680)
1,292,257 622,758
(a) BESRBFELTERBEBRL (a) Trade receivables mainly arise from property

HETEENYEEERE R
HRERYE RELHETE
BEHRMEEERBOWAT
AR 5 18 B8 W 3 AR 7% 15 & 16 SR UK
e EERRMHIRGE RS E
HHMEERRBTKA -

M20224F &2021F12 4318 « &E R &
SHENESEWHRIENRER S0
T~

management services managed under lump sum basis
and value-added services. Property management
services income under lump sum basis are received in
accordance with the term of the relevant property service
agreements. Service income from property management
services is due for payment by the property owners upon
rendering of services.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables based on invoice date are as follows:

R12A31H
As at 31 December

2022%F 20214
2022 2021
AR® T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
146 LA Within 1 year 1,192,582 580,752
1225 1 to 2 years 129,723 83,280
2E3F 2 to 3 years 69,278 30,873
3F4F 3 to 4 years 26,325 8,496
454 4 to 5 years 7,495 3,515
SELA Over 5 years 3,226 3,522
1,428,629 710,438

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited 205
2022 Annual Report



eV BRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 4318 [E4F JE For the year ended 31 December 2022

22

g5 EWFIEE)

R20224F K2021F128318 © B 5 &
WHRIBAARBE  ZEH5EKRIE
AABEHEERAMBEMELD WEEE
AR 75 K2 385 & AR 75 45 ¥ A8 B8 AR 7% 17 7 &Y
fRFRURER - R BB B H T o

NEEE RS MRS R FI%R
REMNBEHEABEGLER  Hi
HRERATMAEE S ERFIESFEA
GEHMBBINIBRABEE - A5t
SEHPEHEE E5EKFERE
HRAMNEARKRSS KA S#E
ToWEe B EKKIER BB EE
B3 B 5E3.1.2 © R20224F K 20214
12A318  HE 5 ERKIBAENIR
B A R 136,372,0007T & A R &
87,680,000 ° J&l & # 5 1 & =2022
FNRANBLEFEEEN REEE S
FEWRIBAREN  HEK S
WENESREWFENS  BESRK
FRERBBARZAABERER M
R B T S F B U BE B HA 14 5B A0 HY TR B
=REAE -

22

TRADE RECEIVABLES (cont'd)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the trade receivables were
denominated in RMB, and the fair value of trade receivables
approximated their carrying amounts. Property management
services and value-added services are either billed in accordance
with the terms of the relevant services agreements or due for
payment upon the issuance of invoice.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. Movements on the
provision for impairment of trade receivables are shown in
Note 3.1.2. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, a provision of
RMB136,372,000 and RMB87,680,000 was made against the
gross amounts of trade receivables. The provision for impairment
increased during the year ended 31 December 2022 due to
the increase of trade receivables balance. For trade receivables
acquired in business combinations, the trade receivables are
recognised at fair value as at the acquisition date and allowance
for impairment reflects the additional expected credit loss after
the acquisition date.

lZOG
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23 FEAfNFE- RSN HMEIW 23 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

MIE RECEIVABLES
®12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR TR ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B A JEBDHA B &8 JEEN HA
Non-
Current current Current  Non-current
SEENE ] Prepayments
- AHAHEER — Utilities and outsourced services
SN B AR 7% 127,471 - 71,620 =
- B ARIEERM - Consumables to be used in
#) 8 # @ value-added services 28,752 = 22,091 =
NEE Subtotal 156,223 - 93,711 =
# F R A 18 Input VAT to be deducted and
EE & EA others 42,458 - 15,728 =
% % (a) Deposits (a) 665,841 - 399,292 1,970
W SRR Other receivables
- RZEEFFRD) — Payments on behalf of property
owners (b) 101,092 - 88,032 -
- M E AE R - Lending to an investee including
(BEFB) interests 35,945 = = =
—H A — Others 70,312 - 19,808 =
NEE Subtotal 207,349 - 107,840 =
#Et Total 1,071,871 - 616,571 1,970
Vi Bt FEUYZXIE  Less: allowance for impairment
P54 of other receivables and
Ze R ERE deposits (62,415) - (22,267) (26)
1,009,456 - 594,304 1,944
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23 FEMNFRIE- -ZERHEAMEW 23 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

TRIE () RECEIVABLES (cont'd)

(a) 2022 N20215F12 318 £ & (a) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, deposits mainly
TECDENREMEEERS included deposits made with government related
i =) XA B B 5 fE Y iR & & bodies for providing property management services and
REEEBENMRAIEEMESS deposits made with car parking slot owners to secure
EERIRZESNESREATHD - the agent role for sale of the car parking slot. Deposits
& B A R¥560,848,0007T /5 amounted RMB560,848,000 was disclosed as related
HASERERBE &R T parties balances by the Group due to the car parking slot
AR EEM RN ES- was owned by related parties.

(b) PR2022%F K 202112 B318 © #% (b) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the amounts
ESRITERREEXINMNY represented the payments on behalf of property owners
ENARMEE LT #EEKAE in respect of mainly utilities and elevator maintenance
KR IH © costs of the properties.

R2022F K2021F12A31H - # & & As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, deposits and other

HiEWRIEULARKEKEE - receivables were denominated in RMB.

AR RIE - B E R H i B IE (T Movements on the provision for impairment of prepayments,

B3 T RIE R T 0OR A 1R deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and input

B R HAb) 7 (E R EZ 85 R M VAT to be deducted and others) are shown in Note 3.1.2. The

3.1.2 - BEEBERB E2022F12A431 provision for impairment increased during the year ended 31

BItFEEEm  REASEMNKE - & December 2022 due to the increase of balance of prepayments,

& R EAMEWRRIE(TEEBEMNRE deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and input

Ri#&THRMEIRZEEN R M) VAT to be deducted and others).

ERIE N -

24 BEeRREEEY 24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R12A318
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®B TR AR¥EF T
RMB’000 RMB'000

FEBR® Cash on hand 260 781

RITHES Cash in banks 1,929,029 2,480,560

X FaReE Cash in payment platforms 44,407 22,761

1,973,696 2,504,102
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24

25

RBeRkBETZEDw 24  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (cont'd)
ReRBE2EEBVEHKNEREAT The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents balances are
P E¥EEHE: denominated in the following currencies:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ET usb 96,831 16,879
AR #& RMB 1,860,514 2,427,371
BT HKD 16,351 59,852
1,973,696 2,504,102
R X 25 SHARE CAPITAL
RNARR2018F1 A6 ERERH ST The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16
RS - REEMAKZBE - &€ BRA January 2018. At the date of incorporation, the authorised
/51,2003 7T+ B 3551,200/% & ik & share capital is USD51,200 comprising 51,200 ordinary shares of
H1.003 T 00 & 8 AR - M2022512 8 USD1.00 each. As at 31 December 2022, the authorised share
318 YA E IR 5 /10,000,000 & X was 10,000,000 shares at par value of USD0.01.
E{E0.01E T AR D
BEETRBEERERK: Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
vk ¢=| FER AR® T
Number of
shares usD’000 RMB’000
R2022%1818 At 1 January 2022 870,134,000 8,701 59,900
R IK20194F B AR 1 Exercise of share option under 2019
FHEIFT P BB AR AE share option scheme (Note 1)
(Ff &£ 1) 1,097,000 1 73
72022512 H31H At 31 December 2022 871,231,000 8,712 59,973

a1 B E202F12A3MBLEEE & T &
B iR K20194 W R 5t B R B S X
1,097,000 B& 15 © 1T B 7 & 1k6.18
B AARIBITEESHABRETF
%8 496,779,000 T(HHE RPN AR
5,813,0007T) °

Note 1: During the year ended 31 December 2022, several employees under 2019
share option scheme subscribed 1,097,000 shares in total with exercise
price of HKD6.18 per share. The Company received the net proceeds
from exercise approximately HKD6,779,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB5,813,000).
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#E 26 RESERVES
BAREE
AR
REMAN  EERH
tERE  ROEE HpRE  SREE &t REEW h
Financial
Statutory Share Other  assetsat  Employee  Retained
reserves  premium reserves FVOCI  share trust  earnings Total
ARETR ARETR AR%Tn ARETR ARETn ARETn ARET#
RMB‘000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
R2021£1818 As at 1 January 2021 6,576 293,968 104,963 = (102,754) 2244 1,225167
2EUA Comprehensive income
EQFE Profit for the year - - - - = 525,455 525,455
BOAEEGFAZEMAR  Changes in fair value of debt instruments at

EBRTAAAEBERY fair value through comprehensive income

(B z£19) (Note 19) - - - (15449) - - (75440
BOABEHARBEE  Credit loss of debt instruments at fair value

WAMEBIAER through other comprehensive income

BiE(ME19) (Note 19) - - - 71,949 - - 71,949
ARARA AR E (31 Dividend paid by the Company (Note 31) - (239,819 - = = - (239819
BHBARFEREES  Share purchase for non-controlling interests

RERM of a subsidiary - - 464 = = = 464
[ Share placing - 861,149 - = = = 861,149
RE2019F B R g 2l Exercise of share option under 2019 share option

TRERE scheme - - 19,183 - - - 19,183
BERFHERD Buy-back and cancellation of shares = = (48362) = = = (48,362)
BEERHEEHEME  Acquisition of shares for Employee Share Award

R Scheme - - - - (138,836) - (138,836)
THEERGFORTEE  Exercse of unrestricted shares from stock shares

iy - (3,353 - - 17,725 - 1431
NROBBEENHFR Share-based payment - = 8,742 = = = 874
R20215128318 As at 31 December 2021 6,576 911,945 84,990 (3,495) (223,865  1,447869 2,224,020
H2022£151A As at 1 January 2022 6,576 911,945 84,990 (3,495)  (223,865) 1,447,869 2,224,020
2EUA Comprehensive income
ERE Profit for the year - - - - - 43476 43476
BOAEEFAZEMAR  Changes in fair value of debt instruments at

EEIAALEEED fair value through comprehensive income

(Ft19) (Note 19) - - - (4639 - - (4639
BOABEHARBEENR  Credit loss of debt instruments at fair value

AMEBIEEREE through other comprehensive income

(Fr&19) (Note 19) - - - 49,889 - - 49,889
ALRARA AR E (31 Dividend paid by the Company (Note 31) - (134,944) - - - - (134,944)
RIE2I9EEREF BT Exercise of share option under 2019 share option

Gl scheme(Note 25) - - 5,740 - - - 5,740
BEERHEEEME  Acquisition of shares for Employee Share Award

117 (Bt 3326) Scheme (Note 26) - = (3,765) = - = (3,765)
IR EEESFH Share-based payment (Note 27)

(WzE27) - - 10,394 - - - 10,394
MBLREE Capital increase in a subsidiary - - 975 - - - 975
BNBLAERRMER  Share purchase for non-controlling interests

BERD of a subsidiary - - 114 - - - 114
R202£128318 As at 31 December 2022 6,576 777,001 98,448 - (223,865) 1,871,345 2,529,505

IR EHRA ]
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26

27

(a)
(i)

ERAE D)

BEEERPRNKIZIMIINERE
XENEERERGEAIAREAEES
FTHREMHBARMNMAHEER  MHEAQ
AIARBHRENBZRES L BIEETE
HEES HEEZESRAFREE
HBESBEMERDNS0% ° KR2022F
N2021F 128310 - RBAF R jEE
AEZERHEBEESHNESESRAAR
#90,832,0007T A A R #72,349,000
=

BURR 17 7 E 1 AY 1Y =X
BRETS
2019F fE K 1 &1 &)

R BH B2019F0A2B N RFE XK -
ANA B R 4 — I8 BE AR A 5T 21 ([20194F
BRETED BREBRETS  ®
CHEENEEBEBEEES)RHAH
16,000,000 % i # - AR A QA
% 7% F116,000,0000% & A% ™ {H0.013
THRD TEEEEBRKRD6.18E
ToBREBEREEECREEEELD
ERMEEBEEALSEERK K
BREBEEHNERER -

FREEEEER)ELOERERD
AR AFEMRAZERZE KNI
HEBOHENFEIABISR
AR H A EI2019F9 A28 1218 3
24 AR AN R BB R EN
40% ~ 30% M30% - B E 5EEH
B Z=2024F 108198 B &K -

R 52019 4F B AR 4 5T &1 4% L 19 R Ik 4
R H B 20196928 A A B E
B4 158 BB T(HHERARK3776
BEL) TEBRM_-_ERANTER
N((zEXEXDETE -

26

27

(a)
(i)

RESERVES (contd)

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations governing
foreign investment enterprise established in the PRC and
the articles of association of certain PRC subsidiaries of the
Group, the subsidiaries are required to transfer certain portion
of their profit after taxation to the statutory reserve fund,
until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their
respective registered capital. As at 31 December 2022 and
2021, RMB90,832,000 and RMB72,349,000 of retained earnings
should be transferred to statutory reserve fund.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
Share Option Schemes

2019 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 2 September 2019, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “2019 Share Option
Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, a total number of
16,000,000 shares options were granted to selected current
employees (including directors) to subscribe for 16,000,000
shares of USD0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
with exercise price of HKD6.18 per share. The shares options
granted are for recognition of the contribution of employees
and to provide incentives for the employees to continuously
make greater contributions for the Group’s long-term growth in
the future.

For shares options granted to employees (including directors),
subject to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24
months and 36 months after the grant day dated 2 September
2019 with 40%, 30% and 30% of the share options, separately.
The share options are valid from the vesting date to 19 October
2024.

The fair value of the shares options granted under the 2019
Share Option Scheme as at 2 September 2019, the grant date,
was HKD42.15 million (equivalent to RMB37.76 million), and
was determined by adopting the Binomial Pricing Model (the
“Binomial Model").
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27 UBROBEBRNSTR@ 27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)
() BRES(E) (a) Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)
(i) 2019F I #E 5 2 (%) () 2019 Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)
REE2019F12A3MBLFEREN The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31
IR RO 15 B i) A BUR B 1E December 2019 included:
a) ZZTHRELSE - I R20195F9 a) options are granted for no consideration and vest options
B2B E2024%108198 Al {7 (£ are exercisable from 2 September 2019 to 19 October
) 55 B R RCRE o 2024.
b) 1TEE:6.18%8 T b) exercise price: HKD6.18
@) B H: 2019F9A2H ) grant date: 2 September 2019
d) B HAH : 2024F10H19H d) expiry date: 19 October 2024
e) REE AR E: 5.86/8 7T e) share price at grant date: HKD5.86
f) QTR 5 &) 8 B (B A% K 18 f) expected price volatility of the Company’s shares: 60.3%
60.3%
9) T8 HA R B U A K 0 1.95% 9) expected dividend yield: 1.95%
h) TR AME:1.15% h) risk-free interest rate: 1.15%
HE2022F12A31BIEFE > B17{# During the year ended at 31 December 2022, 1,097,000 options
1,097,00017 & A% # 30 2 8 17 48 [ & were exercised and the same quantity of ordinary shares were
B 1) I (B 5525) » B202245F12 A issued (Note 25). As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding
31H » 2019F B IR AE ST 81 TH T R 1T option under 2019 Share Option Scheme were 8,688,000 (2021:
% ) % AR 7 /8,688,0001) (20214 : 9,785,000).
9,785,00013) °
FHIRBEEEERA R
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27

(a)
(i)

BURR 19 % B 7 B9 1 SR ()
5 B B ()
2020FE—BHRE

RIEBHA2020F6 A30B KRS -
NN R A — 1A B AR #E T &l ([20205F
E—EBERESE] - BIE2020F F
—IHEREFE  ALHERERES
(BIEEF) K H A $£2,960,0001 &
f&#E - DARREE AN QA R AN H2,960,000
B I E(E0.01E T A5 » 1T(E(E
55 A% 719.9078 7T o % LBk
EEREEBELINER R AEEE
EAEBEARERBRELEELSE
KNEE -

HAES(BEES) XL/ EKEM
AR AFTERAZEERZRE KNI
MEBEHEFEIRABISR
AR Y B E920205E6 308 4121&
A 2418 B %3618 A 5 5l 57 & §8 1% 4
#130% - 30% N40% - BERE A R E
HEIZ2024F108198 B & -~ & — it
30% BB RX R R A =2021F12 A318 &
FREW LUK - B =H40% 8 N2 R E
F2022F12A3MBFEEH LUK -

BIE2020F E—HERETIELN
BE A% 4 7 % B #92020F6 A30H By
NREEAEBIEEBETHERA
R¥231688L) WEBKMN-IA
ANEEEXN(ZEXERDETE -

27

(a)
(i)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont'd)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

2020 First Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 30 June 2020, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “2020 First Share Option
Scheme”). Under the 2020 First Share Option Scheme, a
total number of 2,960,000 shares options were granted to
selected current employees (including directors) to subscribe
for 2,960,000 shares of USD0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company with exercise price of HKD19.90 per share. The
shares options granted are for recognition of the contribution
of employees and to provide incentives for the employees
to continuously make greater contributions for the Group’s
long-term growth in the future.

For shares options granted to employees (including directors),
subject to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24
months and 36 months after the grant day dated 30 June 2020
with 30%, 30% and 40% of the share options, separately. The
share options are valid from the vesting date to 19 October
2024. Second 30% of the share options were forfeited during
the year ended at 31 December 2021. Third 40% of the share
options were forfeited during the year ended at 31 December
2022.

The fair value of the share options granted under the 2020
First Share Option Scheme as at 30 June 2020, the grant date,
was HKD25.35 million (equivalent to RMB23.16 million) and
was determined by adopting the Binomial Pricing Model (the
“Binomial Model”).
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27 URGAEBROSR@® 27
() BREFEH (@)
(i) 2020FF—EHBEREZ (&) (ii)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont'd)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

2020 First Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

R E 20205 6H308 1k /<@ A % EH
RERENERNG ABIERTE:

a) BEREBEE  WHN2020F6A
30H £20244E10H198 A] 17 &
"5 R AR A o

b) 1TE(E : 19.90% 7T

@] % HBH 2020566 A30H

d) B HAH : 202410H19H

e) REE AR E : 19.90/8 T

f) AR TR AD B T8 B AR R R
58.1%

9) T8 HA R B U A K 0 0.99%
h) TE B FE : 0.34%

HE2022F12A31BLFE > T ER
fi% # % 3% 17 - M708,00017 & A% 4 4%
SR UK o 12022412 A31H © 20204 &
—IERERERTBIIE T RITENER
# /51,652,000 (20214 : 2,360,000
3) o

The model inputs for options granted during the six months
ended 30 June 2020 included:

a) options are granted for no consideration and vest options
are exercisable from 30 June 2020 to 19 October 2024.

b) exercise price: HKD19.90

Q) grant date: 30 June 2020

d) expiry date: 19 October 2024

e) share price at grant date: HKD19.90

f) expected price volatility of the company’s shares: 58.1%

9) expected dividend yield: 0.99%
h) risk-free interest rate: 0.34%

During the year ended at 31 December 2022, no options
were exercised and 708,000 options were forfeited. As at 31
December 2022, the outstanding option under 2020 First Share
Option Scheme were 1,652,000 (2021: 2,360,000).
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(a)
(iii)

DN & F = E-X 5 A: SRR ENE )
BRESEE
20204 % = H i IR 1# &1 &

BiEBEA2020F11 H10EHRZZE -
NN R A —IA B AR #E 5T &l ([20205F
E_EBRESTEL - BIE2020F F
ZIHEBRERE MR EER
12 B &% 4 $£1,350,00017 B& A% 4 » LA
B AN R A IR AN H 1,350,000 0% & B
EO.0IETHRD  THEEAETRR
920858 L - K BREEERE
EEFHNEBREREBEEALNEE
AREHBEREEEFEHERBE -

A EE(BIEES) R R EMm
T ANAFERAAEEZE NI
HAEBOHNEIFEIABRBIER
Al 202096 A30H 21218 A - 2418 A &
3618 A 7 7l &5 B 8 IR % 8930% - 30%
$40% o BEIREE R T BB E2024410
B198 B &% » 55 — #£30% B A% 1 R &
F2021FNANBLEFEHR LK - F=
HE40% B8 A% #E A B 22022 F 12 318 &
EW ORI -

BIE2020F E - THEREF BT D
/) B8 A% 4 7 1% B 292020411 8108
BAREBERBIEES THEER
ARBIERL) UWEBHEM_18
ANEEEXN(ZEXERDETE -

27

(a)
(iii)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont'd)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

2020 Second Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 10 November 2020, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2020 Second
Share Option Scheme”). Under the 2020 Second Share
Option Scheme, a total number of 1,350,000 shares options
were granted to one selected current employee to subscribe
for 1,350,000 shares of USD0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company with exercise price of HK$20.85 per share. The
shares options granted are for recognition of the contribution
of employees and to provide incentives for the employees
to continuously make greater contributions for the Group’s
long-term growth in the future.

For shares options granted to employees (including directors),
subject to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24
months and 36 months after 30 June 2020 with 30%, 30% and
40% of the share options, separately. The share options are
valid from the grant date to 19 October 2024. Second 30% of
the share options were forfeited during the year ended at 31
December 2021. Third 40% of the share options were forfeited
during the year ended at 31 December 2022.

The fair value of the share options granted under the 2020
Second Share Option Scheme as at 10 November 2020, the
grant date, was HKD11.66 million (equivalent to RMB9.91
million) and was determined by adopting the Binomial Pricing
Model (the “Binomial Model”).
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27 MR BERBN R 27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)
() BRES(E) (a) Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)
(iii) 2020 5% — 15 fE Ik #E 51 &) (4) (iii) 2020 Second Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)
RE E2020F 128318 IE+ =@ A% The model inputs for options granted during the twelve months
I A B AR R 0 IR AL 8 A B B 4 ended 31 December 2020 included:
a) RERELE - WHR2020611A8 a) options are granted for no consideration and vest options
108 £2024%10A19H 7] 17 & &Y are exercisable from 10 November 2020 to 19 October
5 B B - 2024.
b) 1T (8 : 20.858 T b) exercise price: HKD20.85
@) B H 202011108 ) grant date: 10 November 2020
d) F|HAH : 2024F10H19H d) expiry date: 19 October 2024
e) REFE A EAAR(E : 20.85% 7T e) share price at grant date: HKD20.85
f) ANRAE R 5 8 8 B (B A% K 18 f) expected price volatility of the company’s shares: 57.48%
57.48%
) T HA AR B U A K - 0.99% 9) expected dividend yield: 0.99%
h) TR AE:035% h) risk-free interest rate: 0.35%
T8 HA (B A& R 18 Ty AR 15 /B £ OK 1R (IR 1% The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility
BRENFIAFHTE) REEME (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any
A7 B 1% A BUAF #Y A B & R 58 B A ] expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available
RAOREE TR A& & - information.
HE2022F12A31BLFE - TER During the year ended at 31 December 2022, no options
fi% # & 3% 17 - ™405,0001) B8 A% 4 3% were exercised and 405,000 options were forfeited. As at 31
8 W o 72022412 A318 + 20204 & December 2022, the outstanding option under 2020 Second
—EEREASEBTITHRTEDE Share Option Scheme were 945,000 (2021: 1,350,000).
P # #3945,00017 (20214 : 1,350,000
%)
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(a)
(iv)

BURR 19 % B 7 B9 1 SR ()
B AR A R B ()

20215 B IR B AT &

RIEBEA2021F78 1B RESR
AR B R 49— 18 BB R 5T 2] ([20214F
F—EBREE]) - BRIE2021F B
EEE MEGREREE(RE
= E)RH A ££7,700,00017 B B AE
VAR B8 AN A &) iR AN 17,700,000 3% & A%
AEVIETHRG  THEEASR
& h23.60% T - KL BEREE £ &K
YREELNEBERZBEEE AR
EEARRPRELEFLEKRE
Eﬁo

HAES(BEES) XD/ EKEM
AR AFTERAZEERZRE KNI
MEBAHEFEIRBISR
AIAREBE2021F7818%12@A -
24 A R36E A D R &F BB R ERN
30% ~ 30% K40% - B 5 57 B
HEIZ2024F108198 B & » £ — it
30% BB RX A R A =2021F12 A318 1E
FREH LW - B H30%HERENRE
£2022F12A31H IEFEH IR ©

1B #R 202148 B8 AR 7 51 30 5 o) BB AR 4
RIELBH20021F781BN QA A EE
760188 BB L (HER A R¥50.16
BEL) IEAKMN_EXTEE
N((ZEXERXDETE -

27

(a)
(iv)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont'd)
Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

2021 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 1 July 2021, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “2021 First Share
Option Scheme”). Under the 2021 Share Option Scheme, a
total number of 7,700,000 shares options to selected current
employees (including directors) to subscribe for 7,700,000
shares of USD0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
with exercise price of HKD23.60 per share. The shares options
granted are for recognition of the contribution of employees
and to provide incentives for the employees to continuously
make greater contributions for the Group’s long-term growth in
the future.

For shares options granted to employees (including directors),
subject to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24
months and 36 months after the grant day dated 1 July 2021
with 30%, 30% and 40% of the share options, separately. The
share options are valid from the vesting date to 19 October
2024. First 30% of the share options were forfeited during the
year ended at 31 December 2021. Second 30% of the share
options were forfeited during the year ended at 31 December
2022.

The fair value of the share options granted under the 2021 Share
Option Scheme as at 1 July 2021, the grant date, was HKD60.18
million (equivalent to RMB50.16 million) and was determined by
adopting the Binomial Pricing Model (the “Binomial Model”).
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27 MR BERBN R 27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)
() BRES(E) (a) Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)
(iv) 2021FfE K #E 512 (%) (iv) 2021 Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)
RAEE2022F12831HEFERE A The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31
B R ) IR B 8 A\ BB B 45 December 2022 included:
a) RZZRELE - W MN20215F7 a) options are granted for no consideration and vest options
R1BE2024510A198 & & &Y are valid from 1 July 2021 to 19 October 2024.
B BB ARAE -
b) 1T{E(E : 23.60/8 T b) exercise price: HKD23.60
) BH A 20217818 ) grant date: 1 July 2021
d) E| B H : 20245104198 d) expiry date: 19 October 2024
e) RELAEARR(E : 23.60/8 T e) share price at grant date: HKD23.60
f) QAT R 5 &) T8 B (B 1% K 1 f) expected price volatility of the company’s shares:
50.68% 50.68%
9) T8 AR AR B & K 1.4539% 9) expected dividend yield: 1.4539%
h) TR A E:043% h) risk-free interest rate: 0.43%
T8 HA B A& R I8 T AR 1R /B £ OK i (IR 1% The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility
BIRENFIAFHTE) SEEME (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any
W E AR AT IS ) A B A B B A expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available
RAORBE TR A& &) - information.
H E2022F12A31B L FE - I & During the year ended at 31 December 2022, no options were
fE A% % ¥ % 77+ 1™3,360,0001) f# AR exercised and 3,360,000 options were forfeited. As at 31
R I - 7202212 A31H © 2021 December 2022, the outstanding option under 2021 Share
FEREFFETHRITENER Option Scheme were 4,340,000 (2021: 7,700,000).
7 734,340,00017 (20214 : 7,700,000
3) -
FHIRBEEEERA R
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(b)

()

AR 0 2 B 1 AV 1Y =R ()
1 42 52 B 5t &

MR2019F 118158 © BH B & & T2
BEAAEERRRBEREEE
EEXER EZgrEREEER
M— R BT E o R R AR (D5
BErE8lEE M ERERE PR R
SRGOEETEEERER G EB
ATEIR WK R R D) REF TS BB
REMBEARARREEITRAEEDN
1.25% ' BERRIEESFSERAMKRILE B
Bl B& 1n 22 B 5T &1 15 B H 40 B B #B104F
WA -

RIERZE R AR AR & 88 &
HBRIAZTAEIEARAHA TS B
ABBRG - WAETEEAREBL
BER2HEERE EERSEBRMOIKE
SRAEBETHRBACEER2EER
IEe REMF22 X FUES -
20228128318 ° AR EE # K »
BHAEZATREARRCHTSE
A & #£17,025,0008% A% 15 (20214 :
16,525,000/ fx ) - BRE XD A A
R 227,630,000t (20214 : A & ¥
223,865,0007T) °

20204 % —H K 17 22 B &1 &/

20206 A30H * KA R R IEKE KR K
REERACECTHITEE (BREES)
% 15,000,000 x5 - ®REE A
B M 199.95% 7 - B Z R EE )
RIE D BB R AMBAL - &5 -
fRISFHE - REREAEE 2B M
BT -

27
(b)

()

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont'd)

Share Award Scheme

On 15 November 2019, the Board resolved to adopt a Share
Award Scheme for its employees in order to provide incentive
for the Selected Participants to continuously make greater
contributions for the Group’s long-term growth in the future.
The aggregated maximum number of Shares underlying all
grants made pursuant to the Share Award Scheme (excluding
Award Shares that have been forfeited in accordance with the
Share Award Scheme) must not exceed 1.25% of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date
and the Share Award Scheme is effective for 10 years from the
Adoption Date unless early terminated by the Board.

Based on the resolution, the Company entrusted the Trustee to
purchase existing Shares in the open market based on the overall
remuneration incentive plan. The Trustee holds such Shares
on behalf of the relevant Selected Participants on trust, until
such Shares are vested with the relevant Selected Participants
in accordance with the Scheme Rules. The trust is consolidated
in accordance with Note 2.2. As at 31 December 2022, the
Company had entrusted the trustee to purchase an aggregate
of 17,025,000 (2021: 16,525,000) shares from the open
market for the Share Award Scheme at a total consideration of
approximately RMB227,630,000 (2021: RMB223,865,000).

2020 First Share Award Scheme

On 30 June 2020, 5,000,000 shares were granted to selected
current employees (including directors) under the Share Award
Scheme with the payment of the grant price of HKD9.95 per
share. The number of shares granted is determined based on the
Share Award Grantee's position, experience, years of service,
performance and contribution to the Group.
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27

(b)
()

(ii)

BURR 19 % B 7 B9 1 SR ()
B 17 38 B &t 81 ()
2020%F £ — B IR 17 L Bt B (40

HAEE (BEES)RENKROME -
ERAFERAXEZE  RNEHA
SEBHMEINFEEBRIZEA A
R L HHI2020F6 A308 %1218 A -
2418 A %3618 A5 Bl 5B (7 S E &t
2/#30% * 30% 40% °

FEHBRODNAREBEEDILZEBRND
BEAAIRELBHERMOOMESE
E o BHEBHNRERIIE T RR
2020F6 A30EEE KO M AR EE
"B49.75E BB T (HHER A R%45.44
BEL) e

20204F 5 — 15 R 17 52 B 51 &

K2020F11A108 - " AFRERKRH
REiEn— 2L ETHITRER
750,000 i 5 - HHEHE AT R K
$1043F L - BB ZBRHEE TR
BRGOEEARANBAS &% R
BEH RAKHAKSEZERME

.
TE °

HAEE (BEES)REMNKROME -
BREFERBRAXEEREE  REBS
BEHAENFEIBABISH TR
&% B H12020F11 A118 &1218 A -
2418 A & 3618 A 5 Bl 5 &8 I 15 52 B &1
218930%  30% M40%

EHBRODNAREBEDLERN
BEAAIRELBERMOOMESE
Fo R BABHKER20.85%F TR
R2020F1MANMBERER MO A RE
BER7REEETHERARKG64
BEL) -

27

(b)
(i)

(ii)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont'd)

Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

2020 First Share Award Scheme (Cont’d)

For shares granted to employees (including directors), subject
to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24 months and
36 months after the grant day dated 30 June 2020 with 30%,
30% and 40% of the share award scheme, separately.

The fair value for the shares granted is determined by reference
to the cost of purchase of shares, or the market values of the
shares on grant date. Share price at grant date is HKD19.9
and the fair value of the shares granted on 30 June 2020 was
HKD49.75 million (equivalent to RMB45.44 million).

2020 Second Share Award Scheme

On 10 November 2020, 750,000 shares were granted to one
selected current employee under the Share Award Scheme
with the payment of the grant price of HKD10.43 per share.
The number of shares granted is determined based on the
Share Award Grantee’s position, experience, years of service,
performance and contribution to the Group.

For shares granted to employees (including directors), subject
to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24 months and
36 months after the grant day dated 11 November 2020 with
30%, 30% and 40% of the share award scheme, separately.

The fair value for the shares granted is determined by reference
to the cost of purchase of shares, or the market values of the
shares on grant date. Share price at grant date is HKD20.85 and
the fair value of the shares granted on 11 November 2020 was
HKD7.82 million (equivalent to RMB6.64 million).
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(b)
(iii)

(iv)

U ABERNAS @
BRp B8 (&)
202146 R (7 2E B 51 &)

2021678318 » AR AR E K {7 28
BEralRgETRIRE(BEES)
# 12,300,000 5 REEBEAF
B R D118 e MEZBRHDEE T
1B R D SR AR AR B8 -
fRIsFH - REREAELEEZFEM

BE-

RAEE(BEES)BRENKROME -
BEREFERAEBEIZE  RBBE
BRHAEINFEBBRBISHR IR
# B #2021F7A18 %&1218 A - 24
18 A %3618 A 5 Bl 5 & % (7 22 B &1 21
m130% ~ 30% }40% °

FTEEBROOAREBEDLZBER NG
BEAAIAELBHEROOMESE
E o BREBHNKRERI.SE T RRY
221F7RAMBREROOAALEER
27148 BB T(HHERARK22628

b —

BIT) °

2022 R 157 2 By 51 &)

1202238280 + "R AR &K 9
REERNCETHITEE (BREES)
# 15,030,000 B 1p - WHE A
&R 1D4.497 L - REH ZRMDEE D
RIER D RE R ANBAG - &5 -
fRISFH - REREAEEZEEBM
BT -

HAEE (BEER)RENBROME -
BREFEBRAXEEREE  REBS
BEHAENFEIABISH IR
I HHAI2022943 28R & 1218 A - 24
&8 A &36(8 A5 5l 5EER M2
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(b)
(iii)

(iv)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont'd)

Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

2021 Share Award Scheme

On 31 July 2021, 2,300,000 shares were granted to selected
current employees (including directors) under the Share Award
Scheme with the payment of the grant price of HKD11.8 per
share. The number of shares granted is determined based on the
Share Award Grantee’s position, experience, years of service,
performance and contribution to the Group.

For shares granted to employees (including directors), subject
to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24 months and
36 months after the grant day dated 1 July 2021 with 30%,
30% and 40% of the share award scheme, separately.

The fair value for the shares granted is determined by reference
to the cost of purchase of shares, or the market values of the
shares on grant date. Share price at grant date is HKD11.8
and the fair value of the shares granted on 1 July 2021 was
HKD27.14 million (equivalent to RMB22.62 million).

2022 Share Award Scheme

On 28 March 2022, 5,030,000 shares were granted to selected
current employees (including directors) under the Share Award
Scheme with the payment of the grant price of HKD4.49 per
share. The number of shares granted is determined based on the
Share Award Grantee’s position, experience, years of service,
performance and contribution to the Group.

For shares granted to employees (including directors), subject
to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24 months and
36 months after the grant day dated 28 March 2022 with 30%,
30% and 40% of the share award scheme, separately.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2022 Annual Report

221l



eV BRRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 4318 [E4F JE For the year ended 31 December 2022

27 LURGABEBRBONSFR@ 27
(b) M EBEE(E) (b)
(iv) 202246 [R5 @52 (%) (iv)

FREBROHNAAEBETIZRBEK M
BERAIRBRHBEEROOMEES
E o B BHARE RSB T KR
2022F3A28B IR B A LB E
B258EBET(HERARKI18.38

e —

BEL)°

HE2022F12831BIEEE - REE
REMEBETFTEHAREBEZES) W
iR ES R M EB S ER
K ®10,394,0007T (20215 : A R &
8,742,0007T) FI X °

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont'd)

Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

2022 Share Award Scheme (Cont’d)

The fair value for the shares granted is determined by reference
to the cost of purchase of shares, or the market values of the
shares on grant date. Share price at grant date is HKD8.98 and
the fair value of the shares granted on 28 March 2022 was
HKD22.58 million (equivalent to RMB18.38 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
RMB10,394,000 (2021: RMB8,742,000) expenses in relation to
the above Share Option Schemes and Share Award Schemes to
the current employees (including directors).

28 MEEQRRIZRE 28 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
M12H31H

As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HA ) 4 g Opening balance 4,000 -
= Additions 1,140 4,000
Db EE Share of results (407) =
Hi R 45 82 Ending balance 4,733 4,000

FEREHBERNH/LARE
WHZEREREL EHISRE -

R E£202249 K2021512 8318 Ik &
E BERLE AR EEHAEEmMS
BEKX-

All of the Group’s associates are private companies and there
are no quoted market prices available for such equity interests.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no associate
is considered to be material to the Group individually.
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29 BESKRHEHMEATRIE 29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
M12A31R
As at 31 December
2022 20214
2022 2021
ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000
iE: EFF B SEEN R
Current Non-current Current Non-current

Z5ENZIE(H @) Trade payables (Note (a))

-F=F - Third parties 532,722 - 536,875 -
Hfth JE 1 500R Other payables
-EFEA — Accrued expenses 253,597 = 157,196 =
-RETUTHFE - Amounts collected on behalf of
property owners 731,469 - 515,496 =
- WK B AR R - Consideration payables for acquisition
& of subsidiaries 37,959 105,398 192,731 92,857
- Hfh - Others 73,959 - 10,277 -
1,096,984 105,398 875,700 92,857
e Accrued payroll 307,534 - 232,566 -
H it & 4 508 Other tax payables 106,043 - 84,219 -
2,043,283 105,398 1,729,360 92,857
(a) 20224 K&2021F12A318 » & (a) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the ageing analysis
REZAHNEZEMNKIED of the trade payables based on invoice date were are
BREE DM : follows:
R12A318
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR® T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
1 AR Within 1 year 500,035 517,139
1225 1 to 2 years 20,018 17,999
2E3F 2 to 3 years 11,244 814
3FEM E Over 3 years 1,425 923
532,722 536,875
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29 BZNKHEHMEMNREG@ 29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (cont'd)

(b) PR2022F % 20215128318 © & (b) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amount
5 I Bt JiE A FRIE A5 SR Y BR of trade and other payables balances are all denominated
BEARARKESE - in RMB.

(0 BHRNFIEREENE R (0) Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within
REERBIFARAZA - 1 year of recognition.

(d) HRES K EMENRIERRE (d)  The carrying amount of trade and other payables
S EASOREERS balances are considered to be the same as their fair
BREEQNALBEER ° values, due to their short-term nature.

30 ELEMREH 30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
HREMBMRAXRANELETIEEE The analysis of deferred tax assets in the consolidated
DT statements of financial position was as follows:

®12A31H
As at 31 December
2022F 20214
2022 2021
AR® T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
R IE & E Deferred tax assets:
- HiE121E A& U E A — Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more
EERIEE E than 12 months = -
- 1218 A A U = A IR T — Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12
MIEEE months 104,685 67,712
FIERTEE E BT Total deferred tax assets 104,685 67,712
BEEHEREEBRET Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to
HEaE set-off provisions (15,967) (13,203)

EIERIBE EFE Net deferred tax assets 88,718 54,509

RERIBEBAE: Deferred tax liabilities:

-8B 1218 A & 4= /Y — Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after

BEEfHBEARE more than 12 months 91,977 75,316

—1218 A W4z | #Y IR & — Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within

BMIEAE 12 months 38,754 35,262
EXEHIBEAGEEE Total deferred tax liabilities 130,731 110,578
R HR K 3H R E IR Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to

ERIBEE set-off provisions (15,967) (13,203)
EEfHEAGEFEE Net deferred tax liabilities 114,764 97,375
EEHIBEAGE TR Deferred tax liabilities — net (26,046) (42,866)
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30

EE 5 & 30

NEER —BEE 2 EHRIEKE - &
F2022FNAMBIEFEMIREFRTE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year ended 31 December 2022, without taking into

MEERBBZ#ESHMT : consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax
jurisdiction, is as follows:
ELFEHEE Deferred income tax assets
RERE Eitfe AMEEEE HESE B @it
Allowance
on doubtful Accrued Fair value Lease
debts payroll losses liabilities Provision Total
ARETT  ARETR ARETn ARETr ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
R2022%1518 As at 1 January 2022 32,549 32,450 1,689 611 413 67,712
NRe/GIA)EA2E  Charged/(credited) to the consolidated
WAR statements of comprehensive income 8,501 27,044 (1,639) - 207 34,113
WEHB R (F#32) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) 2,860 - - - - 2,860
R2022%12A318 At 31 December 2022 43,910 59,494 50 611 620 104,685
W01E1818 As at 1 January 2021 24,492 28,536 4,520 233 361 58,142
1BE/GIAGAZE  Charged/(credited) to the consolidated
AR statements of comprehensive income 7,691 3914 (2,831) 318 52 9,204
WEREAT Acquisition of subsidiaries 366 - - - - 366
2021128318 At 31 December 2021 32,549 32,450 1,689 611 413 67,712
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30 EIEFTE B (e 30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)
EBELERESHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
REFEMH KENEAR EREEE @5t
Withholding
tax for Acquisition of  Right-of-use
dividend subsidiaries assets Total
ARETT N R ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(M &E32)
(Note 32)

R2022%1818 As at 1 January 2022 25,889 84,418 271 110,578

(1B A)/FAHAEE (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
AR statements of comprehensive income = (11,819) 115 (11,704)
WEE BB AR (f7E32)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) = 31,857 = 31,857
R2022512A31H At 31 December 2022 25,889 104,456 386 130,731
R2021€1818 As at 1 January 2021 25,889 16,862 175 42,926

(1B B)/FAHAEE (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
N statements of comprehensive income - (3,529) 96 (3,433)
e B Y /B A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries - 71,085 - 71,085
RW2021512831H At 31 December 2021 25,889 84,418 271 110,578
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30

EERMEH @

ELEFREBHARE)
(@)  F2022%12A318 - A& @

HARBEIINEEERES TH
B B B A 7] 3P 10 Ak BE Al it
B2 18 72 P& S I FE <2 5 A TR 40
MERELEMSHABARE
25,889,0007T (20214 : A R #&
25,889,0007T) °

M2022F12 8318 © &K &
AP EEBENCEEEGS
THRERNBARABEHARE
72,467,0007C (20214 : A R ¥
58,348,0007T) &) K [ H 7] o
K A1) 7E B R FE S A TR
HEREENEZEMEH A
& A R #724,670,0007T (2021
& : A R #583,480,0007T)
EIHERZENBERERBIR
& o 2022412 A318 © K %
BB B A R R R DR &R
%4 5 A R #1,827,562,0007C °
i VE B RE BORAS - IREX A #578
BB - ERBENES
G MEHMERREERES
& AASRAEEBAEE IR
il 7 B BT /B A R) DIk AR B Y B
MEBHAERAR GRS

ZE A e

EBHBRATREE & ERHFE
ERMBEEABRBRKA SR
EHBEBEERRELEMSH
BE o B ZE2022%12A8318 Ik
FE AEEVTERRBEEIE
MRETHAERUKERE
ERBEBANEESHEE
(20214 : A R ¥154,0007T) °
AEBERFREEENNBAQA
MBEEBEBAIAERES AT -

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax liabilities (Cont’d)

(a)

As at 31 December 2022, RMB25,889,000 deferred
income tax liabilities (2021: RMB25,889,000) have
been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable upon remittance, in respect of a portion
of the unremitted distributable profits of certain PRC
subsidiaries attributable to the investors outside PRC.

As at 31 December 2022, deferred income tax
liabilities of RMB72,467,000 (2021: RMB58,348,000)
have not been recognised for the withholding tax
that would be payable upon remittance, in respect
of the unremitted distributable profits of certain PRC
subsidiaries attributable to the investors outside PRC
amounting to RMB724,670,000 (2021: RMB583,480,000)
as such profits are intended to be reinvested. As
at 31 December 2022, the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group have undistributed earnings of approximately
RMB1,827,562,000 which, if paid out as dividends,
would be subject to tax in the hands of the recipient. An
assessable temporary difference exists, but no deferred
tax liability has been recognised as the parent entity is
able to control the timing of distributions of dividends
from the PRC subsidiary and is not expected to distribute
these profits in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefits through future taxable profit is
probable. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
(2021: RMB154,000) in respect of tax losses that can be
carried forward against future taxable income. Tax losses
of subsidiaries operated in the PRC could be carried
forward for a maximum of five years.
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31 KRE 31 DIVIDENDS
BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARE T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANARE KA E (M sE@) Dividends declared by the Company (Note (a)) 134,944 239,819
— R M B A RR AT 3EHE R 1 Dividends paid by a subsidiary to non-
E = /) iR B (M 7% (b)) controlling interests (Note (b)) 2,883 3,103
137,827 242,922

21FMARBEREZTRE D
% A R #0.1557C & # &K R A
M2022% 68280 & 17 0 Ik B
BEREEHE BFARE
134,944,0007T ° #% f% B 7 fi%
% 10 5 {8 3K o B 2022412
A318 &R EEBEIK T -

M2023F3F2098 BT E F
eexL ETEZEAKRH
HEREESREBRARE
0.167T MJ20224F K HE ik B - #E
& B8 B I 48 7 b S B AS HR Rk
PIVERERR B - HEAFRER
AAEEEREBFRG L
AR Y EE =2022912831H
IEFENREERER -

RNATHE AR KEIER N E
REEBR AR MR R IR ZEH
B E2020F12A3MAEFE R
Bom A o AfmIEERERER D
K H) & 8 A A R®129,0007T ©

AR BARZRFZE MR
R % H#H £22021F12A31H
EFE2IEF o Al mIEER
MEZHSKNESEAARE
2,754,0007C °

(a)

A final dividend in respect of 2021 of RMBO0.155 per
ordinary share, amounting to RMB134,944,000 was
approved at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 28 June 2022. The dividend is reflected as an
appropriation of share premium. As of 31 December
2022, the dividend had been fully paid.

At a Board meeting held on 29 March 2023, the
directors proposed a final dividend for 2022 of RMBO0.16
per ordinary share using the share premium account. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable
in these financial statements, but will be reflected as
an appropriation of reserves for the year ending 31
December 2022 upon approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Chengdu Yueshishang Catering Management Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, distributed 100%
of its profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
to the shareholders. The distributable amount for
non-controlling interests was RMB129,000.

Xuefu Catering, a subsidiary of the Company, distributed
100% of its profit for the year ended 31 December
2021 to the shareholders. The distributable amount for
non-controlling interests was RMB2,754,000.
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32

Wy &8 B B 1 =) 32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
Fr g B R
RS g 4= Ol RE %%
% of equity
interest
Acquiree Acquisition date acquired Consideration Business
% ARETT
% RMB'000
BRETER 202262 A 70% 26,341 BERH
Health Catering February 2022 Catering services
SEME 2022567 70% 113,050 WEEER
Jinyu Property June 2022 Property management services
BMER 2022128 100% 450 BSRHB
Changzhou Yupu December 2022 Trading services

139,841

BERE PMKRBEEFELHEN

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired

FEBEAT and goodwill are as follows:
et
Total
AR T
RMB’'000
BERE Purchase consideration
B/ & MR Cash payment
- R2022F 12 A3 1AL E — Settled before 31 December 2022 99,341
- AFEUEER2022F12A318 - Outstanding for current year acquisition as at 31
R December 2022 40,500
REENRE Total purchase consideration 139,841
-EFERER2022F12A31H - Outstanding for previous year acquisition as at 31
i A S December 2022 102,857
143,357

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited

2022 Annual Report

2291



eV BRRMEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 22022412 4318 [E4F JE For the year ended 31 December 2022

32 WEEKE QT @

32 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

g 4=R-
Acquisition
dates
AR TR
RMB’000
HekIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 9,421
B 5 WA Trade receivables 73,609
TETFRIE - iR & H th & YRR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 14,143
Y% - B E KRB (M E16()) Property, plant and equipment (Note 16(a)) 3,148
A = (M EE17) Intangible assets (Note 17) 126,127
7E Inventories 46
5 & F 18 & E= (i 3£30) Deferred tax assets (Note 30) 2,860
FE 5P R I8 K2 H A & 5 FRIE Payables and other payables (79,801)
&K Borrowings (7,437)
e ON=K Contract liabilities (6,571)
BNEAFr S B & Current income tax liabilities (3,668)
HEEE Lease liabilities (490)
iR IE 7 38 8 E (M 7E30) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 30) (31,857)
99,530
A I 5 RO RE 2 Less: non-controlling interest (29,725)
R (M 17) Add: goodwill (Note 17) 70,036
139,841

W g R 2R Cash outflow on acquisitions:
NBReEENBNRE Total considerations settled by cash (99,341)
M E AR KNERS Cash acquired in the subsidiaries acquired 9,421
WEEIR &M F 8 Cash outflow on acquisitions — net (89,920)

BUA LT R - AR B A
B M 1 B 3 ) % 5 5 A0 bt ) E 9B 3
2 IR 1 4 35 -

HEZSEWEB L Z=2022F12A31
HIEFE  FIREEHRASRER
WARBRAERAFMBEIAEAR
#75,342,0007T & A R #10,209,000
T

it U2 B8 B R2022F 1 AMB 8 £ - B =
202N A3MBIEFERNGEEZR
A5 0 A R #28,394,0007T & &=
202212 A318 L FE MR TS B A
FI 8 58 12 hn A R #6,024,0007T ©

BEUBRAREREAEXBENTHE
RALFMKRBEBOSAMEN - &
LB EB WA HIR ©

For the above acquisitions, the Group elected to recognise
the non-controlling interests at its proportionate share of the
acquired net identifiable assets.

The acquired business contributed revenues of RMB75,342,000
and profit before income tax of RMB10,209,000 to the Group
for the year from the respective acquisition dates to 31
December 2022.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2022, consolidated
pro-forma revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
have been RMB28,394,000 higher and profit before income
tax for the year ended 31 December 2022 would have been
RMB6,024,000 higher.

The goodwill is attributable to the market expansion in various
regions or business and the high profitability of the acquired
business. It will not be deductible for tax purposes.
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33 HEMBRT

REZE2022F12A318 L FE - A&
[ ! &£ Henan Xinyue Property Service
Co., Ltd ([Henan Xinyue]) ' & &
A A KR%810,0007T ° HEFIBWT

33 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed
Henan Xinyue Property Service Co., Ltd (“Henan Xinyue”) for a
total consideration of RMB810,000. Details of the disposals are
as follows:

Henan Xinyue

AR® T
RMB’000
HERE Disposal consideration

-PERBATMKES R — Cash and cash equivalents received from disposal of the
ReEEY subsidiary 810
LEMBARIEEFEBLRE Total net assets of the subsidiary disposed of 1,589
B M EFFIERER Less: Non-controlling interest disposed of (779)
810
el Gains on disposal _
LEMSRE  IKEERS Cash proceeds from disposal, net of cash disposed of 810
BoHENBRARIEERIBEEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary disposed of (643)
HERESMAFEHE Net cash inflow on disposal 167
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3 R REH 34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
() RETHMERLFH (a) Cash generated from operations
BZ12A3MHLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
b BT 15 %% B A1) B Profit before income tax 626,984 741,676
R Adjustments for:
- AR IE Y FE R B B D - Amortisation of non-current portion of

B8 prepayments = 107
-UE BEREREUAK — Depreciation of property, plant and

& AEEEE (K equipment and right of use assets (Note 16)

16) 35,403 14,470
-FBReEERMAX — Non-cash employee benefits expense

- UMD AEERAMNR - share-based payments (Note 27)

(Bt 5£27) 10,394 8,742
-EREESBEMWE17) — Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) 55,371 18,504
- BB RE K E17) — Impairment of goodwill (Note 17) 5,404 =
- SRR ANEEMERE - Net impairment losses on financial and

FRE (M 7E3.1.2) contract assets (Note 3.1.2) 145,432 111,232
-HEME  BMENKZER - Net gains on disposal of property, plant and

W &= R (M EE11) equipment (Note 11) (4,647) (1,310)
-EBRAABEFAEEN — Net fair value losses on financial assets at fair

TREENAAEE value through profit or loss (Note 11)

&5 18 % 58 (B 5211) 125,541 126,582
-EH ) B FE — Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses (Note 11)

(B 3E11) (17,207) 10,491
— B 75 B AR (FfT 5E12) — Financial costs (Note 12) 925 337
-EBRAARBEFAEEN — Interest income from financial assets at

eHMEERRAAEE fair value through profit or loss and

AEMEEKAN SR financial assets at fair value through other

BEEMF EWA(HE comprehensive income (Note 9) (40,451) (49,150)
FE(R ARE &R N BR A Bl & — Share of net loss of associates accounted for

A A) S 1 F B8 (P 5228) using the equity method (Note 28) 407 =

EEES#EE: Changes in working capital:
-FE — Inventories (15,883) (10,149)
-BemERE IS — Non-current portion of deposits 1,936 7,215
-EHEE — Contract assets (9,974) (44,066)
-2 5 W RIE ~ Trade receivables (645,873) (219,264)
-FENRE Rek — Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

H & U IR (406,132) (240,622)
- 1B — Provisions 1,038 258
-AHAaE — Contract liabilities (34,710) 131,743
-2 5 K H h JE 1 5IR — Trade and other payables 392,597 306,647

226,555 913,443

MARBRBEERRAR
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3 BEREFR®

34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (cont'd)

(b) FRERERMETEH (b) Non-cash investing and financing activities
MW12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR T AREF T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
WEFERAEEE Acquisition of right-of-use assets 6,618 16,083
AR 0 A E TR AR Share-base payments (Note 27)
(BF 5E27) 10,394 8,742
17,012 24,825
(c) FEEBEAHFR (c) Net debt reconciliation

TEHHIIRN SR RABFEREIN
REABED -

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements
in net debt for each of the periods presented.

®W128318
As at 31 December
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEME: Net debt:
WL RIBELEEYW (M E24) Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) 1,973,696 2,504,102
S Borrowings (2,265) -
HEEE (M E16) Lease liabilities (Note 16) (16,257) (14,439)
FEE Net debt 1,955,174 2,489,663
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3 BEaRER®E 34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(0 BREBEBAGHXRE) () Net debt reconciliation (Cont'd)
BeR
HeZEY HE B 5t
Cash and cash
equivalents Leases  Borrowings* Total
AR®T T AR®T T AR®T R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
M2022F1A1B K FEE  Net debt as at 1 January 2022 2,504,102 (14,439) - 2,489,663
Beha Cash flows (547,613) 5,725 5172 (536,716)
WBE BB AR (F7E32)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32) = = (7,437) (7,437)
MMM HAERZ New lease agreement entered into - (6,618) - (6,618)
FIERX Interest expenses = (925) = (925)
EXEHHHE R Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
ReEENTE and cash equivalents 17,207 - - 17,207
$R2022%12 A318 /) Net debt as at 31 December 2022
FaE 1,973,696 (16,257) (2,265) 1,955,174
R2021F1 A1 FEE  Net debt as at 1 January 2021 1,882,136 (4,577) - 1,877,559
BeRe Cash flows 632,457 6,558 - 639,015
HRI VMR ER S New lease agreement entered into = (16,083) = (16,083)
FERX Interest expenses = (337) = (337)
EXEHHHE R Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
ReZEBYNFE and cash equivalents (10,491) = = (10,491)
R2021412A318 8 Net debt as at 31 December 2021
FEE 2,504,102 (14,439) = 2,489,663
* HR2022F12A3NBMERE —FAREE - * The maturity of the borrowings as at 31 December 2022 is within a year.
35 EAHEEBIE 35 COMMITMENTS
(a) BEHAE (a) Investment commitment
20224 K2021F12A31H » & 5 & As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, committed investments are
EWNT: as follows:
M®12A318
As at 31 December
2022% 20214F
2022 2021
AR T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
REE RN EBRE Committed investments in an associate 80,000 84,000
FHIRREEEMER LT
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35
(b)

36
(a)

o 5B H () 35 COMMITMENTS (cont'd)
ReEMEAF-FREAAA (b) Operating lease commitments — as lessee
AEBRBETAMELEHOMER The Group leases offices and staff dormitories under
MRAEREIESE HENF—ZEER non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are
F-HRZHBEAOLEBBEEZEL between 1 and 5 years, and the majority of lease agreements
AREHRAERKETEEL - are signed with related parties and renewable at the end of the
lease period at market rate.
B2019F1AIBE - AEEERZF From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use
HEMRBERAEEE  UTRARE assets for these leases, except for short-term and low-value
BEBEERIN - leases as below.
M®12H31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARB T ARETF T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
156 A No later than 1 year 206 72
B R R 5 36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BEAIEBRERESNER (@) Names and relationship with related parties

N R A &K ER AR A Infinity
Fortune Development Limited * 7% 2 &
REBREAXBESFMK Y - RAFI&K
BIEBRBRR AT A HEBURF
Bl KBE o

The Ultimate Holding Company of the Company is Infinity
Fortune Development Limited, which was incorporated in British
Virgin Islands. The Ultimate Controlling Shareholder of the
Company is Mr. Wang and the business is mainland China.
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36 BBAXREm 36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont'd)
(b) EHAXSB (b) Transactions with related parties
BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR® T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
12 it AR 75 Provision of services
-FhREEEHNERE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 917,552 1,313,023
- ThREMAEERB L% — Joint ventures and associates of Mr. Wang 166,701 185,667
1,084,253 1,498,690
) DN SR Payment on behalf of the Group by related
parties
-FhREEHNNEE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 24,773 11,921
HEBERAENRNERX Interest expenses related to lease liabilities
- FhREEHMNER — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 538 84
FHRBEERAMZIZNERRES The prices for the above service fees and other transactions
WHBEHRENIGERETE - were determined in accordance with the terms mutually agreed
by the contract parties.
(0 EREBAESHMH () Key management compensation
B IE A B B (MY FE38H AT i Compensations for key management other than those for
BNEEFHHBRINEINET o directors as disclosed in Note 38 is set out below.
BZE12A31BHLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2022 20214
2022 2021
AR T AR®EFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
2 Salaries 7,486 7,091
4 Bonuses 2,739 3,881
AR D A B i e 3K Share-based payments 2,926 1,107
BRe  FEEAES - Pension, housing fund, medical insurances and
EERRBREMAEERE other social insurances 1,068 932
14,219 13,011
FHIRBEEEERA R
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36
(d)

BB S m 36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (contd)
BB B 5 WA R (d) Balances with related parties
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR® T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JiE U [ Bk 05 518 Receivables from related parties
2 5 e WK IE Trade receivables
- FEEE %‘J B E e — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 474,089 136,635
-FTREMEERB A MZE  ~ Joint ventures and associates of Mr. Wang 90,192 58,553
564,281 195,188
TEfRIE  'e Kk Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
H b fE W R I8
- F A Eﬁ E %;'f — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 485,785 24,842
-FRENE 1% - Joint ventures and associates of Mr. Wang 95,132 238,363
580,917 263,205
ERNEE Contract assets
-FEREEGFHNE ;%; - Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 246,016 231,365
- FHREMEERBE D~ Joint ventures and associates of Mr. Wang 30,413 36,465
276,429 267,830
FEUR BEEE T R IE R A XA E Total receivables and contract assets from
1B EE related parties 1,421,627 726,223
J& 11 B8 Bék 05 RKIB Payables to related parties
EHBE Contract liabilities
-FREEHNER — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 21,894 11,093
- ThREMEERBEME - Joint ventures and associates of Mr Wang 193 7,580
22,087 18,673
HEBE Lease liabilities
-FREERHNER — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 6,809 10,173
FE ST BA B 5 SR IE 4B BB Total payables to related parties 28,896 28,846
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37 HEFERMEZNXRS

HE2002F1R2831B ILEE A& E
A #aKE A R100,000T K EEE T
MEBABIMEIINEZR - NEBEERIE
PR AR M = R A R #6214,0007T &
& 12 0 A R #114,0007T °

38 EENFZRER
HE2022F12A8318 A T&EEE 5

37

38

TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
acquired addition interests in certain subsidiaries for total
consideration of RMB100,000. The Group recognised an

decrease in non-controlling interests of RMB214,000 and an
increase in reserves of RMB114,000.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

Until 31 December 2022, the following directors and senior

BEREREEZER: managements were appointed:
BITES Executive Directors
BB E(EER) Mr. Qi Xiaoming, Chairman
R kA& Mr. Gao Xinli
REBFRT Ms. Wu Qiangian
FHITES Non-executive Directors
FHBRRLE Mr. Wang Xiaosong
BN A Mr. Lv Xiaoping
B FERA % A& Mr. Lu Zhongming
BYKHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
Rk Ms. Zhang Yan
KEXE Mr. Zhu Wei
HEREAE Mr. Xu Xinmin
FHIRBEEEERA R
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38 EEMAZRER® 38

(a)

EEHE (a)

HE2022F12831BIEFEE - EEH
AEEREBRNHE(EHEEZTAE
BEECHARUNSHEREREE S

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

Directors’ emoluments

The directors received emoluments from the Group (in their role
as senior management and employee before their appointment
as directors respectively) for the year ended 31 December 2022

DB N as follows:
NRHE EERER
e i T4 EBRORE BAGEMLR a3t
Housing
allowances
and
contributions
Share-hased to a retirement
i Name Fees Salaries Bonus payment scheme Total
ARETR  ARMTR ARBTn ARMTz ARETR  ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HrEZ Executive Directors
FNAR A Mr. Qi Xiaoming - 3,007 660 1,027 151 4,845
RAAALE Mr. Gao Xinl - 1,465 M7 483 134 2,499
REFRL Ms. Wu giangian - 625 145 309 134 1,213
BukufnEs Independent Non-executive Directors
fELL Ms. Zhang Yan 200 - - - - 200
KERE Mr. Zhu Wei 200 - - - - 200
FHRAE Mr. Xu Xinmin 200 - - - - 200
600 5,097 1,222 1,819 419 9,157
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38 EENMEKkER @ 38 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

@ EEM<H) (@) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)
HZE2021%F12B831BItFE - EFH The directors received emoluments from the Group (in their role
AEEMRMBEBROMES(EEEZER as senior management and employee before their appointment
BEEZAoAEREREERER & as directors respectively) for the year ended 31 December 2021
@) as follows:

KBGE  EREEMR

e it T ERNAF REHEER it
Housing
allowances and
contributions
Share-based to a retirement
#% Name Fees Salaries Bonus payment scheme Total

ARETL  ARBTR ARETR AR®TR  ARETR  ARETR
RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMB'000

HTES Executive Directors
HIBEE Mr. Qi Xiaoming - 1772 1,805 753 138 4,468
b3 bk Mr. Gao Xinl - 1,465 1,047 3101 1 5,734
REFRL Ms. Wu giangian = 604 151 485 0 1,361
BUkufnEs Independent Non-executive Directors
FELL Ms. Zhang Yan 200 = = = = 200
RELE Mr. Zhu Wei 200 - - - - 200
SHREE Mr. Xu Xinmin 200 = . . - 200
600 3,841 3,003 4339 380 12,163
FRITEZTITRMELE  a/NFELE The non-executive directors, Mr Wang Xiaosong, Mr Lv Xiaoping
I BE RBRSE E R B 220225 220214 and Mr Lu Zhongming did not receive any emoluments from the
12A318 L5 E I & 8 2 5% B YT Group during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. Mr
I B - TBEMREE - BNFEER Wang Xiaosong, Mr Lv Xiaoping and Mr Lu Zhongming have
Pr B ERBEAQAELZHE respectively made arrangements with the Company under which
Blit BEEEREXRERERSZ they have waived or agreed to waive their emoluments.
T

FARBBEEBMERAA
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38
(b)

(c)

(d)

EENFNBZRER @
EEMNERKREFR

MR E E20224F K2021F12A318 Ik F
& BB IR A B A A K AR B B R R AR

FMEHEHRN EEW REFREIN
B R ARAE A o
E=NERBER

MR E E20224F K2021F12A318 Ik F
B BB AESEHEBREH -

RESEERBAF=STRHEN
K&

R E £20224 K2021512 8318 Ik &
B -HBMESEERIMNAMNESHFHA
TEASERDRERNBESESMAR
S8 NMAXEEZSIBHRAEASEED
HE RERBEBAOME - N B
BEIXNREUNESARAIESS SR
EBEENRE

38
(b)

(c)

(d)

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

Retirement benefits of directors

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
were no additional retirement benefit received by the directors
except for the attribution to a retirement benefit scheme in
accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC.

Termination benefits of directors

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
were no termination benefits received by the directors.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available the services of directors

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
director or any of the five highest paid individuals received any
emolument from the Group as an inducement to join, upon
joining the Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. Also, no consideration was paid for making available
the services of the directors or senior management of the
Company.
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38
(e)

39

40

EENANBZRER @

DNEE - B ME TR 600 A
ERREREWENERAT %A
HWER EERRAMRSNIEEE
# o

R E £20224F K2021512 8318 Ik &
- ARAREART WK ERR
BR)BENEZEAZE A LENM
BER - EERREMRS -

br £ XX Pl o - R B E 20224 2021
F12A318 L F[E sk E& = 20224F [ 2021
FNRANBLEFEAERER - RNAF]
MEITVEASEHEBEHR  BAR
RESRETHEEENHEEZD
FREARS THERAEH -

HARER

M20224F K2021F12A8318 K &
REBE=ZFTHNNREBLEEFNEK
RARBBEBHIRBITER -

HREE

M2023F 1A A B W F 27T
VREKERSZ  REREKELS
HEMEEEERAATI0O%NKE B
WEBHE EEHEMEETEEAER
REIRBAESENHB AR - HEE
EeHAELEREUBREBE B
HEKBEWBATIMVSTEHEET
FTEE  BEHEBEESZ I
BWBERETEER -

38
(e)

39

40

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered into
by the Company or subsidiaries undertaking of the Company,
where applicable, in favour of directors.

Except for those mentioned above, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had interests, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 or at
any time during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities or outstanding guarantees in
respect of payment obligations to third parties.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In January 2023, the Group entered into an equity acquisition
agreement with Ms. Wang Ting agreeing to acquire her 70%
equity interests in Shanghai Xiangxi Property Management
Service Co., Ltd., which became a subsidiary of the Group
since the acquisition date. Up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors, the
initial accounting for such acquired subsidiaries was incomplete
and was still under review by the management and thus no
relevant financial information was disclosed.
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41

NCILER S O SRR 41 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
A7) B AR R & Company statement of financial position
R2022%F K% 2021512 H31H As at 31 December 2022 and 2021
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20225 20214F
2022 2021
M 5 AR T ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

EE Assets
REBEE Current assets
FERE 'ek Prepayments, deposits and other

H b fE R I8 receivables 262,996 347,684
RARBETFAERD Financial assets at fair value through

TREE profit or loss 80,636 217,822
BEAABEFAEMEE Financial assets at fair value through

WAR SR EE other comprehensive income 5,996 52,390
HekIBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 111,240 109,426
mENEE B Total current assets 460,868 727,322
RBEE Non-Current assets
KRB RARIMNIEE Investment in subsidiaries 61,002 50,608
EREE E B Total non-current assets 61,002 50,608
EESE Total assets 521,870 777,930
B & Equity
AARBEEAELESR Equity attributable to owners of

the Company

% 7% Share capital 25 59,973 59,900
& 1 Reserves 41 781,859 900,939
REEE Accumulated losses (322,465) (185,492)
BB Total equity 519,367 775,347
REBAE Current liabilities
B 5k EMENHE Trade and other payables 2,503 2,583
mEBAGERRE Total current liabilities 2,503 2,583
EE8E Total liabilities 2,503 2,583
EEREEEAR Total equity and liabilities 521,870 777,930
RBEETFE Net current assets 458,365 724,739
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41 REHBEMRIREEE 41 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
(%) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)
AT B EARRERE) Company statement of financial position (Cont'd)
b N/NSCTRS W e = R Rl ) The above Company statement of financial position should be

ot — A B i

o

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

RNNF IR R E K EEER2023 The Company statement of financial position were approved by
FIAEMET RN TESTRAE the Board of Directors on 29 March 2023 and were signed on
- its behalf.
& /)N BB KA Qi Xiaoming Gao Xinli
o EE Director Director
REIRERD Reserve movement of the Company
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
M®1A18 As at 1 January 900,939 428,005
BAREBEGFAZEWAHA Changes in fair value of debt instruments at

BEIEQAAREEE fair value through comprehensive income

(it &£19) (Note 19) (46,394) (75,444)
REBEZEPERANEEREE Loss allowance recognised in profit and loss

(Bt 5£19) (Note 19) 49,889 71,949
R A BB (F3E31) Dividend paid by the Company (Note 31) (134,944) (239,819)
LARR 1 7 ZE 7 &9 1 3% Share-based payment (Note 27)

(Bt 5%£27) 10,394 8,742
Bic A Share placing - 861,149
1R #5 2019 4F B8 A% 4 51 & Exercise of share option under 2019 share

1718 BE AR i option scheme 5,740 19,183
BERFERS Buy-back and cancellation of share = (48,362)
RIEBR D RE T & Acquisition of shares for Employee Share

U B8 A 1 Award Scheme (3,765) (138,836)
TEEFRD T 6 Exercise of unrestricted shares from stock

A 5 BRIl AR 19 shares - 14,372
M12H31H As at 31 December 781,859 900,939
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